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VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Daniel K. Arbough, being duly sworn, deposes and says that
he is Treasurer for Louisville Gas and Electric Company and Kentucky Utilities‘
Company and an employee of LG&E and KU Services Company, and that he has
personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the responses for which he is identified as
the witness, and the answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his

information, knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this //#_day of /fg@m/@) 2014,

Q;f’/a&guéﬁm '/ (sEAL)
N%/a{y Public{/

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SCHOOLER
Notary Public, State at Large, KY

ion expires July 11, 2018
Notary ID # 512743 v




VERIFICATION
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 3 o
The undersigned, Kent W. Blake, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he is
Chief Financial Officer for Kentucky Utilities Company and Louisville Gas and Electric
Company and an employee of LG&E and KU Services Company, and that he has
personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the 1'esﬁ0nses for which he is identified as

the witness, and the answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his

information, knowledge and belief.

VI

Kent W, Blake

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

o y
and State, this //744 day of &){/mf’/-/ 2014.

 AotTl—  (SEAL)

Q/{k ey

I}I/é{ary Public /

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SCHOULER
Notary Public, State at Large, KY

Isston expires July 11, 2018
Notary ID # 512743



VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Robert M. Conroy, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he
is Director - Rates for Louisville Gas and Electric Company and Kentucky Utilities
Company, an employee of LG&E and KU Services Company, and that he has personal
knowledge of the matters set forth in the responses for which he is identified as the
witness, and the énswers contained therein are true and correct to the best of his

information, knowledge and belief.

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this //// day of jgg/;ﬁégd 2014.

) '
) prdie, x,éz{;m//ﬂ/ (SEAL)

Notary Public /

My Commission Expires:

SUDY SCHOOLER

Notary Public, State at Large, KY

My commission expires July 11, 2018
Notary D4 512743




VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Christopher M. Garrett, being duly sworn, deposes and sayé
that he is Director — Accounting and Regulatory Reporting for Kentucky Ultilities
Company and Louisville Gas and Electric Company and an employee of LG&E and KU
Services Company, that he has personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the
responses for which he is identified as the witness, and the answers contained therein are
true and correct to the best of his information, knowledge and belief,

/ZMM/%W“

Chrlstopher M. Garrett  */

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this / / %// day of \A[MZ?A})’U/ 2014.

/l/K/ZQV« /rré/b/ (SEAL)

Netdry Public //

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SCHOOLEK
Notary Public, State at Large, KY

My commission expires July 11, 2018
Notary ID # 512743




VERIFICATION
COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON ; >
The undersigned, Russel A. Hudson, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he
is Director of Operations Budgeting/Forecasting for Kentucky Utilities Company and
Louisville Gas and Electric Company and an employee of LG&E and KU Services
Company, and that he has personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the responses for

which he is identified as the witness, and the answers contained therein are true and

correct to the best of his information, knowledge and belief.

Kussel A, HHudson

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this // # day of _ /ﬁ//,'(ﬁyjy/y/&d 2014.

e, Jo St (sEAL
Notﬁry Publi¢Z

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SCHUULEK

Notary Public, State at Large, KY

My commission expires July 11, 2018
Notary ID # 512743




VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Paula H. Pottinger, Ph.D., being duly sworn, deposes and says
that she is Senior Vice President, Human Resources for Kentucky Utilities Company and
Louisville Gas and Electric Company and an employee of LG&E and KU Services
Company, and that she has personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the responses
for which she is identified as the witness, and the answers contained therein are true and

correct to the best of her information, knowledge and belief.

Paéa H. Pottinger, Ph.D. ?

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this ///// day of j&%?/)é’/u) 2014.

B/I/é{tary Publiﬁ

My Commission Expires:

SUUY vrivuLe

Notary Public, State at Large, KY

My commission expires July 11, 201&
Notary 1D # 512743



VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Valerie L. Scott, being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is
Controller for Kentucky Utilities Company and Louisville Gas and Electric Company and
an employee of LG&E and KU Services Company, and that she has personal knowledge
of the matters set forth in the responses for which she is identified as the witness, and the
answers contained therein are true and correct to the best of her information, knowledge

and belief.

Valerie L. dcott

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this 4/ #/ day of Mﬁéé//u/ 2014,

P

'/,/ / /
it e A0 (SEAL)
Nofary Public//

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SCHOOLER
Notary Pup:ig, State at Large, KY

10N expires July 11
Notary ID # 512743 V11, 2018




VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Edwin R. Staton, being duly sworn, deposes and says that he is
Vice President, State Regulation and Rates, for Kentucky Utilities Company and
Louisville Gas and Electric Company and an employee of LG&E and KU Services
Company, and that he has personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the responses for
which he is identified as the witness, and the answers contained therein are true and

correct to the best of his information, knowledge and belief.

=2 2 N5

Edwin 1{ Staton

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this //7% day of Jé’aﬁz/{/ 2014,

/)
(l oA /Mm{ix/(SEAL)

qucgry Public /

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SGHL)ULt:H

My lssmnexplres Juiy 11 2018
Notary ID # 512743



VERIFICATION

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY )
) SS:
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON )

The undersigned, Paul W. Thompson, being duly sworn, deposes and says that
he is Senior Vice President, Energy Services for Kentucky Utilities Company and
Louisville Gas and Electric Company and an employee of LG&E and KU Services
Company, and that he has personal knowledge of the matters set forth in the responses for
which he is identified as the witness, and the answers contained therein are true and

correct to the best of his information, knowledge and belief.

Paul V

Subscribed and sworn to before me, a Notary Public in and before said County

and State, this f& /4{ day of fﬁg{%vﬁ/p’/fb/ 2014,

/

/

.z/("r’/ég*—-—//(SEAL)

Chrde o

Nogiry Public //

My Commission Expires:

JUDY SLruULER

Notary Public, State at Large, KY# )
My commission expires July 11, 2019
Motary 10 # 512743




LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 1
Responding Witness: Edwin R. “Ed” Staton
Q-1. Provide a copy of the current bylaws. Indicate any changes made to the bylaws
since the utility's last general rate case.
A-1. See the attached for a copy of LG&E’s current bylaws. There have been no

changes made to the bylaws since March 31, 2012, the end of the test year in
LG&E’s last rate case.



Attachment to Response to Question No. 1

BY-LAWS
OF

LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

By-Laws Adopted November 7, 1956
As Amended Through April 22, 1998
As Amended Through June 2, 1999
As Amended Through November 3, 2003
As Amended Through December 16, 2003

Page 1 of 12
Staton
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BY-LAWS
OF
LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

By-Laws Adopted November 7, 1956
As Amended Through April 22, 1998
As Amended Through June 2, 1999
As Amended Through November 3, 2003
As Amended Through December 16, 2003

ARTICLE I

MEETINGS OF STOCKHOLDERS

Section 1. The Annual Meeting of the stockholders of the Company shall be held at a
location in or out of Kentucky at a time and date to be fixed by the Board of Directors each year.
Notice of the annual meeting shall be mailed to each stockholder entitled to notice at least ten
(10) days before the Annual Meeting.

Section 2. Except as otherwise mandated by Kentucky law and except as otherwise
provided in or fixed by or pursuant to the provisions of Article Fourth of the Company’s
Amended Articles of Incorporation relating to the rights of the holders of any class or series of
stock having a preference over the Company’s Common Stock as to dividends or upon
liquidation to elect directors under specified circumstances, special meetings of stockholders may
be called only by the President of the Company or by the Board of Directors pursuant to a
resolution approved by a majority of the entire Board of Directors. For purposes of these By-
Laws, the phrase “Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation” shall mean the Amended
Articles of Incorporation of Louisville Gas and Electric Company as in effect on February 1,
1987, and as thereafter amended from time to time.

Section 3. A stockholder may vote in person or by proxy, filed with the Secretary of the
Company before or immediately upon the convening of the meeting.

Section 4. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the
Company at a meeting of such holders may be taken without such a meeting only if a consent in
writing setting forth the action so taken shall be signed by all of the stockholders entitled to vote
with respect to the subject matter thereof.

Section 5. At an annual meeting of the stockholders, only such business shall be
conducted as shall have been properly brought before the meeting. To be properly brought
before an annual meeting, business must be (a) specified in the notice of meeting (or any
supplement thereto) given by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, (b) otherwise properly
brought before the meeting by or at the direction of the Board of Directors, or (c) otherwise
properly be requested to be brought before the meeting by a stockholder. For business to be
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properly requested to be brought before an annual meeting by a stockholder, the stockholder must
have given timely notice thereof in writing to the Secretary of the Company. To be timely, a
stockholder’s notice must be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive
offices of the Company, not less than 90 days prior to the meeting; provided, however, that in the
event that the date of the meeting is not publicly announced by the Company by mail, press
release or otherwise more than 100 days prior to the meeting, notice by the stockholder to be
timely must be delivered to the Secretary of the Company not later than the close of business on
the tenth day following the day on which such announcement of the date of the meeting was
communicated to stockholders. A stockholder’s notice to the Secretary shall set forth as to each
matter the stockholder proposes to bring before the annual meeting (a) a brief description of the
business desired to be brought before the annual meeting and the reasons for conducting such
business at the annual meeting, (b) the name and address, as they appear on the Company’s
books, of the stockholder proposing such business, (c) the class and number of shares of the
Company which are beneficially owned by the stockholder, and (d) any material interest of the
stockholder in such business. Notwithstanding anything in the By-Laws to the contrary, no
business shall be conducted at an annual meeting except in accordance with the procedures set
forth in this Section 5. The Chairman of an annual meeting shall, if the facts warrant, determine
and declare to the meeting that business was not properly brought before the meeting and in
accordance with the provisions of this Section 5, and if he should so determine, he shall so
declare to the meeting that any such business not properly brought before the meeting shall not
be transacted.

ARTICLE IT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Section 1. (a) The Board shall be composed of such number of Directors as shall be
set by resolution of the Board. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such
time and place as may be fixed by the Board of Directors. The number of Directors may be
changed from time to time by resolution of the Board of Directors or by amendment to these By-
laws, but no decrease in the number of Directors shall have the effect of shortening the term of
any incumbent Director. Unless a Director dies, resigns or is removed, he shall hold office until
the next annual meeting of the shareholders or until a successor is elected, whichever is later.

(b) Advance notice of stockholder nominations for the election of directors shall be
given in the manner provided in Section 2 of Article IV of these By-Laws.

(c) Except as otherwise provided in or fixed by or pursuant to the provisions of
Article Fourth of the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation relating to the rights of the
holders of any class or series of stock having a preference over the Company’s Common Stock as
to dividends or upon liquidation to elect directors under specified circumstances: (i) newly
created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors and any vacancies on
the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation, disqualification, removal or other cause
shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors then in office, even
though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors; (ii) any director elected in accordance with
the preceding clause (i) shall hold office until the next annual meeting of the shareholders or until
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such director’s successor shall have been elected and qualified, whichever is later; and (iii) no
decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall shorten the term of
any incumbent director.

(d) Except as otherwise provided in or fixed by or pursuant to the provisions of
Article Fourth of the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation relating to the rights of the
holders of any class or series of stock having a preference over the Company’s Common Stock as
to dividends or upon liquidation to elect directors under specified circumstances, any director
may be removed from office, with or without cause, only by the affirmative vote of the holders of
at least 80% of the combined voting power of the then outstanding shares of the Company’s
stock entitled to vote generally (as defined in Article Eighth of the Company’s Amended Articles
of Incorporation), voting together as a single class. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of
this Paragraph (d), if at any time any stockholders of the Company have cumulative voting rights
with respect to the election of directors and less than the entire Board of Directors is to be
removed, no director may be removed from office if the votes cast against his removal would be
sufficient to elect him as a director if then cumulatively voted at an election of the class of
directors of which he is a part.

Section 2. Regular Meetings shall be held at such time and place as may be fixed by the
Board of Directors.

Section 3. Special Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at the call of the
Chairman or of the President, or, in their absence, of a Vice President, or at the request in writing
of not less than three (3) members of the Board.

Section 4. Regular and Special Meetings may be held outside of the State of Kentucky.

Section 5. Notices of Regular and Special Meetings shall be sent to each director at least
one (1) day prior to the meeting.

Section 6. The business and affairs of the Company shall be managed by or under the
direction of the Board of Directors, except as may be otherwise provided by law or by the
Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation. Unless otherwise provided by law, at each
meeting of the Board of Directors, the presence of one-third of the fixed number of directors
shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Except as provided in Section I(c) of
this Article II, the vote of a majority of the directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is
present shall be the act of the Board of Directors. In case at any meeting of the Board of
Directors a quorum shall not be present, the members of the Board of Directors present may by
majority vote adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum shall attend.

Section 7. Directors may receive such fees or compensation for their services as may be
authorized by resolution of the Board of Directors. In addition, expenses of attendance, if any,
may be allowed for attendance at each regular or special meeting.

Section 8. The Board of Directors, by resolution adopted by a majority of the full Board
of Directors, may designate from among its members an executive committee and one or more
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other committees each of which, to the extent provided in such resolution, shall have and
exercise all the authority of the Board of Directors, but no such committee shall have the
authority to take action that under Kentucky law can only be taken by a board of directors.

Section 9. The Chairman of the Board, if such person is present, shall serve as Chairman
at each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors and shall determine the order of
business at such meeting. If the Chairman of the Board is not present at a regular or special
meeting of the Board of Directors, the Vice Chairman of the Board shall serve as Chairman of
such meeting and shall determine the order of business of such meeting. The Board of Directors
may elect one of its members as Vice Chairman of the Board.

ARTICLE 111

OFFICERS

Section 1. The officers of the Company shall be a Chief Executive Officer, President,
Chief Financial Officer, one or more Vice Presidents, Secretary, Treasurer, Controller and such
other officers (including, if so directed by a resolution of the Board of Directors, Chairman of the
Board) as the Board or the Chief Executive Officer may from time to time elect or appoint. Any
two of the offices may be combined in one person, but no officer shall execute, acknowledge, or
verify any instrument in more than one capacity. If practicable, officers are to be elected or
appointed by the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer at the first meeting of the
Board following the annual meeting of stockholders and, unless otherwise specified, shall hold
office for one year or until their successors are elected and qualified. Any vacancy shall be filled
by the Board of Directors or the Chief Executive Officer. Except as provided below, officers
shall perform those duties usually incident to the office or as otherwise required by the Board of
Directors, the Chief Executive Officer, or the officer to whom they report. An officer may be
removed with or without cause and at any time by the Board of Directors or by the Chief
Executive Officer.

Chief Executive Officer

Section 2. The Chief Executive Officer of the Company shall have full charge of all of
the affairs of the Company, shall preside at all meetings of the stockholders and, in the absence
of the Chairman of the Board, at meetings of the Board of Directors.

President

Section 3. The President shall exercise the functions of the Chief Executive Officer
during the absence or disability of the Chief Executive Officer.

Chief Financial Officer

Section 4. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company shall have full charge of all of the
financial affairs of the Company, including maintaining accurate books and records, meeting all
reporting requirements and controlling Company funds.
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Vice Presidents

Section 5. The Vice President or Vice Presidents may be designated as Vice President,
Senior Vice President or Executive Vice President, as the Board of Directors or Chief Executive
Officer may determine.

Secretary

Section 6. The Secretary shall be present at and record the proceedings of all meetings of
the Board of Directors and of the stockholders, give notices of meetings of Directors and
stockholders, have custody of the seal of the Company and affix it to any instrument requiring the
same, and shall have the power to sign certificates for shares of stock of the Company.

Treasurer

Section 7. The Treasurer shall have charge of all receipts and disbursements of the
Company and be custodian of the Company’s funds.

Controller

Section 8. The Controller shall have charge of the accounting records of the Company.

_Chairman of the Board

Section 9. In the event the Board of Directors elects a Chairman of the Board and
designates by resolution that the Chairman of the Board shall be an officer of the corporation, the
Chairman of the Board shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and serve the
corporation in an advisory capacity.

ARTICLE IV

CAPITAL STOCK CERTIFICATES
AND DIRECTOR NOMINATIONS

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall approve all stock certificates as to form. 'The
certificates for the various classes of stock, issued by the Company, shall be printed or engraved
with the facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary and a facsimile seal of the Company.
The Board of Directors shall appoint transfer agents to issue and transfer certificates of stock, and
registrars to register said certificates.

Section 2. Except as otherwise provided in or fixed by or pursuant to the provisions of
Article Fourth of the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation relating to the rights of the
holders of any class or series of stock having a preference over the Company’s Common Stock as
to dividends or upon liquidation to elect directors under specified circumstances, nominations for
the election of directors may be made by the Board of Directors or a committee appointed by the
Board of Directors or by any stockholder entitled to vote in the election of directors generally.
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However, any stockholder entitled to vote in the election of directors generally may nominate one
or more persons for election as director or directors at a stockholders’ meeting only if written
notice of such stockholder’s intent to make such nomination or nominations has been given
either by personal delivery or by United States mail, postage prepaid, to the Secretary of the
Company not later than 90 days in advance of such meeting; provided, however, that in the event
the date of the meeting is not publicly announced by the Company by mail, press release or
otherwise more than 100 days prior to the meeting, notice by the stockholder to be timely must
be delivered not later than the close of business on the tenth day following the date on which
notice of such meeting was first communicated to stockholders. Each such notice shall set forth
(a) the name and address of the stockholder who intends to make the nomination and of the
person or persons to be nominated; (b) a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record
of stock of the Company entitled to vote at such meeting and intends to appear in person or by
proxy at the meeting to nominate the person or persons specified in the notice; (c) a description
of all arrangements or understandings between the stockholder and each nominee and any other
person or persons (naming such person or persons) pursuant to which the nomination or
nominations are to be made by the stockholder; (d) such other information regarding each
nominee proposed by such stockholder as would be required to be included in a proxy statement
filed pursuant to the proxy rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission, had the nominee
been nominated, or intended to be nominated, by the Board of Directors; and (e) the consent of
each nominee to serve as a director of the Company if so elected. The Chairman of the meeting
may refuse to acknowledge the nomination of any person not made in compliance with the
foregoing procedure.

ARTICLE V

LOST STOCK CERTIFICATES

The Board of Directors may, in its discretion, direct that a new certificate or certificates
of stock be issued in place of any certificate or certificates of stock theretofore issued by the
Company, alleged to have been stolen, lost or destroyed, and the Board of Directors when
authorizing the issuance of such new certificate or certificates may, in its discretion, and as a
condition precedent thereto, require the owner of such stolen, lost or destroyed certificate or
certificates or the legal representatives of such owner, to give to the Company, its transfer agent
or agents, its registrar or registrars, as may be authorized or required to sign and countersign such
new certificate or certificates, a corporate surety bond in such sum as it may direct as indemnity
against any claim or claims that may be made against the Company, its transfer agent or agents,
its registrar or registrars, for or in respect to the shares of stock represented by the certificate or
certificates alleged to have been stolen, lost or destroyed.

ARTICLE VI

DIVIDENDS ON PREFERRED STOCK

Dividends upon the 5% Cumulative Preferred Stock, $25 Par value, if declared, shall be
payable on January 15, April 15, July 15 and October 15 of each year. If the date herein
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designated for the payment of any dividend shall, in any year, fall upon a legal holiday, then the
dividend payable on such date shall be paid on the next day not a legal holiday.

Dividends in respect of each share of $8.90 Cumulative Preferred Stock (without par
value) of the Company shall be payable on October 16, 1978, when and as declared by the Board
of Directors of the Company, to holders of record on September 29, 1978, and shall accrue from
the date of original issuance of said series. Thereafter, such dividends shall be payable on
January 15, April 15, July 15, and October 15 in each year (or the next business day thereafter in
each case), when and as declared by the Board of Directors of the Company, for the quarter-
yearly period ending on the last business day of the preceding month.

Dividends in respect of each share of Preferred Stock, Auction Series A (without par
value), of the Company shall be payable when and as declared by the Board of Directors of the
Company, on the dates and in the manner set forth in the Amendment to the Articles of
Incorporation of the Company setting forth the terms of such series.

Dividends in respect of each share of $5.875 Cumulative Preferred Stock, of the
Company shall be payable when and as declared by the Board of Directors of the Company, on
the dates and in the manner set forth in the Amendment to the Articles of Incorporation of the
Company setting forth the terms of such series.

ARTICLE VII

FINANCE

Section 1. The Board of Directors shall designate the bank or banks to be used as
depositories of the funds of the Company and shall designate the officers and employees of the
Company who may sign and countersign checks drawn against the various accounts of the
Company. The Board of Directors may authorize the use of facsimile signatures on checks
drawn against certain bank accounts of the Company.

Section 2. Notes shall be signed by the President and either a Vice President or the
Treasurer. In the absence of the President, notes shall be signed by two Vice Presidents, or a
Vice President and the Treasurer.

ARTICLE VIII

SEAL

The seal of this Company shall be in the form of a circular disk, bearing the following
information:
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( Louisville Gas and Electric Company
(  Incorporated Under the Laws of

( Kentucky

( Seal

( 1913

ARTICLE IX
AMENDMENTS

Subject to the provisions of the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation, these By-
Laws may be amended or repealed at any regular meeting of the stockholders (or at any special
meeting thereof duly called for that purpose) by the holders of at least a majority of the voting
power of the shares represented and entitled to vote thereon at such meeting at which a quorum is
present; provided that in the notice of such special meeting notice of such purpose shall be given.
Subject to the laws of the State of Kentucky, the Company’s Amended Articles of Incorporation
and these By-Laws, the Board of Directors may by majority vote of those present at any meeting
at which a quorum is present amend these By-Laws, or adopt such other By-Laws as in their
judgment may be advisable for the regulation of the conduct of the affairs of the Company.

ARTICLE X

INDEMNIFICATION

Section 1. Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is a director of the
Company and who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise
involved (including, without limitation, as a witness) in any action, suit or proceeding, whether
civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a “proceeding”), by reason of the fact
that he or she is or was a director or officer of the Company or is or was serving at the request of
the Company as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another corporation or
of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to an
employee benefit plan (hereinafter an “Indemnified Director”), whether the basis of such
proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a director or officer or in any other capacity
while serving as a director or officer, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company to
the fullest extent permitted by the Kentucky Business Corporation Act, as the same exists or may
hereafter be amended, against all expense, liability and loss (including, without limitation,
attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid in
settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such Indemnified Director in connection therewith
and such indemnification shall continue as to an Indemnified Director who has ceased to be a
director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the Indemnified Director’s heirs, executors and
administrators. Each person who was or is an officer of the Company and not a director of the
Company and who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise
involved (including, without limitation, as a witness) in any proceeding, by reason of the fact that
he or she is or was an officer of the Company or is or was serving at the request of the Company
as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee or agent of another corporation or of a
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partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to an employee
benefit plan (hereinafter an “Indemnified Officer”), whether the basis of such proceeding is
alleged action in an official capacity as an officer or in any other capacity while serving as an
officer, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the Company against all expense, liability and
loss (including, without limitation, attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or
penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such Indemnified
Officer to the same extent and under the same conditions that the Company must indemnify an
Indemnified Director pursuant to the immediately preceding sentence and to such further extent
as is not contrary to public policy and such indemnification shall continue as to an Indemnified
Officer who has ceased to be an officer and shall inure to the benefit of the Indemnified Officer’s
heirs, executors and administrators. Notwithstanding the foregoing and except as provided in
Section 2 of this Article X with respect to proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, the
Company shall indemnify any Indemnified Director or Indemnified Officer in connection with a
proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such Indemnified Director or Indemnified Officer only if
such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the Board of Directors of the Company. As
hereinafter used in this Article X, the term “indemnitee” means any Indemnified Director or
Indemnified Officer. Any person who is or was a director or officer of a subsidiary of the
Company shall be deemed to be serving in such capacity at the request of the Company for
purposes of this Article X. The right to indemnification conferred in this Article shall include the
right to be paid by the Company the expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in
advance of its final disposition (hereinafter an “advancement of expenses”); provided, however,
that, if the Kentucky Business Corporation Act requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by
an indemnitee who at the time of receiving such advance is a director of the Company shall be
made only upon: (i) delivery to the Company of an undertaking (hereinafter an “undertaking”),
by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be
determined by final judicial decision from which there is no further right to appeal (hereinafter, a
“final adjudication™) that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses
under this Article or otherwise; (ii) delivery to the Company of a written affirmation of the
indemnitee’s good faith belief that he has met the standard of conduct that makes indemnification
by the Company permissible under the Kentucky Business Corporation Act; and (iii)a
determination that the facts then known to those making the determination would not preclude
indemnification under the Kentucky Business Corporation Act. The right to indemnification and
advancement of expenses incurred in this Section 1 shall be a contract right.

Section 2. Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit. If a claim under Section 1 of this Article X
is not paid in full by the Company within sixty days after a written claim has been received by
the Company (except in the case of a claim for an advancement of expenses, in which case the
applicable period shall be twenty days), the indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit
against the Company to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in whole or in part
to any such suit or in a suit brought by the Company to recover an advancement of expenses
pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the indemnitee also shall be entitled to be paid the
expense of prosecuting or defending such suit. In (i) any suit brought by the indemnitee to
enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (other than a suit to enforce a right to an
advancement of expenses brought by an indemnitee who will not be a director of the Company at
the time such advance is made) it shall be a defense that, and in (ii) any suit by the Company to
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recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking the Company shall
be entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that, the indemnitee has not met
the standard of conduct that makes it permissible hereunder or under the Kentucky Business
Corporation Act (the “applicable standard of conduct”) for the Company to indemnify the
indemnitee for the amount claimed. Neither the failure of the Company (including its Board of
Directors, independent legal counsel or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior to
the commencement of such suit that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the
circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct, nor an actual
determination by the Company (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel or its
stockholders) that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct, shall create a
presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct or, in the case of
such a suit brought by the indemnitee, be a defense to such suit. In any suit brought by the
indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification or to an advancement of expenses hereunder, or
by the Company to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking,
the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified or to such
advancement of expenses under this Article X or otherwise shall be on the Company.

Section 3. Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The rights to indemnification and to the
advancement of expenses conferred in this Article X shall not be exclusive of any other right
which any person may have or hereafter acquire under any statute, the Company’s Articles of
Incorporation, these By-Laws, any agreement, any vote of stockholders or disinterested directors
or otherwise.

Section 4. Insurance. The Company may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect
itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the Company or another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether
or not the Company would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense,

liability or loss under the Kentucky Business Corporation Act.

Section 5. Indemnification of Emplovyees and Agents. The Company may, to the extent
authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors, grant rights to indemnification and to the
advancement of expenses to any employee or agent of the Company and to any person serving at
the request of the Company as an agent or employee of another corporation or of a partnership,
joint venture, trust or other enterprise to the fullest extent of the provisions of this Article X with
respect to the indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors and officers of the
Company.

Section 6. Repeal or Modification. Any repeal or modification of any provision of this
Article X shall not adversely affect any rights to indemnification and to advancement of expenses
that any person may have at the time of such repeal or modification with respect to any acts or
omissions occurring prior to such repeal or modification.

Section 7. Severability. In case any one or more of the provisions of this Article X, or
any application thereof, shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity,
legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Article X, and any other
application thereof, shall not in any way be affected or impaired thereby.

10
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Q-2.

A-2.

LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 2

Responding Witness: Valerie L. Scott

Provide the current organization chart, showing the relationship between the
utility and any affiliates, divisions, etc. Show the relative positions of all entities
and affiliates with which the utility routinely has business transactions.

A current organization chart is attached showing the ownership chain from LG&E
to its ultimate parent company, PPL Corporation (“PPL”). The chart also shows
relationships with PPL and LG&E and KU Energy LLC entities and affiliates
with which LG&E routinely has business transactions, namely:

LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE”) — Parent company of LG&E

Kentucky Utilities Company — Electric utility subsidiary of LKE and sister
company of LG&E

LG&E and KU Services Company — Centralized service company as
permitted under FERC rules and regulations and sister company of LG&E. It
also acts as payment agent for certain transactions for LKE affiliates.

LG&E and KU Capital LLC — Non-regulated holding company and sister
company of LG&E

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation — An entity that owns and operates two coal-
fired power plants in which LG&E owns a 5.63% interest

PPL Corporation — Parent company of LKE

PPL Electric Utilities Corporation — Electric utility subsidiary of PPL

PPL Services Corporation — Centralized service company of PPL as permitted
under FERC rules and regulations

PPL Energy Funding Corporation — a subsidiary of PPL and parent company
of PPL Energy Supply, LLC. It acts as payment agent for PPL Services
Corporation and certain other PPL affiliates.

PPL Energy Supply, LLC —a subsidiary of PPL Energy Funding Corporation

See the responses to Question Nos. 55 and 56 for an explanation of the types of
charges by affiliate.



Modified Corporate Organization Chart
December 2014

PPL Corporation

PPL Services PPL Electric
Corporation

Utilities Corporation Funding Corporation

PPL Energy

LG&E and KU Energy
LLC

PPL Energy Supply, LLC

Louisville Gas and Electric Company

Kentucky Utilities Company

LG&E and KU Capital LLC

LG&E and KU Services Company

Ohio Valley Electric Corporation
LG&E (5.63%)
KU (2.5%)
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LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 3
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Q-3. Provide the capital structure at the end of 10 most recent calendar years and each
of the other periods shown in Schedule 3a and Schedule 3b.

A-3. See attached. The capitalization is on a total company basis (electric and gas).



Line No.

OO WN

Line No.

o WN

Note:

Type of Capital

Long-Term Debt
Short-Term Debt
Preferred Stock
Common Equity
Other

Total Capitalization

Type of Capital

Long-Term Debt
Short-Term Debt
Preferred Stock
Common Equity
Other

Total Capitalization

Louisville Gas and Electric Company
Case No. 2014-00372

Question No. 3
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Comparative Capital Structures (Excluding JDIC)
For the Periods as Shown

"000 Omitted"
Schedule 3a
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$ 821,804 41.34% $ 820,554 38.96% $ 819,304 39.93% $ 984,304 44.26% $ 896,104 38.09%
108,220 5.44% 141,245 6.71% 67,824 3.31% 78,241 3.52% 221,999 9.44%
70,425 3.54% 70,425 3.34% 70,425 3.43% - 0.00% - 0.00%
987,231  49.68% 1,074,070 50.99% 1,094,134 53.33% 1,161,164 52.22% 1,234,461 52.47%
$1,987,680 100.00% $ 2,106,293 100.00% $ 2,051,687 100.00% $ 2,223,709 100.00% $ 2,352,564 100.00%
Latest Available
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Quarter 09/30/2014
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
$ 896,104 38.64% $ 942,156 38.41% $ 1,105,636 44.54% $1,105915 42.77% $ 1,354,403 46.00% $ 1,354,658 42.47%
170,400 7.35% 174,876 7.13% - 0.00% 54,993 2.13% 19,997 0.68% $ 142,993 4.48%
- 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% - 0.00% $ - 0.00%
1,252,740 54.01% 1,335,909 54.46% 1,376,846 55.46% 1424518 55.10% 1,570,219 53.32% $1,692,344  53.05%
$ 2,319,245 100.00% $ 2,452,941 100.00% $ 2,482,481 100.00% $ 2,585,426 100.00% $ 2,944,619 100.00% $ 3,189,994 100.00%

Total long-term debt includes the short-term portion of long-term debt and mandatory redeemable preferred stock.
Numbers may not foot to total due to rounding.

Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 3
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Louisville Gas and Electric Company
Case No. 2014-00372

Question No. 3
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Calculation of Average Test Year Capital Structure
12 Months Ended December 31, 2014

"000 Omitted"
Schedule 3b
Total
Long-Term  Short-Term Preferred Common Retained Common
Line Total Capital Debt Debt Stock Stock Earnings Equity

No. Item () (b) (© (d) () @ @) (h) 0)

1 Balance Beginning of Test Year 2,944,619 1,354,403 19,997 - 593,916 976,303 1,570,219
2 January 2014 2,975,637 1,354,431 24,998 - 593,916 1,002,292 1,596,209
3 February 2014 2,953,449 1,354,459 15,000 - 593,916 990,074 1,583,990
4 March 2014 2,964,062 1,354,488 14,999 - 593,916 1,000,659 1,594,575
5 April 2014 2,973,691 1,354,516 19,999 - 593,916 1,005,259 1,599,175
6 May 2014 2,983,523 1,354,544 49,997 - 593,916 985,066 1,578,982
7 June 2014 3,074,786 1,354,572 69,992 - 646,916 1,003,305 1,650,221
8 July 2014 3,100,826 1,354,601 80,995 - 646,916 1,018,314 1,665,230
9 August 2014 3,120,013 1,354,630 104,993 - 646,916 1,013,475 1,660,391
10 September 2014 3,189,994 1,354,658 142,993 - 666,916 1,025,428 1,692,344
11 October 2014 3,240,070 1,354,687 184,987 - 666,916 1,033,479 1,700,395
12 November 2014

13 December 2014

14 Total 33,520,669 14,899,990 728,950 - 6,838,076 11,053,652 17,891,729
15 Awverage Balance 3,047,333 1,354,545 66,268 - 621,643 1,004,877 1,626,521
16 Average Capitalization Ratios 44.45% 2.17% 0.00% 20.40% 32.98% 53.38%
17 End-of-period Capitalization Ratios 41.81% 5.71% 0.00% 20.58% 31.90% 52.48%

Note: (1) Common Stock (g) includes Common Stock, Common Stock Expense, Paid in Capital and Other Comprehensive Income.
Numbers may not foot to total due to rounding.
Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 3
Page 2 of 2
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LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 4
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough
Q-4. Provide the following:

a. A list of all outstanding issues of long-term debt as of the end of the latest
calendar year together with the related information as shown in Schedule 4a.

b. An analysis of short-term debt as shown in Schedule 4b as of the end of the
latest calendar year.

A-4. a. See attached.

b. See attached.



Louisville Gas and Electric Company
Case No. 2014-00372

Question No. 4a
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Schedule of Outstanding Long-Term Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Schedule 4a
Coupon Cost Rate Annualized
Type of Date of Date of Amount Interest Cost Rate at Maturity Bond Rating Type of Cost
Debt Issue Issue Maturity ~ Outstanding (5) Rate (1) at Issue (2) at 12/31/2013(3) at Issuance (4) Obligation Col. (d) x Col. (g)
Line No. (@ (b) (c) (d) (e) ) ()] (h) 0] @

1 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 5/19/2000  5/1/2027 $ 25,000,000  0.780% 0.780% 1.419% AAA; Aaa Secured $ 354,721
2 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 8/9/2000  8/1/2030 83,335,000 0.160% 0.160% 0.746% AAA; Aaa Secured 621,641
3 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 9/11/2001  9/1/2027 10,104,000  0.140% 0.140% 0.694% AAA; Aaa Secured 70,085
4 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 3/6/2002  9/1/2026 22,500,000  0.180% 0.180% 0.668% A-IA2; A1/P-1 Secured 150,348
5 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 3/6/2002  9/1/2026 27,500,000  0.180% 0.180% 0.557% A-/A2; A1/P-1 Secured 153,190
6 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 3/22/2002 11/1/2027 35,000,000 0.310% 0.310% 0.582% A-IA2; A1/P-1 Secured 203,551
7 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 3/22/2002 11/1/2027 35,000,000 0.310% 0.310% 0.581% A-IA2; A1/P-1 Secured 203,361
8 Pollution Control Bond (Variable Rate) 10/23/2002  10/1/2032 41,665,000 0.140% 0.140% 0.786% AAA; Aaa Secured 327,632
9 Pollution Control Bond (Put Rate) 11/20/2003  10/1/2033 128,000,000 1.650% 1.650% 2.014% AAA; Aaa Secured 2,578,248
10 Pollution Control Bond (Put Rate) 4/13/2005  2/1/2035 40,000,000 2.200% 2.200% 2.538% AAA; Aaa Secured 1,015,131
11 Pollution Control Bond (Put Rate) 4/26/2007  6/1/2033 31,000,000 1.150% 1.150% 1.456% AAA; Aaa Secured 451,498
12 Pollution Control Bond (Put Rate) 4/26/2007  6/1/2033 35,200,000 1.600% 1.600% 1.833% AAA; Aaa Secured 645,221
13 Pollution Control Bond 4/26/2007  6/1/2033 60,000,000  4.600% 4.600% 4.721% AAA; Aaa Secured 2,832,419
14 First Mortgage Bond 11/16/2010 11/15/2015 249,669,062 1.625% 1.698% 1.907% A; A2 Secured 4,761,243
15 First Mortgage Bond 11/16/2010 11/15/2040 282,222,200 5.125% 5.212% 5.254% A; A2 Secured 14,828,859
16 First Mortgage Bond 11/14/2013 11/15/2043 248,207,507 4.650% 4.129% 4.164% A-; A2 Secured 10,335,578
17 Revolving Credit Facility 1,337,740
18 Interest Rate Swaps 7,936,250
19 Called Bond Expense 68,451
20 S-3 SEC Shelf Registration 2,292
21
22 Total Long-Term Debt and Annualized Cost $ 1,354,402,769 $ 48,877,460
23
24 Annualized Cost Rate (Total col (j) / Total Col. (d)) 3.609%

(1) Nominal Rate. (For Variable Rate/Put Rate Bonds - Nominal Rate is interest rate as of 12/31/2013)

(2) Nominal Rate Plus Discount or Premium Amortization

(3) Nominal Rate Plus Discount or Premium Amortization and Issuance Cost and Credit Enhancement Cost
(4) Standard and Poor's / Moody's

(5) Bonds are shown net of discount.
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Louisville Gas and Electric Company
Case No. 2014-00372

Question No. 4b
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Schedule of Outstanding Short-Term Debt
For the 12 Months Ended December 31, 2013

Annualized

Type of Debt Amount Nominal Interest Effective Interest Interest Cost
Instrument Date of Issue Date of Maturity =~ Outstanding Rate Rate Col. (f) x Col. (d)

Line No. (@) (b) (c) (d) (e) ® )]
1 Commercial Paper Program Various Various $ 19,996,778 Various 0.290% $ 57,991
2 Total Short-Term Debt and Annualized Cost $ 19,996,778 $ 57,991
3 Annualized Cost Rate (Total col (g) / Total Col. (d)) 0.290%

4 Actual Interest Paid or Accrued on Short-Term Debt During the Test Year 221,086
5 Average Short-Term Debt - Format 3, Schedule 2 65,311,832
6 Test-Year Interest Cost Rate (Actual Interest / Average Short-Term Debt) 0.339%

Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 4(b)
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LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 5
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Q-5. Provide a list of all outstanding issues of preferred stock as of the end of the latest
calendar year as shown in Schedule 5.

A-5.  There were no outstanding issues of preferred stock during the twelve months
ended December 31, 2013.



LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 6

Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Provide the following:

a.

List all issues of common stock in the primary market during the 10 most
recent calendar years as shown in Schedule 6a.

The common stock information on a quarterly and yearly basis for the five
most recent calendar years available, and through the latest available quarter
as shown in Schedule 6b.

The market prices for common stock for each month during the five most
recent calendar years and for succeeding months through the date the
application is filed. List all stock splits and stock dividends by date and type.

There were no issues of LG&E common stock during the 10 most recent
calendar years.

See attached.

All LG&E outstanding common stock is held by LG&E and KU Energy LLC,
and is not listed on a stock exchange, thus LG&E common stock does not
have a market price. There have been no stock splits or stock dividends during
the five most recent calendar years and for the succeeding months through the
date the application is filed.
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Louisville Gas and Electric Company Arbough
Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 6b
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Quarterly and Annual Common Stock Information
For the Periods Shown

Average Book Earnings Dividend Return on
Period Number of Shares Value Per Share (1) Rate per Share (2) Average Common (3)
Equity Outstanding ($) (%) ($) (%)
2009 Calendar Year:
1st Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 0.22 1.64 0.38%
2nd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.01 2.11 1.79%
3rd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 2.35 0 4.15%
4th Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 0.89 0 1.53%
Annual 21,294,223 425,170,424 4.47 3.76 7.78%
2010 Calendar Year:
1st Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.52 1.41 2.59%
2nd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 0.66 0 1.12%
3rd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 2.83 1.17 4.67%
4th Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 0.98 0 1.57%
Annual 21,294,223 425,170,424 6.00 2.58 9.94%
2011 Calendar Year:
1st Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.84 0.81 2.90%
2nd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 0.94 1.17 1.48%
3rd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 2.02 0.61 3.15%
4th Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.03 1.31 1.59%
Annual 21,294,223 425,170,424 5.83 3.91 9.12%
2012 Calendar Year:
1st Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.18 0.70 1.82%
2nd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.18 0.75 1.81%
3rd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 2.02 0.76 3.05%
4th Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.39 1.31 2.07%
Annual 21,294,223 425,170,424 577 3.53 8.77%
2013 Calendar Year:
1st Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 2.08 0.89 3.06%
2nd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.34 1.36 1.91%
3rd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 2.30 0.89 3.23%
4th Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.73 1.50 2.38%
Annual 21,294,223 425,170,424 7.45 4.65 10.57%
2014 Calendar Year:
1st Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 241 1.27 3.25%
2nd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 1.67 1.55 2.20%
3rd Quarter 21,294,223 425,170,424 212 1.08 2.70%

(1) Louisville Gas and Electric Company does not report earnings per share numbers, these are calculated for this response.

(2) LG&E and KU Energy LLC (LKE) is Louisville Gas and Electric Company's sole shareholder. Louisville Gas and
Electric Company pays dividends to LKE.

(3) Return on average common equity is calculated using two point average for quarterly calculations and five point average
of common equity for annual calculations.



LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 7
Responding Witness: Daniel K. Arbough

Provide a computation of fixed charge coverage ratios for the 10 most recent
calendar years as shown in Schedule 7.

See attached.

The Louisville Gas and Electric Company’s current first mortgage bond indenture
does not contain a covenant for the fixed charge coverage ratio; therefore, the
calculation of the fixed charge coverage ratio on the attachment is based solely
upon the Securities and Exchange Commission Method.



Louisville Gas and Electric Company
Case No. 2014-00372

Computation of Fixed Charge Coverage Ratios
For the Periods as Shown
"'000,000 Omitted™

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Earnings:
Net Income 96 129 117 120 90 95 128 124 123 159
Add:
Federal income taxes - current 34 73 61 34 37 26 29 12 2 52
State income taxes - current 13 10 11 7 4 4 6 8 3 16
Deferred federal income taxes - net 11 (13) ©) 10 2) 14 34 52 65 28
Deferred state income taxes - net 1) 2) 1) 2 3) 2 3 2 5 )
Investment tax credit - net 4 4) 1) 5 4 1 ?3) ?3) ?3) )
Mark to market impact of derivative instruments - - - - 35 (20) (19) - - -
Fixed charges 36 41 47 53 60 46 48 46 44 44
Earnings (A) 185 234 227 231 225 168 226 241 235 295
Fixed Charges (1):
Interest Charges per statements of income 33 37 41 50 58 44 46 44 42 42
Preferred Stock dividends per statements of income 2 3 4 1 - - - - - -
Add:
One-third of rentals charged to operating expense 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Fixed charges (B) 36 41 47 53 60 46 48 46 44 44
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges (A) = (B) 5.14 5.71 4.83 4.36 3.75 3.65 4.71 5.24 5.34 6.70

Note (1): Fixed charges do not include long-term purchased power obligations. These are considered by rating agencies in evaluating the financial condition of the Company.

The above calculations exclude all purchase accounting adjustments

Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 7
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LOUISVILLE GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY

Response to Commission Staff’s First Request for Information
Dated November 14, 2014

Case No. 2014-00372
Question No. 8
Responding Witness: Valerie L. Scott

Provide the utility's internal accounting manuals, directives, and policies and
procedures.

See attached.
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Louisville Gas & Electric Company
Case No. 2014-00372

Internal Accounting Policies Index

Subject

Balance Sheet Acct Reconciliation

Journal Entries

Intercompany Billing & Settlement

Consolidation Process

Materiality

Materiality - Appendix A - Error Assessment Memo
Materiality - Appendix B - Guidance for reporting SOX Issues in EAMs
SEC Reporting Requirements

Subsequent Events

Asset Liability Classification

Waived Adjustments

Financial Statements Disclosures and Filing Requirements
Appendix 1 Backup Certification Organization Chart
Derivatives and Hedging

Contractual Review

Goodwill

Leases

Contingencies

Pension and Postretirement Plans

COA and GLAFF Updates

Oracle System Interface Balancing

EiS Governance

Capital - Additions and Retirements Policy and Procedures
Capital - AFUDC Policy and Procedures

Capital - AFUDC Policy and Procedures Appendix A
Capital - ARO Policies and Procedures

Capital - Depreciation

Asset Impairment

Impairment Questionnaire - Part A

Impairment Questionnaire - Part B

Capital - Hardware and Software Capitalization
Capitalized Property Taxes

Capital Project Approval

Joint Ownership-Use Assets

Appendix A LKE Allocation
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Subject

Contract Retainage

Oracle Burdening Process

AP-Manual Accrual

Appendix - Excess Obsolete Inventory Quarterly Form
Inventory Management

Comprehensive Spreadsheet

Reserve for Bad Debts

Coal Inventory Valuation

Escheatment

Discounting

CSV of Key Man Life Ins

Compliance with GAAP

Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities
Debt and Interest Risk Management
Intracompany Interest

Prepaids

Liquidated Damages

Lower of Cost or Market Inventory Valuation
Sundry Billing

Purchase Accounting

Emission Allowances

Regulatory Asset Liability

Regulatory Asset Liability Policy Appendix A
Guarantees

Variable Interest Entities

Unbilled Revenues

Regulatory Compliance

Renewable Energy Certificates

Technical Research and Whitepapers

Technical Research and Whitepapers Template
Policy & Procedures Development & Maintenance
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Policy: All LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE” or the “Company”) (including its subsidiaries)
balance sheet accounts will be reconciled and reviewed at least quarterly.

Procedure: The balance sheet reconciliation procedure is performed per the detailed
instructions below.

Scope: All Company balance sheet accounts (referenced as simply “accounts” in the remainder
of this policy), other than accounts belonging to Oracle consolidation companies since they have
mitigating controls (see cycle/transaction 80.07 Control Activity 2 in the Sarbanes-Oxley
Compliance documentation) and since Hyperion Financial Management is the system of record
for consolidation.

Objective of Procedure: The objective of reconciling balance sheet accounts is to detect any
misclassifications or omissions made through journal entries or integrated systems within the
balance sheet accounts and to ensure completeness and accuracy of the accounts. The procedure
assists the accountants in identifying and investigating unusual items in the accounts.
Assignment of accounts to be reconciled to specific accountants is made consistent with
appropriate segregation of duties.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:

1. See the 354 — Materiality Policy for determining quantitative and qualitative measures for
purposes of this policy.

2. All accounts must be reviewed for reconciliation procedures:

e All open accounts must be assigned on the account control listing to a department to
ensure that reconciliations are performed or that accounts are open only because other
companies need them. (If an account is open for one Oracle company, it must be open for
all Oracle companies. In order to detect a coding error, open accounts that should have a
zero balance must be verified.)

e All closed accounts must be either analyzed or contain a zero balance. (Accounts in Oracle
can be closed even if they have a balance. Closed accounts can be reopened, if necessary,
to continue processing of other systems (e.g., PeopleSoft) where projects have been
charged using a closed account in order to prevent delays during monthly closings.)
Closed accounts requiring analysis will be included on the balance sheet reconciliation
checklist.

e An account-level trial balance must be run monthly by Corporate Accounting to determine
the completeness of the account control listing. If the books are reopened after the control
listing has been prepared, the balances in the control listing must be updated and the
control listing re-balanced to ensure that it nets to zero when including the current year net
income.  (See cycle/transaction 80.05 Control Activity 9 in the Sarbanes-Oxley
Compliance documentation.)
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3. Periodically (annually at a minimum) all accounts meeting the criteria above will be

reviewed to determine their risk ranking. The manager of the department assigned to each
account will review the previous rankings and determine if they need to be changed. Both
quantitative and qualitative factors will be used to determine an overall risk ranking to be
applied to the account, as follows:

High Risk Medium Risk* Low Risk
Material balance Yes Yes or No No
Material activity Yes Yes or No No
Material qualitative Yes Yes or No No
factor

*Any combination including both Yes’s and No’s is Medium Risk.

4.

A material balance is defined as having greater absolute value than the threshold per the
354 — Materiality Policy identifying High-Risk or complex journal entries and key SOX
controls, which is 1.75% of full year pretax income from LG&E, KU or LKE, from the
current year budget/forecast as stated in the waived adjustment file for the most recent
quarter ended at the time of the risk assessment. This materiality threshold will be stated in
the risk assessment file and used to calculate risk level.

Material activity is defined as having average annual debits or average annual credits which
are greater than the materiality threshold as defined above. The average annual debits and
credits are calculated using the totals of the most recent twelve months’ transactions as of the
month used for the risk assessment, divided by 12.

Material qualitative factor is defined as the calculated average of the seven qualitative
factors listed in the 354 — Materiality Policy (not including the “risk level of the account
involved”), as ranked from 1 to 3, where the average is >2.5.

Managers may override the risks to a lower level than determined per the table above at their
discretion, but must document the justification for their override in the risk assessment file.
Overrides of High Risk must be approved via e-mail by the Director, Accounting and
Regulatory Reporting or the Controller. Documentation of such approval must be retained in
the folder where the risk assessment file is saved. Approval is required only when the initial
override occurs and will be carried forward in subsequent updates to the file.

When new accounts are requested, an Account Segment Change Request Form is prepared.
One section of that form is the qualitative risks (for balance sheet reconciliation ranking).
New accounts are required to be ranked on a low, medium, high scale for seven criteria and
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an eighth segment asks if the account should be given a qualitative risk ranking of 3 (high)
regardless of the responses to the seven preceding questions. These rankings are then entered
into a master file detailing the rankings of all accounts by an Accounting Analyst in
Corporate Accounting and the risk as determined is entered into Oracle by the Senior
Accounting Systems Support Analyst.

5. Changes in financial statement classification for existing accounts also require an Account
Segment Change Request Form. The risk section of the form must be completed for these
changes. These rankings are then entered into a master file detailing the rankings of all
accounts by an Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting and the risk as determined is
entered into Oracle by the Senior Accounting Systems Support Analyst.

6. Subsequent to the risk assessment, managers may become aware of significant changes in the
usage, activity and/or balance of an account which may indicate a change needed to the risk
level. The manager should submit any needed changes in risk via e-mail to the Senior
Accounting Systems Support Analyst who will make the changes in Oracle.

7. Managers must notify the reconciliation preparers of any change in risk.

8. A centralized control listing of all open balance sheet accounts will be created monthly by an
Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting and saved to the shared drive
fs1\acctpolicies\Account Recs Procedures The listing will contain (at a minimum) the
account number, the account description, the current month balance, the department name,
the reviewer’s initials and date reviewed, the U.S. GAAP financial statement line item and
the FERC (Utility) financial statement line item. Optional columns for the preparer’s initials
and date prepared will also be included. This listing will identify accounts according to their
risk, per Item 3 above:

e High — These accounts must be reconciled before noon on the 7 working day
and the reconciliation reviewed by the 9" work day of each month following
the month end.

e Medium — These accounts must be reconciled and the reconciliation reviewed
by the 14th work day of each month following the quarter end and by the last
working day following non-quarter-end months.

e Low — These accounts must be reconciled and the reconciliation reviewed at
least quarterly by the end of the month following the quarter end, or by one
working day prior to the issue date of the 10-Q or 10-K, whichever is sooner,
except for bank reconciliations which must be reconciled and reviewed
monthly per the Cash Reconciliation Policy. However, for reconciliations not
complete by the 14™ work day following quarter end, a review of the balance
must take place with documentation of such review signed and dated by an
Accounting Analyst or Associate in each department and then attached to the
final reconciliation when it is complete. Low risk accounts will be marked
with “N/A” in the non-quarter-end months. However, if a preparer wishes to
prepare them on a non-quarter, the “N/A” can be overridden.




Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 6 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 8/27/14
Page 4 of 6

250 - Balance Sheet Account Reconciliation

For zero-balance accounts (other than ZBA bank accounts), a reconciliation does not have to
be prepared separately, but only require a reviewer’s sign-off on the checklist to confirm
that the balance is zero and should be zero, quarterly.

All account reconciliations, including the process for zero-balance accounts, must be
completed and reviewed by the end of the month following the quarter-end, or by one
working day prior to the issue date of the 10-Q or 10-K, whichever is sooner. The checklist
is reviewed monthly for completeness, with resolution of any open items needed to
complete the checklist by the last business day of each month, or by one working day prior
to the issue date of the 10-Q or 10-K, whichever is sooner. (See cycle/transaction 80.05
Control Activity 9 in the Sarbanes-Oxley Compliance documentation.)

9. The Accounting Analyst or Associate responsible for the reconciliation will review the
monthly transactions in each active balance sheet account and prepare a reconciliation of the
account. Reconciling items must be evaluated and resolved in a timely manner.

10. Reconciliations will be maintained in hard copy in a file or binder and contain the following
elements, at a minimum (alternative formats may be appropriate, but these elements must
still be contained on each reconciliation):

e The company name;

The month;

The general ledger account name;

The general ledger account number;

A brief description of the account and its use;

The ending balance per the general ledger,

Support of the general ledger balance. The best, most independent source

should be used:

i. Examples include - subsidiary ledgers, bank statements, support
prepared by other departments, source documentation from other
systems, invoices, contracts, or rate orders; or

ii. In cases where the balance cannot be tied to a specific source,
evidence of analysis of what makes up the account balance, ensuring
that the transactions in the account appear to be reasonable.

iii. Electronic evidence which is used to calculate, develop or support the
amounts in the SEC financial statements, including disclosures and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, must be provided to
document the following:

o Verification of query parameters for reports run from an IT system

to document time periods, accounts, business unit, etc. used as
parameters;
o Tie out to an independent source, when available and appropriate;
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11.

o Tie out to a general ledger balance, when available and
appropriate; and/or
0 Changes made to source data downloaded from an IT system.

0 When multiple queries are exported to a spreadsheet, each
query, in its original form, must be included on a tab in the
spreadsheet and a lead sheet must be used to perform relevant
calculations from those tabs.

0 See also PPL’s guidance regarding Electronic Evidence
Requirements.

e Evidence of reconciliation of the ending balance per the general ledger to the
supporting documentation. The preparer must also agree the ending balance
per the general ledger to the balance on the control listing.

e Evidence of pre-close preparation by noon on the 7" work day and review by
the 9" work day in the case of high risk accounts,

e The reconciling items, individually listed, including a detailed explanation of

the item, whether the item is the result of an error (errors must be evaluated

based on the 354 - Materiality Policy), a status update of the last action taken
and the date the item is expected to be resolved,;

The source of all amounts presented on the reconciliation. ;

Column headings and line item descriptions for all data presented;

The file path and file name; and

The sign-off and date signed for both the preparer and the reviewer. (The

reviewer will generally be the responsible manager or a delegate assigned by

the manager). The reviewer’s sign-off indicates that the balance sheet
reconciliation was completed according to the requirements listed above and
that the balance on the reconciliation ties to the control listing.

NOTE: Electronic evidence is defined as reports, queries, spreadsheets, e-mails or other data
generated by an IT application, reporting database or End User Computing Tool (EUCT) that
is used in the performance of internal controls over financial reporting that are in the scope of
the company’s Sarbanes-Oxley assessment. EUCTSs are applications that usually reside on an
end user’s desktop, and therefore are not traditionally subject to rigorous application and
general computer controls. Microsoft Excel spreadsheets and Access databases are examples
of common EUCTSs.

A manager or a delegate assigned by the manager will evaluate all unreconciled items or
reconciling errors monthly to determine whether further action should be taken. Reconciling
items may be written off at the manager’s discretion. Reconciling items requiring write off
are to be appropriately documented and are subject to review and approval consistent with
the limits contained in the Authority Limit Matrices.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

Balance sheet reconciliations.
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e Balance sheet reconciliation control listing on fs1\acctpolicies\Account Recs Procedures
e All reconciliations are stored on a shared drive accessible by all of the members of a given
department.

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
None

Regulatory Requirements:
None

Reference:

Authority Limit Matrix Company Policy

Cash Reconciliation Company Policy

354 — Materiality Policy

Electronic Evidence Requirements (see PPL Policies directory on the acctrestricted drive)

Key Contact:
Manager, Corporate Accounting

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
200 — Account Analysis Procedures

Administrative Responsibility:
Controller
Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Date created: 9/30/04
Dates revised: 10/29/04, 8/19/05, 12/02/05, 6/16/06, 4/8/09, 9/1/09, 4/20/11, 8/5/11, 3/4/13,
11/12/13, 12/17/13, 7/16/14, 8/27/14
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Policy: Manual journal entries are necessary to record transactions which are not included in the
Oracle General Ledger via an automated interface, to record non-customer related transactions in
the Customer Care Solution (“CCS”), and to record consolidation entries in the Hyperion
Financial Management (HFM) system in order to complete the financial statements.

Procedure: Journal entries are prepared, entered and posted in Oracle, CCS and HFM by
authorized personnel per the detailed instructions below.

Scope: Includes journal entries for companies on Oracle either uploaded via Application
Desktop Integrator (“ADI”") (with a source of Spreadsheet) or entered directly into Oracle (with a
source of Manual), manual journal entries for companies on CCS and manual journal entries
entered into HFM. Excludes automated journal entries created by interfaces and Oracle mass
allocations.

Objective of Procedure: Journal entries must be authorized, accurate, timely and complete.
General Requirements
Detailed Procedures Performed:

All-inclusive checklists are maintained by Corporate Accounting on a shared drive accessible to
all departments. Separate files are maintained for LG&E, KU and all other companies. For
LG&E and KU, the files contain one tab for standard Oracle journal entries (routine monthly
entries) , one for non-standard Oracle (ad hoc, non-routine) entries and one tab for CCS standard
entries (KU only). In the file for all other companies, the non-standard journal entry section is
below the standard journal entry section and a separate tab exists for HFM entries. The
checkilists list the journal entry number, general description, the initials of the persons who
uploaded and approved the entry, the date posted, an intercompany indicator, a reversing entry
indicator and optional comments. If a standard entry does not need to be completed for a certain
month, this fact is indicated by “N/A”.

Supporting documents needed to prepare journal entries are sent to or compiled by the
department responsible for the entries. Electronic evidence which is used to calculate, develop or
support the amounts in the SEC financial statements, including disclosures and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, must be provided to document the following:

e Verification of query parameters for reports run from an IT system to document time
periods, accounts, business unit, etc. used as parameters;

e Tie out to an independent source, when available and appropriate;

e Tie out to a general ledger balance, when available and appropriate; and/or

e Changes made to source data downloaded from an IT system.
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When multiple queries are exported to a spreadsheet, each query, in its original form, must be
included on a tab in the spreadsheet and a lead sheet must be used to perform relevant
calculations from those tabs.

Electronic evidence is defined as reports, queries, spreadsheets, e-mails or other data generated
by an IT application, reporting database or End User Computing Tool (EUCT) that is used in the
performance of internal controls over financial reporting that are in the scope of the company’s
Sarbanes-Oxley assessment. EUCTSs are applications that usually reside on an end user’s
desktop, and therefore are not traditionally subject to rigorous application and general computer
controls. Microsoft Excel spreadsheets and Access databases are examples of common EUCTSs.

See also PPL’s guidance regarding Electronic Evidence Requirements.
If the journal supporting documents contain confidential information, the documents will be
maintained in the originating department and a footnote indicating the location of the documents

will be contained on the lower left side of the journal.

Oracle Journal Entries:

Oracle journal entries are prepared using an ADI template spreadsheet unless the journal entry
needs to be keyed directly into Oracle as an exception, as discussed below. The ADI template is
a standard form which may not be changed without approval from the Manager, Corporate
Accounting and the Senior Oracle Business Support Analyst. All journal entries must include a
description of the transaction and/or the reason for the journal entry.

The ADI spreadsheet should contain the following elements (see Appendix A for example):
ADI Journal Entry Header Information:

e Category: Describes the type of journal entry, based on a predefined list in Oracle
selected by the user, except that “Prior Period Adjustment” must be used as the Category
if the entry should have been made in another period.

e Source: Describes how the journal entry was input into Oracle. Journal entries uploaded
from ADI must have a Spreadsheet source.

e Currency: Lists the type of currency in which the journal entry is being booked. The only
currency allowed is USD (U.S. Dollars) or STAT for statistics.

e Accounting Date: Lists the date which determines the General Ledger period in which the
journal entry will be posted. This field is normally limited to the current open period for
which the books are being closed and to the next open period. Occasionally, the books
are reopened to allow posting to a prior period.

e Group ID: The employee number of the person uploading the journal entry, excluding the
leading letter and leading zeros.
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Batch Name: The 3 letter initials in ALL-CAPS of the employee or of the department
preparing the journal entry.

Journal Name: The unique journal entry number stored in Oracle, using the following
syntax: J###-cccc-mmyy, where ### = 3 digit journal entry number from the journal
entry checklist, cccc = 4 digit company number, mm = 2 digit month and yy = 2 digit
year.

Journal Description: A short description of the journal entry.

Reverse Journal: Yes, if set to auto-reverse in Oracle; No, or null, if not set to auto-
reverse in Oracle

Reversal Period: Completed only if Reverse Journal is set to Yes; defines the General
Ledger period in which the auto-reversal will post in Oracle. This field is limited to the
current open period for which the books are being closed and the next open period.

ADI Journal Entry Line Information:

Upload flag column: All lines to be uploaded must be populated with a flag.
General Ledger Accounting Flexfield (“GLAFF”) Columns: These columns make up the
account number to which the journal entry will be posted.

o Company: Four-digit code with a leading zero, generally representing the legal
entity or other entity set up in Oracle.

0 Product: Three-digit code, generally denoting whether the charge relates to
electric, gas, common or wholesale products.

o Organization: Six-digit code with a leading zero, representing the cost center
which is being charged or credited by the transaction.

o Expenditure Org: Six-digit code with a leading zero, representing the cost center
which is the source of the transaction.

0 Account: Six-digit code for the natural account number based on the Federal
Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) chart of accounts, as expanded by
LG&E and KU Energy LLC.

o Intercompany: Four-digit affiliate company code populated on all intercompany
transaction journal entry lines. This field is populated with zeros on non-
intercompany journal entry lines.

0 Expenditure Type: Four-digit code with a leading zero further describing the type
of transaction.

o0 Location: Four-digit code representing the physical location of the transaction.

Debit and Credit: Dollar amount of the transaction. An amount can only be entered in
either the debit or credit column. Although Oracle will accept negative debit and credits,
they should be entered as positive numbers.

Line Description: Specific journal entry line description of the transaction. May use
journal entry header description, if no other specific description needed. This field must
always be populated in order to send the journal entry description to Project Accounting.
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e Stat Amount: Only populated when posting statistical data (i.e., tons, mmbtu).
e Line DFF Segment for a Web ADI template:
o0 Line DFF column is segregated by a period/decimal point — Yes if transaction is
project-related. Example: Yes.Project.Task (no period after Task).
o If no project/task is being charged, type No in the column or leave the column
blank.

ADI Journal Entry Footer Information:

e Description: This field must contain a complete description of the journal entry. It must
provide enough information for someone unfamiliar with the transaction to understand
the purpose of the entry.

e Prepared By: The person preparing the journal entry signs or initials here (include the
date prepared).

e Upload/Concurrent ID: The Concurrent ID number for the journal entry upload job in
Oracle must be written here when the upload is successful.

e Approved By: The approver of the journal entry signs or initials here (include date
approved). All non-standard journal entries and standard journal entries with total debits
greater than $50,000 must be approved either by the manager or by another person with
the requisite level of knowledge. Each manager may determine whether approval is
required and at what level for standard journal entries with total debits less than or equal
to $50,000.

e Posted By: The person posting the journal entry, if different than person who uploaded it,
signs or initials here (include posted date).

e Posted/Concurrent ID: The Concurrent ID number for the Oracle posting job is written
here after the job report is checked on-line to ensure that there are no posting errors.

ADI journal entries are printed and all supporting documentation must be attached, such that a
knowledgeable third party could understand the journal entry. If the supporting documentation is
too voluminous to be attached or confidential, the entry shall state where the detailed information
IS maintained.

The journal entries are then uploaded into Oracle. Validation occurs at two stages. The first stage
is based on General Ledger validation and prevents the journal entry from being uploaded to the
interface table until all corrections are made to the ADI template. General Ledger validation
includes the following: The category, source, currency, reversal period, and each account
segment value are compared against tables containing valid and enabled lists of values. The
accounting date is checked to ensure that it falls within an open period. Cross-validation rules
control which account segment values can be used together. If the journal entry does not balance,
a warning is given to the user who must correct the entry to be in balance. An unbalanced entry
cannot be uploaded to Oracle.
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The second stage of journal entry validation occurs against set-up values within the Project
Accounting system and occurs after the journal entry is uploaded to the interface table. The
system checks to ensure that the specified project and task numbers exist and are not closed.
Also, the system compares the account segment values set up on the projects and tasks to the
General Ledger account number on the same journal entry line to ensure that they match. In
addition, certain accounts require a project and task and the system verifies that a project and
task are entered for all journal entry lines containing the project-required accounts.

The person uploading the journal entry reviews the upload error report and if there are errors,
must query all journal entries under his user id and delete them from the interface table before
correcting the errors and re-uploading. Therefore, it is recommended that only one journal entry
be uploaded at a time with a review of the error report for each one before uploading the next
one.

After the journal entry is uploaded with no errors, the Concurrent ID number of the upload job is
written on the appropriate line of the journal entry hard copy. The journal entry is then available
for posting. The person selects the journal entries to be posted in Oracle, submits the posting job,
and checks the job error report. If there are errors, the person who uploaded the journal entry
corrects the errors and the posting job is resubmitted and the error report is checked again. When
there are no errors, the Concurrent ID number of the posting job is written on the appropriate line
of the hard copy of the journal entry.

On occasion, in order to correct errors, certain journal entries may need to be booked which
override the validation between the General Ledger and the Project Accounting system. These
entries are always non-standard entries and are therefore always reviewed and approved.

Managers are not to be the direct preparer of journal entries or journal entry support, except as
authorized by their respective senior manager or officer.

Reversals of Journal Entries

Journal entries uploaded into Oracle may be reversed in Oracle by clicking the Reverse button on
the journal entry, or they may be auto-reversed as a batch if they have been uploaded as
Reversing with the Reversal Period specified. Entries posted in Oracle can be reversed in the
current or the next accounting period. When practicable, entries should be reversed in Oracle
instead of by preparing a new manual reversing entry. Reversals of journal entries should be
noted on the journal entry form by adding the following information to the footer section of the
original copy of posted journal entry:

e Reversal Upload/Concurrent ID: The Concurrent ID number for the journal entry reversal
job in Oracle must be written here when the reversal is successful.
e Posted By: The person posting the auto-reversal
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e Date: The date the auto-reversal was posted

e Reversal Posted/Concurrent ID: The Concurrent ID number for the Oracle posting job
(on the reversal) is written here after the job report is checked on-line to ensure that there
are no posting errors.

In some cases the original copy of the posted journal entry may have already been imaged into
Oracle IPM and sent to off-site storage. This most likely occurs when an entry has been posted
in one period and is being reversed in a subsequent period and it was not known at the time of
the posting of the original entry that it would be subsequently reversed. In these cases, a copy of
the original entry and supporting documentation should be printed from Oracle IPM and the
information addressed above included on the copy of the entry. If the reversing entry is not to be
included in the support of a current period entry, the reversing entry should be separately logged
on the checklist in a separate Reversal section at the bottom as “Reversal of [original journal
entry number] and imaged into Oracle IPM.

Out of Period Adjustments and Reclassifications

Out-of-period adjustments are entries which pertain to and should have been booked in a
different period. These adjustments may include reclassifications or other entries, including
system entries which are out of scope for this policy. Preferably, these entries should be booked
as separate non-standard journal entries using the “Prior Period Adjustment” journal category
with the amounts and periods they relate to clearly identified in the journal lines. In some
situations, it may not be practical to separate an out-of-period adjustment component from a
standard entry. In these situations, a copy of the out-of period component must be provided to the
Regulatory Accounting and Reporting Department if LG&E or KU are affected, or to the
Sarbanes-Oxley Department if only non-utility companies are affected.

Reclassifications which are non-routine and non-recurring must not be added to a standard
journal entry, but must be booked using a non-standard journal entry. The Manager, Financial
Reporting must be notified of any significant reclassifications between financial statement line
items which affect prior reporting periods if no update to the waived adjustments file is required.

The sign-off by the preparer and the reviewer of out-of-period and reclassification journal entries
indicates an assessment of the potential Sarbanes-Oxley impact was performed (e.g., an
adjustment not timely identified by an internal control could indicate a potential internal control
deficiency) and any potential internal control deficiency was communicated to the Sarbanes-
Oxley Compliance Department.

Review and Approval of Entries
The Accounting Manager or her/his delegate must review and approve all non-standard journal

entries, any new standard entries the first time that they are prepared and any entry (standard or
non-standard) that has total debits greater than $5 million, prior to closing the books. If a journal
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entry changes for any reason after it has been reviewed and approved, it must be re-reviewed and
re-approved by the manager or her/his delegate.

Journal entries, which meet any of following criteria, must be reviewed and approved by the
respective Director or Officer and the Controller prior to closing the books:

e Non-recurring entries that have a pre-tax income impact of $5 million or greater per
legal entity, including the LKE consolidated legal entity

e Non-recurring entries that have a financial statement line item impact of $20 million
or greater

e Non-recurring entries that relate to important issues which involve significant
judgment

e Entries posted after noon on workday 5 (with the exception of recurring consolidation
and STAT only entries) or the reversal of any entries into the current month after
noon on workday 5.

Corporate Accounting will send PPL a copy of the entry if any of the first three criteria above are
met. An entry shall not be broken into several pieces to avoid meeting any of the criteria above.

If the entry is greater than the thresholds above, but only reclassifies between different GLAFFs
that roll up to the same financial statement line, it is exempt from the process above.

Any Director or Officer, including the Controller should not be the first level reviewer of any
entries unless he or she has an individual contributor direct report who is the Journal Entry
Preparer.

Each individual who signs off on a journal entry is signing as to performing the following
functions:

I. Journal Entry Preparer sign-off indicates:

e Theentry is prepared in accordance with GAAP and regulatory requirements.

e All the relevant information has been included in the journal entry. Calculations or
information provided by other departments have been verified.

e A description is included in the entry, identifying the purpose of the entry and any
unusual or non-recurring items for that entry.

e Line items are consistent with and all details have been agreed to supporting
documentation.

e All spreadsheets prepared by the Journal Entry Preparer and used in the preparation of the
entry are maintained in accordance with the 950 — Comprehensive Spreadsheet Policy
and PPL’s Guidelines for Spreadsheets and Other End User Computing Tools.



Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 16 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 8-1-14
Page 8 of 13

251 - Journal Entries Policy and Procedures

e Confirmation has been received from the source of all spreadsheets prepared by others
and used in the preparation of the entry that the spreadsheet complies with the
requirements in the 950 —Comprehensive Spreadsheet Policy and PPL’s Guidelines for
Spreadsheets and Other End User Computing Tools.

e For out-of-period or reclassification journal entries, potential internal control deficiencies
have been communicated to the Sarbanes-Oxley Compliance Department.

I1. Journal Entry Reviewer/Approver (first level review, could be a manager, a manager’s
delegate, or a Director/ Officer who has an individual contributor direct report who is the Journal
Entry Preparer) sign-off indicates:

e The reviewer/approver has requisite knowledge of the subject matter.

e Known issues associated with the journal entry have been addressed.

e The journal entry has been prepared in accordance with GAAP and regulatory
requirements.

e The accounts affected in the entry are reasonable considering the purpose of the entry.

e The journal entry description is complete, relevant to the journal and factually correct.

e Line items are consistent with and all details have been agreed to supporting
documentation.

e For out-of-period or reclassification journal entries, potential internal control deficiencies
have been communicated to the Sarbanes-Oxley Compliance Department.

I11. Manager Review/Approval (required when above manager-level approval is required) sign-
off indicates:

e The journal entry has been prepared in accordance with GAAP and regulatory
requirements.

e The Balance Sheet and Income Statement effects are reasonable based on the purpose of
entry.

e The journal entry description is complete and factually correct.

e The journal entry addresses known outstanding issues associated with the entry.

IV. Director or Officer and Controller Review/Approval sign-off indicates:

e The journal entry has been prepared in accordance with GAAP and regulatory
requirements.

e The Balance Sheet and Income Statement effects are reasonable based on the purpose of
entry.

e The journal entry addresses known outstanding issues associated with the entry.

During close, an Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting runs an EiS report that list the
entries that require further review/approval and provides the list to the Controller and the
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Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting so that they can perform the necessary
reviews/approvals. The Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting keeps track of the journal
entries reviewed to ensure that all of the required entries have been approved before the closing
meeting with PPL on workday 7. All entries that meet the first three criteria under Review and
Approval of Entries above are included on a monthly summary to PPL developed from the EiS
report.

During close, each Accounting Manager or his or her delegate reviews the centralized journal
entry checklist saved on the \\fs1\acctpolicies share drive and filtered by his or her department to
ensure that all necessary journal entries have been completed. Once all entries have been
completed for a department, the Accounting Managers or their delegates then send an e-mail to
the Manager and Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting confirming that all entries have
been posted for the month.

During close, each Accounting Manager or his or her delegate reviews the centralized journal
entry checklist saved on the \\fs1\acctpolicies share drive and filtered by his or her department to
ensure that all necessary journal entries have been signed off or marked as not applicable. Once
all entries have been signed-off or marked as not applicable, the Accounting Managers or their
delegates then send an e-mail to the Manager and Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting
confirming that all entries have been signed off or marked as not applicable.

On workday 4, an Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting reviews the journal entry
checklist to ensure that all necessary journal entries have been posted to Oracle by running a list
of posted entries from EiS reports and comparing it in Excel to the printed company checklists.
After open journal entry sign-offs are resolved, the checklists incorporating the query result are
signed by the Accounting Analyst and approved and signed by the Manager, Corporate
Accounting or his/her delegate. These EiS reports are run again by the Accounting Analyst in
Corporate Accounting on workday 5 and when all entries, including STAT entries, are
completed showing only entries posted after workday 4. These queries are compared to the
updated centralized journal entry checklist to ensure that all journal entries have been posted to
Oracle and are signed by the preparer and approved by the Manager, Corporate Accounting or
his/her delegate.

All journal entries are compiled with their support and are maintained in the accounting
departments until they are sent to Xerox for document imaging into Oracle IPM normally by the
middle of each month. Prior to sending the journal entries to Xerox for document imaging, the
Senior Secretary performs a final comparison of the journal entry checklist to the Oracle listing
of posted entries. The Senior Secretary also ensures that all entries listed on the checklist are
included for imaging. After all of the journal entries are imaged in Oracle IPM, they are sent to
off-site storage.
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CCS Journal Entries:

Supporting documents needed to prepare journal entries in CCS are sent to or compiled by
Corporate Accounting or Revenue Accounting. Journal entries are then entered directly into
CCS by the accounting staff.

CCS Journal Entry Header Information:

e Document Date: Lists the date the entry is entered into CCS.

e Posting Date: Lists the effective date for the entry.

e Reference: The unique journal entry number assigned to the entry, using the following
syntax: C###-cccc-mmyy, where ### = 3 digit journal entry number from the journal
entry checklist, cccc = 4 digit company number, mm = 2 digit month and yy = 2 digit
year.

e Doc Header Text: Provides a general description of the purpose of the journal entry.

CCS Journal Entry Line Information:

e G/L acct: Six-digit code for the natural account number based on the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) chart of accounts, as expanded by PPL.

e D/C: Lists if the line is a debit or credit.

e Amount in doc. Curr.: Provides the amount of the entry for the specific line. All
numbers are entered as positives within CCS.

e Assignment no.: Displays additional information. Any project and task information can
be included for reference. This is a free character field.

The CCS journal entries are printed and all supporting documentation must be attached, such that
a knowledgeable third party could understand the journal entry.

After the journal entry is entered and “saved as completed”, the document number of the saved
entry is written on the bottom of the journal entry hard copy. The journal entry is then available
for posting. After approving, the Accounting Manager or her/his delegate selects the journal
entries to be posted in CCS and releases (posts) them. When the entry posts, the initials of the
person posting are written on the bottom of the entry with the date the entry was posted.

As a final step, a check of CCS is done to ensure all entries are posted. A screenshot is taken and
printed to confirm that no other entries are waiting to be posted, and a copy of screenshot is
attached to the journal entry and filed with the journal entry checklist. The Manager, Corporate
Accounting or his/her delegate reviews the journal entry checklist to ensure that all necessary
journal entries have been completed and signs the checklist.

All CCS journal entries are compiled with their support and are filed in Corporate Accounting.
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HEM Journal Entries

HFM Journal Entry Header Information:

e Label: The unique journal entry number stored in HFM, using the following syntax:
ddd###-ccccc, where aaa means data type, ### means journal entry number, and
cccece means company number.

e Group: A three-character abbreviation of the data type of the entry.

e Balance type: Indicates whether the entry is balanced, unbalanced, or balanced by
entity.

e Security: Indicates the security level of the entry.

e Description: A short description of the journal entry.

HFM Journal Entry Line Information:

e Entity: In the case of LKE, the four-digit Oracle company number preceded by an
"

e Account: In the case of LKE, the six-digit code for the natural account number based
on the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) chart of accounts, as
expanded by LG&E and KU Energy LLC.

e ICP: The affiliate company code populated on all intercompany transaction journal
entry lines. This field is populated with “[ICP None]” on non-intercompany journal
entry lines.

e Datatype: The data type of the journal-entry line.

e Custom 2, Custom 3, and Custom 4: Not used currently, but must be filled in with
“[None].”

e Description (Optional): A description of the journal-entry line.

e Debit and Credit: Dollar amount of the transaction.

On workday 5, an Accounting Analyst in Corporate Accounting reviews the HFM journal entry
checklist to ensure that all necessary journal entries have been posted to HFM by comparing a
report from HFM (JOURReport 1, section L0800), which lists all posted HFM entries for LKE
for the current month, to the printed company checklist. The Accounting Analyst also reviews
the checklist to ensure that all listed entries are either signed off or marked as not applicable.
After any open journal entry sign-offs are resolved, the checklist is signed by the Accounting
Analyst and approved and signed by the Manager, Corporate Accounting or his/her delegate.

All HFM journal entries are compiled with their support and are filed in Financial Reporting.
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Reports Generated and Recipients:

e ADI journal entries (scanned into Oracle IPM and available to accounting staff, external
auditors, budgeting users and other users who have been granted access.)

e Journals-Enter standard Oracle report (scanned into Oracle IPM; used by accounting staff
upon the rare occasion that a journal entry is keyed directly into Oracle)

e Posted journal entry download report (used by Corporate Accounting)

e Journal entry checklists (used by all preparers of journal entries)

e CCS journal entries (scanned into Oracle IPM; used by Corporate Accounting and
Revenue Accounting and Analysis departments)

e CCS unposted document check (used by Corporate Accounting and Revenue Accounting
and Analysis departments)

e Report of manual entries posted in CCS (used by Corporate Accounting and Revenue
Accounting and Analysis departments)

e Report listing the journal entries which meet dollar thresholds for additional
review/approval (used by the responsible accounting managers and directors/officers)

e HFM journal entries (scanned into Oracle IPM)

e HFM JOURReportl which lists journal entries posted in HFM for the current month

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures):

Before the books are closed, accounting managers review financial statements and/or trial
balances to identify any material misstatements. (See the Materiality Policy and Procedures for a
definition of the criteria for a misstatement to be considered material and the subsequent actions
to be taken.) Also, CCS is checked to ensure all entries have been posted (see CCS Journal Entry
Job Aid). A report is run from the CCS Business Intelligence (“BI””) system to show all entries
posted in CCS. The Controller and/or Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting will
review any unusual accounting entries with the CFO monthly.

Regulatory Requirements:
Journal entries use the FERC chart of accounts.

Reference:

354 - Materiality Policy and Procedures

358 - Waived Adjustments

950 - Comprehensive Spreadsheet Policy

Guidelines for Spreadsheets and Other End User Computing Tools (see PPL Policies
directory on the acctrestricted drive)

CCS Journal Entry Job Aid

Electronic Evidence Requirements (see PPL Policies directory on the acctrestricted drive)
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Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
201 — Journal Entry Review Process

Key Contact:
Manager, Corporate Accounting

Administrative Responsibility:
Controller

Date Created: 12/31/04
Date Revised: 1/16/08; 6/24/11, 7/3/12, 8/3/12, 11/28/12, 3/28/13, 6/28/13, 12/17/13, 3/27/14,
5/22/14, 7/3/14, 8/1/14
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Policy: Intercompany transactions among LG&E and KU Energy LLC’s (“LKE” or the
“Company”) affiliates will be billed and cash settled as required for compliance with various
state-approved service agreements. Amendments to the agreements approved by the state
regulatory agencies are necessary to further amend this policy.

Procedure: The intercompany billing and settling procedures are performed per the detailed
instructions below. Procedures are outlined below for intercompany transactions among the
following:

0 Regulated affiliates and non-regulated affiliates (intracompany)

0 Avregulated affiliate and another regulated affiliate (intracompany)

o0 Non-regulated affiliates and non-regulated affiliates (intracompany)

0 LKE affiliates and non LKE affiliates (PPL/intercompany)

Scope: All intercompany transactions among LKE’s affiliates and PPL affiliates.

Objective of Procedure: The objective of proper billing and settling of intracompany and
intercompany transactions is to maintain compliance with various state-approved service
agreement related to such transactions.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:

A. LKE regulated affiliates and non-regulated affiliates (intracompany)

1. The following reports are utilized to determine whether the intracompany account
balances are in agreement among all companies using the Oracle system. Balances must
be in agreement before the billing process can begin.

a. EiS report — “LKE Auto IC Account Balances” This report is run during the
month to determine if any intracompany account balances exist where the
intercompany segment of the General Ledger Accounting Flex Field (GLAFF) is
not populated and, as a result, the intracompany balances are not identifiable by
company.

b. EiS report — “LKE GL JE Lines with Account 146100 and 234100.” The report is
run when the EIiS report indicates incorrect balances. It identifies the sources of
the transactions which resulted in improper intercompany segment coding to a
specified company’s intracompany receivable and payable accounts. (NOTE:
Item (b) is referred to as the “export file.”)

d. .

2. The above-mentioned reports are run during the closing process to ensure there are no
improper intracompany account balances. All companies’ intracompany balances must
indicate proper intercompany segment, to accurately identify the other party with whom
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the intracompany balances exist. All intracompany balances must be offset by a
corresponding intracompany balance on another company’s books.

3. Once it is determined that the intracompany accounts within Oracle are in agreement, an
entry is posted to net the payables and receivables for balance sheet presentation. Upon
posting of the netting entry, the export file is re-run and used to identify transaction data
to be billed for the month. The export file is also used for reconciling the accounts to the
general ledger to ensure completeness and accuracy before billing.

4. The export file is saved in each company’s electronic billing file (in Excel). The data is
sorted as necessary, to segregate transaction data by company, for use as supporting
documentation to the intercompany billings. The supporting documentation consists of a
summary of the intercompany transactions that occurred during the month, by the source
of such transactions (labor and burdens, A/P vouchers, and miscellaneous journal
entries). This supporting documentation is segregated to show the intercompany activity
each company has with each other company.

5. Transactions between the regulated and non-regulated affiliates are billed and settled
through LG&E and KU Services Company (“LKS”).

6. Intracompany billings are processed the month following the transaction activity, after
the current month has been closed. According to the service agreements, intracompany
billings must be completed by the 25™ of the month. However, all final intracompany
billings are prepared by Accounting Analyst(s) in Corporate Accounting and are due no
later than the close of business on the 10™ work day of each month to facilitate
intracompany cash management.

7. According to the service agreements, intracompany billings are required to be settled by
the 30" of the month. However, intracompany billings are required to be cash settled on
a monthly basis, no later than the 13" work day of the month, following the month in
which the intracompany transactions occurred to facilitate intracompany cash
management.

8. All billings through LKS are settled on a net basis. For instance, LKS’s billing to LG&E
includes the amount in Servco’s intracompany receivable account with LG&E, plus
amounts in any other non-regulated affiliates’ intracompany receivables accounts with
LG&E, netted with LKS’s intracompany payable account balance with LG&E, plus
amounts in any other non-regulated affiliates’ intracompany payables accounts with
LG&E. The amount settled is the net amount due to LKS.

9. Intracompany billings are settled by disbursement requests and are required to be
completed and submitted to the Accounts Payable department for processing.
Disbursement requests are due to the Accounts Payable department no later than 3:00 pm
two work days prior to the payment date for ACHs and one work day prior to the
payment date for wire transfers. Wire transfer is the preferred method of payment for the
larger (greater than $1 million) payments to facilitate cash management between the LKE
subsidiaries and must be used for payments from the utilities to LKS. Disbursement
requests for intracompany settlements are to be completed by indicating the entire
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10.

11.

GLAFF on the form for A/P to manually enter into the system. Projects and tasks must
not be used in the processing of these disbursement requests because the intercompany
segment must be coded on the form, and it cannot be indicated when projects and tasks
are used. Disbursement requests that are not coded properly will result in the
intracompany balances (by GLAFF) not being relieved by the settlement. Thus, further
correcting entries will be required in the following month before closing.

Treasury may also request that Corporate Accounting include certain large dollar
settlements in the current month. For example, fuel advance payments are made by
LG&E and KU to LKS throughout the current month whenever the cumulative amount
paid by LKS exceeds $1 million to ensure no company bears the interest costs of the
other’s operations. Standard journal entries or other transactions may be excluded from
the intercompany settlements. These items do not require settlement because they will be
paid outside of the intercompany settlement process. An example of this is entries made
for intercompany dividends declared.

Cash receipts are recorded via journal entry in the month the settlements are received.
The intracompany billing file and bank statements are used to reconcile these receipts
with the billings before posting of the journal entry.

B. LKE regulated affiliates (intracompany)

1.

2.

Follow detailed procedures numbered 1-4, 6-7 and 9-11 in Item A above for “LKE
regulated affiliates and non-regulated affiliates” (intracompany).

Per various state-approved service agreements, intracompany transactions between
regulated affiliates may be billed directly to one another. Intracompany transactions
between the regulated affiliates are billed and settled on a net basis. Copies of such
intracompany billings are kept on file in Corporate Accounting for documentation
purposes. Treasury may also request that Corporate Accounting include certain large
dollar settlements in the current month.

The regulated affiliates are required to complete a credit slip for intracompany
settlements to be received, which serves as supporting documentation behind the journal
entry to record the cash receipt.

C. LKE non-regulated affiliates (intracompany)

1.

2.

3.

Follow detailed procedures numbered 1 through 4 in Item A above for “Regulated
affiliates and non-regulated affiliates (intracompany).

Intracompany transactions among non-regulated affiliates are not required to be billed or
settled.

Intracompany activity among non-regulated affiliates, however, must be reconciled
monthly, in accordance with the Balance Sheet Accounts Reconciliation Policy, as
amended.

D. LKE affiliates and non-LKE affiliates (PPL/intercompany)
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1.

LKE charges to PPL Groups — Expense
LKE personnel will send a summary of expense charges via e-mail to PPL due no later
than the 3rd work day following the end of the month and journalize the activity in
Oracle. An invoice will also be forwarded to appropriate PPL personnel for payment
processing and approval.
LKE charges to PPL — Capital
LKE personnel will send a summary of charges related to capital projects via e-mail to
PPL due no later than the 3rd work day following the end of the month and journalize
the activity in Oracle. An invoice will also be forwarded to appropriate PPL personnel
for payment processing and approval.
PPL charges LKE for both direct and indirect expenses monthly. Throughout the month,
PPL will send details of direct charges to LKE to be recorded in LKE’s general ledger. In
addition, before the end of the 4™ work day, PPL will send a report of indirect charges
from various PPL support groups for LKE to record.
The following reports are utilized in confirming intercompany balances between LKE and
non-LKE affiliates.
a. Excel Report “PPL Day 4 Balance Check MM-YYYY.xlsx”. This report is sent to
PPL Accounting by LKE Corporate Accounting prior to closing of the books on
Day 4 for intercompany balance confirmation purposes. This report is reviewed
and intercompany balances are confirmed. If a discrepancy arises, PPL and LKE
work together to resolve the differences between the recorded intercompany
balances.
If LKE is in a net payable position to PPL, excluding auto-reversing entries and mutual
assistance charges billed from LG&E or KU to PPL Electric Utilities, LKE will initiate
payment to PPL via a disbursement request sent to Accounts Payable Department for
processing. Auto-reversing entries are accrual journal entries booked in advance of
receiving actual invoices and will not be settled until the invoices are received. Mutual
assistance billings from LG&E or KU to PPL Electric Utilities are settled separately by
PPL Electric Utilities. If LKE is in a net receivable position, PPL will initiate payment to
LKE.
Payment of intercompany billings is to be made on the 20™ of each month. If the 20" of
the month falls on the weekend or a holiday, the settlements will be processed the next
work day.
Cash receipts by LKE are recorded via journal entry in the month the settlements are
received.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

Intercompany Bills
EiS Report — “LKE Auto IC Account Balances”
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e EiS Report — “LKE GL JE Lines with Account 146100 and 234100.”
e Accounts Payable Disbursement Requests
e Credit Slips

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
Intercompany account balances are reconciled on a monthly basis, per the Balance Sheet
Accounts Reconciliation Policy.

Regulatory Requirements:
Various state service agreements require that all transactions with LKS and/or with the regulated
utilities be cash-settled monthly.

Reference:
Balance Sheet Accounts Reconciliation Policy

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
203 Interunit Settlements

Key Contact:
Manager, Corporate Accounting

Administrative Responsibility:
Controller

Date Created: 7/26/05
Dates Revised: 10/11/05, 12/12/07, 4/14/08, 3/31/11, 8/9/11, 6/30/12,11/30/12, 03/28/13,
03/5/14,3/26/2014
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Policy:

A consolidation of LG&E and KU Energy LLC and its subsidiaries’ income statements and
balance sheets will be performed monthly, including elimination of all intercompany activity and
consistent with quarterly and annual publicly issued financial statements.

Procedures:

Preparing the consolidated balance sheet and income statement consists of preparing and posting
journal entries in HFM and Oracle each month to:
(1) eliminate investments in subsidiaries,
(2) eliminate intercompany receivables/payables, sales/purchases, and interest
income/expense,
(3) reclassify Western Kentucky Energy Corp.’s (WKE) income statement to discontinued
operations,
(4) record the consolidated effective rate income-tax adjustment (January through November

only),
(5) Net income taxes payable and receivable, if necessary, and

(6) Net current deferred income taxes payable and receivable, if necessary.

Procedures also include generating reports that contain the balance sheet and income statement
consolidation worksheets.

Scope:

LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE” or the “Company”) and all of its subsidiaries.
Objective of Procedure:

To establish a policy for the consolidation process that ensures all subsidiaries are properly

included in the consolidation and all elimination and reclassification entries are properly
performed to ensure the accuracy of the consolidated financial statements.

General Requirements:

1. LKE consolidates its financial results of all companies in which it has a controlling
interest in each month in accordance with the closing calendar.

2. Investments in 20% to 50% owned entities are accounted for as an Equity Method
Investment and will follow the Accounting Standards Codification 323, Investments —
Equity Method and Joint Ventures. See memo ““Electric Energy, Inc. (EEI) Equity
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Investment Impairment” dated February 28, 2013 noting the impairment to zero of LKE’s
only equity method investment EEI.

3. Investments in 20% or less- owned companies are accounted for as Cost Investments.
Cost Investments are recorded and carried at cost in the consolidated balance sheet under
the caption “Investments” — current cost investments include the Ohio Valley Electric
Corporation, an entity in which LKE indirectly owns an 8.13% interest (consists of
Louisville Gas & Electric Company’s 5.63% and Kentucky Utility Company's 2.50%
interests).

e Dividends received that are distributed from net accumulated earnings of the
investee are recognized as "Other Non-operating Income, Net". Dividends
received in excess of earnings are considered a return of investment.

4. As of the date of this policy, LKE does not have any Variable Interest Entities (VIE).
VIE means entities as defined in Accounting Standard codification, 810, Consolidation.
Variable interests are contractual, ownership, or other pecuniary interests in an entity that
change with changes in the entity's net asset value. Equity interests with or without
voting rights are considered variable interests if the entity is a variable interest entity.

o Ifitis determined that LKE controls a VIE through a voting equity interest (which
is typically also evidence of a controlling financial interest), the entity would be
consolidated in the consolidated financial statements.

Detailed Procedures Performed:

1. After the individual company books are closed each month, the following entries are
performed in Oracle to before the upload into Hyperion Financial Management (HFM):
e Investment in Subsidiaries — entry to ensure each investment-in-consolidated-
subsidiary account equal the total of the related subsidiary’s
i. common stock,
ii. common stock expense,
iii. additional paid-in capital,
iv. accumulated OCI (excluding accounts 219010 (ACCUM OCI - EQUITY
INVEST EEI) and 219110 (DEFERRED TAX - OCI - EQUITY INVEST
EEI)), (see also discussion of EEI impairment above) and
v. prior-year ending retained earnings (net of current year-to-date dividends
declared).
e Effective Tax Rate — calculation and recording of the effective tax rate at the
ultimate parent level.
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e Reclassification of Discontinued Operations — entry to reclassify the balances in
Western Kentucky Energy Corp.’s income-statement accounts to discontinued
operations.

2. Once the three entries mentioned above are recorded in Oracle each month, the year-to-
date account balances of each company (except the elimination companies and the FERC
only companies) are uploaded into HFM. The Consolidation process in HFM eliminates
all intercompany activity, as well as equity ownership and the reclassification of deferred
tax assets to liabilities. See SOX transaction documentation 80.07, Consolidation, for
detailed discussion on the manual and automated journal entries in HFM and Oracle,
which result in the consolidation of LKE and its subsidiaries.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

This procedure generates the consolidated Balance Sheet and Income Statement from HFM.
Oracle is also used to produce reports that contain balance-sheet consolidation worksheets as
well as income-statement consolidation worksheets. The reports reside in
\\fs2\acctshare\ConsolidationWorksheets\MMMMYYYY. Anyone who has access to this folder
can open and view them.

Regulatory Requirements:

None

Reference:

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 810, Consolidation

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

204, HFM Equitization & Consolidation and Related Functional Processes

Key Contact:

Manager, Financial Reporting

Administrative Responsibility:

Controller
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Date Created: 3/31/11
Dates Revised:8/5/11,
9/19/13
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Policy:

LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE”) and its subsidiaries will timely and accurately record all
financial transactions into the affected companies’ general ledgers and disclose certain non-
financial information in its financial statement filings with regulatory authorities, the U.S.
Securities & Exchange Commission (“SEC”), and other authoritative bodies unless deemed
immaterial and supported by appropriate documentation of such conclusion.

Procedure:

Materiality will be assessed at the reporting company level throughout the organization as of the
date financial statements are externally produced for investor or financial institution use. The
assessment will be made at quarter- and year-end for each SEC registrant. During quarterly
reporting, materiality will also be assessed for the full year financial statements using the most
current of the current year budget or current financial forecast, as appropriate.

Scope:

This policy applies to all items having an impact on the relevant financial statements as defined
below, including adjustments that are not recorded in the general ledgers of the affected
company or companies, as of the date the respective period’s books are closed. The relevant
financial statements include those of LKE’s parent company, PPL Corporation (“PPL”), LKE
consolidated, Louisville Gas and Electric Company (“LG&E”) and Kentucky Utilities Company
(“KU”). Financial statements for PPL, LKE, LG&E and KU are issued quarterly and annually
for investor and financial institution use.

Objective of Procedure:

The objective of the materiality accounting policy and procedures is to ensure that the process
for determining materiality is defined relevant to the companies reported and communicated to
individuals responsible for determining whether each identified adjustment may be waived as
immaterial. These adjustments must also be analyzed on a company-wide basis to ensure all
waived adjustments are not material to the financial statements of the companies.

General Requirements:

FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 2, Qualitative Characteristics of
Accounting Information, defines materiality as “the magnitude of an omission or misstatement of
accounting information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the
judgment of a reasonable person relying on the information would have been changed or
influenced by the omission or misstatement.” This definition implies that more than just
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quantitative factors should be considered when determining materiality. LKE will include both
quantitative and qualitative factors in making sound decisions regarding materiality for purposes
of financial statement reporting.

The SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin: Topic 1 (Financial Statements), Item M (Materiality),
Subtopic 1 (Assessing Materiality) (SAB Topic 1-M-1) indicates that “materiality concerns the
significance of an item to users of a registrant’s financial statements. A matter is ‘material’ if
there is a substantial likelihood that a reasonable person would consider it important.” There is
no “bright line” test. Materiality is determined on the basis of all relevant facts and
circumstances.

As indicated in SAB Topic 1-M-1, in determining whether multiple misstatements cause the
financial statements to be materially misstated, a registrant should consider each misstatement
separately and the aggregate effect of all misstatements.

Reclassifications / Changes Affecting Comparability

The FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 205 Presentation of Financial Statements
(ASC 205) notes the following:

*“205 Presentation of Financial Statements

205-10-50 Disclosure

General

Changes Affecting Comparability

50-1 If, because of reclassifications or for other reasons, changes have occurred in the
manner of or basis for presenting corresponding items for two or more periods,
information shall be furnished that will explain the change. This procedure is in
conformity with the well recognized principle that any change in practice that affects
comparability of financial statements shall be disclosed.”

Financial Reporting will evaluate changes in the current year’s classifications of items on the
balance sheet and income statement to determine if they represent material misstatements of the
prior periods’ financial statements. For example a reclassification of debt from long-term to
short-term or reclassifications of cash flows from the operating activities category to the
financing activities category, might occur because those items were incorrectly classified in the
previously issued financial statements. These types of reclassification, if material could be
considered a correction of a misstatement. Or, a reclassification could occur when an item is
broken out from a financial statement line caption, for example Accounts Payable, and reclassed
to Other Current Liabilities. If a material reclassification has occurred, the prior year’s financial
statements will be reclassified and appropriate disclosure will be made in the financial statement
footnotes.
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The ‘GLAFF Change Request Form - Account’ contains a field to require the individual
completing the form to disclose the fact whether or not the account (new or existing) has a prior
period balance. LKE will assess the need to reclassify the issued prior period financial
statements based on the individual requests and in the aggregate. The Financial Reporting
department will maintain a schedule of all reclassifications (recorded and unrecorded) to evaluate
the comparability of the financial statements and to determine if the issued prior year balances
should be changed. Recorded reclassifications are those that are automatically performed in
Oracle, for example a request to remap an account will automatically remap prior year, versus a
request to create a new account which had a prior year balance will not change prior year

mapping.

When the ‘GLAFF Change Request Form - Account’ is completed and the change involves an
account with a prior period balance, the department Manager approving the request must contact
the Manager, Financial Reporting. The Manager requesting the change will provide the
Manager, Financial Reporting with support for the prior period amount and document the reason
for change. The Manager, Financial Reporting, along with the requesting Manager will make a
preliminary decision as to whether the reclassification is individually material, or in the
aggregate material, based on other reclassifications affecting the financial statement line and the
recommended course of action. The Manager, Financial Reporting will then review the
assessment with the Controller and a final determination will be made. The assessment will be
shared with the Sarbanes Oxley Compliance department and E&Y. The materiality conclusions
for the reclassifications will be reflected in the Overall Error Assessment memo prepared by the
Financial Reporting Department for each reporting period.

Quantitative

For purposes of overall quantitative materiality, LKE, LG&E and KU will use 7% of projected
full year pretax income for the first three quarters and actual year-to-date pretax income for the
fourth quarter as an outside limit for determining whether the Income Statements as a whole are
materially correct and 5% of total current assets for determining whether the Balance Sheets as a
whole are materially correct. The percentage threshold is supported by the SEC SAB Topic 1-
M-1, which states that “the use of a percentage as a numerical threshold, such as 5%, may
provide the basis for a preliminary assumption that — without considering all relevant
circumstances — a deviation of less than the specified percentage with respect to a particular item
on the registrant's financial statements is unlikely to be material. The staff has no objection to
such a ‘rule of thumb’ as an initial step in assessing materiality. But quantifying, in percentage
terms, the magnitude of a misstatement is only the beginning of an analysis of materiality; it
cannot appropriately be used as a substitute for a full analysis of all relevant considerations.”
The thresholds used by LKE, LG&E and KU were developed after obtaining benchmark ranges
provided to PPL by Deloitte Consulting during a Sarbanes-Oxley Program Improvement Project
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consulting engagement conducted during 2014. The thresholds used by LKE, LG&E and KU are
within or below the ranges of the Deloitte benchmarks.

LKE, LG&E and KU have only public debt. LKE’s equity is 100% owned by PPL Corporation
and LG&E’s and KU’s equity is 100% owned by LKE. For LG&E and KU, and therefore for
LKE, much of the debt is secured by mortgages. Using a 7% threshold rather than the 5%
example used by the SEC recognizes the lower risk of investing in the debt of LKE, LG&E and
KU for the debt investors — the primary external users of the LKE, LG&E and KU financial
statements.

LKE, LG&E and KU will assess all income statement errors which meet or exceed certain
quantitative thresholds. These thresholds are determined by each Registrant quarterly as 0.35%
of the following:

1* Quarter — Projected full year pretax income from the current year budget

2" Quarter — Projected full year pretax income from the 1% quarter’s reforecast

3" Quarter — Projected full year pretax income from the 2" quarter’s reforecast

4™ Quarter — Actual full year pretax income

The 0.35% threshold is 5% of the 7% baseline materiality level and is evaluated for
reasonableness quarterly and therefore subject to change when appropriate. The calculation of
the thresholds for each quarter is contained in the waived adjustment file for that quarter.

LKE, LG&E and KU will assess all balance sheet reclassifications, which meet or exceed 0.25%
(5% of 5%) of pretax income as a proxy for current assets and current liabilities at each reporting
date. The balance sheet threshold is set at this level to ensure errors are properly evaluated for
their impact on operating cash flows in the statement of cash flow. The calculation of the
thresholds for each quarter is contained in the waived adjustment file for that quarter.

LKE, LG&E and KU will also apply the following quantitative thresholds, based on the 7% of
pre-tax income, when assessing the following:
e High risk or complex manual journal entries — 25% of 7%, or 1.75% of pre-tax income
e Key SOX controls (i.e., scoping accounts and processes and determination of tolerable
misstatement) — 25% of 7%, or 1.75% of pre-tax income
e Governance and Financial Oversight Committee (GFOC) and Audit Committee approval
of impairments — 50% of 7%, or 3.5% of pre-tax income
e Information processing system and interface scoping — 50% of 7%, or 3.5% of pre-tax
income
e Significant internal control deficiency — 50% of 7%, or 3.5% of pre-tax income
e Material internal control weakness — 100% of 7%, or 7% of pre-tax income
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(Note: The above internal control thresholds are used to determine when assessments regarding
the significance of a control deficiency are initiated. However, qualitative assessment of items
(see discussion below) may indicate that the items are not significant or material, even when the
quantitative threshold is met.)

These quantitative measures will be considered along with the overall level of risk of the item
being considered. The Company considered the following factors when determining the range of
materiality:
e existence of a stable business environment;
the Company’s business is viable and not under financial duress;
management of the Company is competent and capable;
entity level controls are in place and working; and
historical track record of few minor adjustments proposed by auditors on an annual basis.

The SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin: Topic 1 (Financial Statements), Item N (Considering the
Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying Misstatements in Current Year Financial
Statements) (SAB Topic 1-N) also provides guidance regarding the determination of materiality.
The two techniques that are most commonly used to accumulate and quantify misstatements are
the “rollover” and “iron curtain” approaches. The rollover approach quantifies a misstatement
based on the amount of the error originating in the current year income statement. This approach
ignores the effects of correcting the portion of the current year balance sheet misstatement that
originated in prior years (i.e., it ignores the “carryover effects” of prior year misstatements. The
iron curtain approach quantifies a misstatement based on the effects of correcting the
misstatement existing in the balance sheet at the end of the current year, irrespective of the
misstatement’s year(s) of origination. Companies should quantify the impact of correcting all
misstatements, including both the carryover and reversing effects of prior year misstatements, on
the current year financial statements. All errors should be quantified and evaluated using both
the rollover and the iron curtain methods.

Qualitative

Although an account or group of transactions is below the quantitative materiality scope,
materiality must also be evaluated on a qualitative basis. In addition to quantitative
computations, qualitative considerations must be factored in when determining whether an item
is material to the financial statements. Qualitative measures for determining the risk of material
misstatement in individual accounts include the following from the company’s Balance Sheet
Accounts Reconciliation Policy and internal control risk assessment:

e susceptibility of the account or transactions to loss due to errors or fraud, including past

errors in the account;
e risk level of account involved (see Balance Sheet Reconciliation Policy and Procedures);
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volume of activity, complexity, and homogeneity of the individual transactions processed
through the account (i.e., based on estimates);

nature of the account (e.g., suspense accounts generally warrant greater attention);

level of management judgment used in the account;

existence of related party transactions in the account;

changes from the prior period in account characteristics (e.g., new complexities or
subjectivity or new types of transactions); and

sensitivity of the account in affecting the reporting entity’s (LKE, LG&E or KU)
compliance with legal or regulatory requirements, loan covenants, or other contractual
requirements.

The above measures are listed on the ‘Account Segment Change Request Form’. When new
accounts are created they are required to be ranked on a low, medium, high scale for the above
seven criteria and an eighth segment asks if the account should be given a qualitative risk
ranking of 3 (high) regardless of the responses to the seven preceding questions.

SAB Topic 1-M-1 also lists the following qualitative measures:

Whether it arises from a precisely measurable item/calculation or an estimate;

Whether it masks a change in earnings or other trends;

Whether it hides a failure to meet analysts’ or others’ consensus expectations;

Whether it changes a loss into income or vice versa;

Whether it affects compliance with regulatory requirements;

Whether it affects compliance with loan covenants or other contractual requirements;
Whether it has the effect of increasing management’s bonuses or other compensation; and
Whether it involves concealment of an unlawful or fraudulent transaction.

Key areas of disclosure that should be considered when evaluating material transactions include:

1.

2.

Contingencies
a. Legal proceedings
b. Guarantees
c. Regulatory matters
d. Lease arrangements
Risks (financial and other)
a. Financial risks (e.g. credit rating downgrades, counterparty credit, financial
covenants)
b. Environmental regulations
c. Risk management activities
d. Energy trading activities
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3. Known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties. Use the “reasonably
likely” standard (i.e. what is reasonably likely to come to fruition?)

a. Decrease in demand

b. Market price changes

c. Government regulation

d. Rating agency scrutiny

e. Contraction/expansion of operations

4. Off-balance sheet arrangements

a. Consider effect of terminating the arrangement or including the effect of the

arrangement on the balance sheet
5. Related party transactions

a. Consider transactions involving parties that have a relationship with the company,

including officers and directors and their family (also ex-officers and directors)
6. Lag periods

a. Prior to issuing periodic reports, consideration should be given to specific
transactions or events of subsidiaries whose financial statements are prepared as
of a date preceding the date of the parent’s consolidated financial statements
(within an acceptable lag period). These specific transactions or events could be
either lag period transactions or subsequent events.

b. Financial Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC)
810, Consolidations, (ASC 810) and Regulation S-X, 3A-02(b)(1) (Article 3A -
Consolidated and Combined Financial Statements, Topic 02 — Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Registrant and Its Subsidiaries) indicate that it is
acceptable to consolidate a subsidiary on a lag that is not more than about three
months different from the fiscal period of the parent. Recognition should be
given by disclosure or otherwise of intervening events which materially affect the
parent’s financial position or results of operations.

c. Specific transactions or events that occur after the lag period are considered
subsequent events. See the Subsequent Events Accounting Policy and Procedures
for additional information.

7. Financial Statements
8. Other

a. Credit arrangements/financing activities

b. Acquisitions/divestitures

c. Critical accounting policies

d. Material contracts

Detailed Procedures Performed:

1. All adjustments, no matter the dollar amount, must be booked to the general ledgers prior to
closing the books each month. Adjustments may only be “waived as immaterial” if they are
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not timely identified during the closing process and are immaterial based on determinants in
this policy or are determined by Management to be a valid deferred adjustment (i.e., amounts
<$50,000 not yet processed for payment in Accounts Payable [See Accounting Policy and
Procedures 751 — AP — Manual Accrual]).

2. All adjustments not booked during the quarter, including reconciling errors appearing in
balance sheet account reconciliations, and out of period adjustments booked during the
quarter greater than or equal to the error thresholds as outlined in quarterly waived
adjustments file, must be placed on the waived adjustment list. This file, including the
thresholds, is maintained for the quarter in a file labeled “Waived Adjustments X Qtr Year”
(i.e., Waived Adjustments 1% Qtr 2012) on the acctshare on “fs2’ shared drive by the person
identifying the adjustment and reviewed for accuracy by the respective accounting manager.

3. Adjustments waived as immaterial must be booked as soon as practical after the end of the
reporting period.

4. All adjustments waived as immaterial (meets the lowest threshold as outlined in that
quarter’s waived adjustments file), must be documented in a memo (known as an “Error
Assessment Memo”, see Appendix A') addressed to the Controller and copied to the relevant
Director and the reporting workpapers (i.e. if LG&E’s threshold is the lowest of the three
registrants’ thresholds any adjustment waived as immaterial that exceeds LG&E’s threshold
must be documented in an error assessment memo, including amounts related to each
registrant)

An electronic copy of the memo must be filed on the \\lgeenergy.int\shares\Group3:
acctrestricted drive for the respective quarter. The memo must state the following at a
minimum, if applicable:

e Overview of the error
e How the error was identified
e Controls impacted and corrective action to ensure the misstatement does not reoccur
e A materiality assessment including:
0 A guantitative assessment addressing the periods impacted
o the amount of adjustment reported on respective financial statements by
financial statement line item

! Appendix A is a template for the Error Assessment Memo and contains additional SOX
assessment documentation required if the error identified is greater than the lowest threshold
outlined in the quarterly waived adjustments file. In addition to Appendix A, Appendix B
provides guidance for reporting SOX issues in the error assessment memo.
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0 A qualitative assessment based upon SEC guidelines
0 A conclusion regarding materiality

e SOX assessment

e Disclosure requirements

In order to ensure timely reporting of internal control exceptions, Error Assessment Memos
must be completed prior to the end of the quarter in which the error was identified. In the
instance of errors identified for the current reporting period, Error Assessment Memos should
be completed within two weeks of the identification of the error but no later than five
business days prior to the issuance of the financial statements.

All final error assessment memos are saved in the appropriate quarter’s directory on the
shared \\lgeenergy.int\shares\Group3: acctrestricted\Error Assessment Memos\ drive after
approved by the Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting and the Controller.

Files containing the Error Assessment Memos can only be saved to

the \Igeenergy.int\shares\Group3: acctrestricted\Error Assessment Memos\ drive/directory
by the Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting and the Controller or their designees
to ensure only approved memos are presented. All other access to the directory is set as
“read-only”.

5. When a significant financial or non-financial item is identified and affects an entity’s
financial statements, the Controller will make a preliminary determination as to whether the
item may require adjustment to or disclosure in the financial statements. If adjustment and/or
disclosure are deemed necessary, the Manager, Financial Reporting or a designee in
Financial Reporting and the appropriate Controller’s group department will draft the
appropriate change and/or prepare the required disclosure. Concurrence will be obtained
from the Controller and the result will be communicated back to the appropriate business
line.

6. The Controller or the Controller’s designee will assess all waived adjustments individually
and collectively in relation to the relevant company(ies) and relevant line items of the
affected company’s(ies’) financial statements to determine that waived adjustments
individually and collectively are immaterial. The determination that adjustments individually
and collectively are immaterial must consider qualitative items in addition to quantitative
measures. See Quantitative and Qualitative under General Requirements.

7. Should it be determined that items previously determined to be immaterial are determined to
be material, either quantitatively or qualitatively, after the general ledgers have been closed
for the period, the general ledgers will be reopened to adjust for the items, and the financial
statements will be adjusted accordingly.
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8. Adjustments deemed to be immaterial are identified after balances for the reporting period(s)
are submitted to PPL for the reporting period and will be communicated to the appropriate
personnel within PPL by the Controller’s designee through the following:

e Waived adjustment list
e Individual Error Assessment Memos
e Overall Assessment of Errors to the Financial Statements

9. Adjustments waived as immaterial will be reported to the GFOC during its quarterly meeting.
Reports Generated and Recipients:

e Individual Error Assessment Memos will be generated using the format in Appendix A when
required by this policy and provided to the Controller

e Overall Assessment of Errors to the Financial Statements - a summary of waived adjustments
will be prepared for and approved by the Controller quarterly

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

e All balance sheet accounts will be reconciled based on their assigned risk but at least
quarterly in accordance with the Balance Sheet Account Reconciliation policy and
procedures

Regulatory Requirements:
None
Reference:

e FASB Statement of Financial Accounting Concepts No. 2, Qualitative Characteristics of
Accounting Information

e SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin: Topic 1 (Financial Statements), Item M (Materiality),
Subtopic 1 (Assessing Materiality) (SAB Topic 1-M-1)

e SAB Topic 1-M-1, Materiality

SAB Topic 1-N, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying

Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements

APB Opinion No. 20, Accounting Changes

ASC 250-10-05, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections

250 — Balance Sheet Account Reconciliation Policy and Procedures

751 — AP — Manual Accrual Policy and Procedures
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Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
304 - Materiality

Key Contact:

Manager, Financial Reporting
Administrative Responsibility:

Controller

Date Created: 10/31/05

Dates Revised: 11/03/05
07/18/06
11/11/06
02/29/08
08/27/09
03/21/11
07/05/11
08/03/11
10/03/11
6/22/12
10/19/12
4/2/13
10/7/13
6/30/14
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MEMORANDUM
Date: Insert Date here & in 2" page header
To: Valerie L. Scott, Controller

From:  Insert name of memo preparer &/or relevant manager
Re: Insert topic here & in 2" page header

Shannon Charnas, Director, Audit Services

Mimi Kelly, Manager, Sarbanes-Oxley Compliance
Rita Toubia, Manager, Financial Reporting

Ernst & Young

Brian Lazarus, Director, Shared Accounting Services, PPL

Overview of Error *

How Error Was ldentified

! LKE, LG&E and KU will assess all income statement and balance sheet errors which meet or exceed certain
quantitative thresholds. These thresholds are determined by each Registrant quarterly as 0.35% of pretax income
and are updated in the quarterly waived adjustments file.
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Controls Impacted

Action Plan

Materiality Assessment

Periods Impacted (including quarter correction booked)

Year/Quarter Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
2014
2013
2012

Pre-2012

Quantitative Assessment -- Adjustment to Amounts Reported on Financial Statements (000°s)

Fin Statement Line ltem Company Debit Credit Debit Credit

($ in thousands)

LG&E
LG&E
LG&E
LG&E
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KU

KU

KU

KU

Other

Other

Other

Other

See the waived adjustment file for the percentage impact on each financial statement line item.

Qualitative Assessment

In Topic 1 - M, “Materiality” the SEC provides examples of qualitative factors that could cause
an otherwise small quantitative error to be material to an investor. The following is an
assessment of each of these factors relative to the error described in this memo.

e Whether it arises from a precisely measurable item/calculation or an estimate.

e Whether it masks a change in earnings or other trends.

e Whether it hides a failure to meet analysts’ or others’ consensus expectations.

e Whether it changes a loss into income or vice versa.

e Whether it affects compliance with regulatory requirements.

e Whether it affects compliance with loan covenants or other contractual requirements.
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e Whether it has the effect of increasing management’s bonuses or other compensation.

o Whether it involves concealment of an unlawful or fraudulent transaction.

Materiality Assessment Conclusion

This error will be noted during the next LG&E and KU Energy Governance and Financial
Oversight Committee meeting.

See also Financial Reporting’s overall assessment of all errors for an assessment of this and all
other errors identified as affecting the financial statements to for this period.

SOX Assessment

PCAOB Audit Standard (AS) 5, Appendix A, paragraph 3 defines a deficiency in internal control
over financial reporting as follows:

“A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of
a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis.

- Adeficiency in design exists when (a) a control necessary to meet the control objective is
missing or (b) and existing control is not properly designed to that, even if the control
operates as designed, the control objective would not be met.

- Adeficiency in operation exists when a properly designed control does not operate as
designed, or when the person performing the control does not possess the necessary
authority or competence to perform the control effectively.”

In evaluating the deficiency, management considered PCAOB AS 5 paragraphs 63 through 69,
under Evaluating Identified Deficiencies:

“63. The severity of a deficiency depends on -
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o Whether there is a reasonable possibility that the company’s controls will fail to
prevent or detect a misstatement of an account balance or disclosure; and

« The magnitude of the potential misstatement resulting from the deficiency or
deficiencies.

64. The severity of a deficiency does not depend on whether a misstatement actually has
occurred but rather on whether there is a reasonable possibility that the company's controls
will fail to prevent or detect a misstatement.

65. Risk factors affect whether there is a reasonable possibility that a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, will result in a misstatement of an account balance or disclosure.
The factors include, but are not limited to, the following -

« The nature of the financial statement accounts, disclosures, and assertions involved;

o The susceptibility of the related asset or liability to loss or fraud;

o The subjectivity, complexity, or extent of judgment required to determine the amount
involved;

o The interaction or relationship of the control with other controls, including whether
they are interdependent or redundant;

« The interaction of the deficiencies; and

e The possible future consequences of the deficiency.

66. Factors that affect the magnitude of the misstatement that might result from a deficiency or
deficiencies in controls include, but are not limited to, the following -

« The financial statement amounts or total of transactions exposed to the deficiency;
and

« The volume of activity in the account balance or class of transactions exposed to the
deficiency that has occurred in the current period or that is expected in future
periods.

67. In evaluating the magnitude of the potential misstatement, the maximum amount that an
account balance or total of transactions can be overstated is generally the recorded amount,
while understatements could be larger. Also, in many cases, the probability of a small
misstatement will be greater than the probability of a large misstatement

68. The auditor should evaluate the effect of compensating controls when determining whether
a control deficiency or combination of deficiencies is a material weakness. To have a mitigating
effect, the compensating control should operate at a level of precision that would prevent or
detect a misstatement that could be material.

69. Indicators of material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting

include -

« Identification of fraud, whether or not material, on the part of senior management;

o Restatement of previously issued financial statements to reflect the correction of a
material misstatement;

« Identification by the auditor of a material misstatement of financial statements in the
current period in circumstances that indicate that the misstatement would not have
been detected by the company's internal control over financial reporting; and

« Ineffective oversight of the company's external financial reporting and internal
control over financial reporting by the company’s audit committee.”

SOX Assessment Conclusion
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Management has concluded that the deficiency in internal control over financial reporting does
not rise to the level of a material weakness due to the following:

Management has concluded that the deficiency in internal control over financial reporting does
not rise to the level of a significant deficiency due to the following:

Management has concluded, based on the guidance in PCAOB AS 5, this error is a deficiency in
the of internal controls over financial reporting

This error is not the result of a
material error or significant deficiency as described above, but is a deficiency in internal controls
over financial reporting.

This error will be noted during the next LG&E and KU Energy Governance and Financial
Oversight Committee meeting.

Disclosure of out of period adjustment (NGte: Delete thiS Section, if Not necessarys)

Disclosure of internal control deficiency (Note:"Delete this'Section, if not necessary.)
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This information is required to document the control exception and will be used to populate the
LKE Audit Services (AS) and PPL issues databases.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Compliance Department (SOC) is available to assist in the various
evaluations within this process and to review Error Assessment Memo (EAM) drafts at critical
points throughout their development.

When a financial statement error is documented in an EAM, an evaluation of the Sarbanes-Oxley
(SOX) control documentation must be performed to determine if an existing control failed. This
evaluation must be included in the EAM. If it is determined that the error does not relate to an
existing SOX control, evaluate the error to determine if a control should be developed to prevent
future errors. When a new control is needed, coordinate with the SOC to document and
implement the new control.

Once a determination is made that a control exception exists, the individual responsible for the
issue should use the following guidelines to assist in preparation of the EAM. After review of
the EAM by the SOC, the SOC will complete the Issue Reporting Template to be forwarded to
all of the recipients of the EAM for review. Upon completion of the review, the information
contained in the template will be input into the AS and PPL issues databases.

Definitions for required information in EAMs
Overview of Error

Description: Provide a detailed description of the issue. Use language that individuals
from outside of the immediate business area can understand.

Root Cause: Describe the root cause of the issue. For example, human error, lack of
training, lack of monitoring, staff attrition.

Understanding the root cause of an issue involves identifying the contributing factors
(key conditions, actions or inaction) that contributed to the occurrence of the issue. It is
important to understand the root cause in order to develop the appropriate corrective
action(s) so that the issue does not re-occur. To identify the root cause, it helps to ask
probing questions such as those listed in the example below.

Example:
An issue occurred when an accountant was instructed to change the way a certain
journal entry was handled. However, the entry was not changed. Asking the
following probing questions can help get to the root cause.
e What is the reason for the presence of the problem? The accountant did
not change the entry.
e What is the source or origin of the problem? The accountant was busy and
forgot to make the change. The person who reviewed the entry was not
aware or forgot that it was supposed to be changed.
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e What is the basic reason that, if eliminated, would prevent recurrence?
The accountant should have alerted the manager that this change was
forthcoming and/or a checklist item should have been created to ensure
that this change was incorporated into the monthly/quarterly process.

e Was a control in place or is one needed to mitigate the risk of recurrence?
The journal entry review control was in place, but it should be enhanced to
include a checkilist for the reviewer that would track expected changes in
standard journal entries.

We can see from this example, that change management and communication were
primary causes for the issue and the remediation plan should focus on those areas.

Issue Implication: Is there a potential for additional misstatements resulting from the
control failure? If so, explain. The SOC will use the information included in the
Materiality Assessment section.

Controls Impacted

Compensating Control Number(s): Identify existing documented controls (by control
activity number(s) and name(s)), which either detected or prevented the error in financial
reporting that is related to the issue.

Action Plan:

Description: Describe Management’s plan to address the issue and who is responsible
for ensuring the action occurs. Action plans should be specific, actionable, and provide
evidence of implementation.

Evidence Requirements: Provide a description of the evidence that will be provided to
support implementation of the Action Plan.

Date to Implement:

Provide the date Management has committed to implement the action plan. Once communicated
to senior management, this date can only be changed with approval from the CEO at least two
weeks before the original Date to Implement.

Materiality Assessment:

Section of the EAM to identify the company, financial statement line item, and dollar impact of
the error.
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SOX Assessment

In the event that a significant/key SOX control is found to have failed, determine the level of
deficiency:

Deficiency - A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting (ICFR) exists when the
design or operation of a control does not allow Management, in the normal course of
perfolrming their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely
basis™.

e Control design relates to the set-up of the control. Control design is documented in
SOX narratives by describing the control that is performed. For example, “Bank
reconciliations are performed monthly.”

e Control operation relates to how the control is executed. The control design should
describe how the control should be operated. For example, “Bank reconciliations are
prepared in Excel by an Accounting Analyst.”

All deficiencies are communicated to the Governance and Financial Oversight Committee
(GFOC) and PPL’s Audit Committee.

Significant Deficiency - A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in ICFR that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those responsible for oversight of a company’s financial reporting.
Significant deficiencies are reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q and Form 10-K and
communicated to GFOC and PPL’s Audit Committee.

The Company is not required to disclose a significant deficiency in the Form 10-Q and
Form 10-K. However, if management identifies a significant deficiency that, when
combined with other significant deficiencies, is determined to be a material weakness,
management must disclose the material weakness and, to the extent material to an
understanding of the disclosure, the nature of the significant deficiencies. In addition, if a
material change is made to either disclosure controls and procedures or to internal control
over financial reporting in response to a significant deficiency, the Company is required
to disclose the change and should consider whether it is necessary to discuss further the
nature of the significant deficiency in order to render the disclosure not misleading.

Material Weakness - A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a
timely basis. Material weaknesses are reported in the Company’s Form 10-Q and 10-K
and communicated to the GFOC and PPL’s Audit Committee. Management should
consider filing a Form 8-K if the material weakness results in non-reliance on previously
issued statements or a related audit report that result in an error. See Ongoing Disclosure

! Timely basis will vary based on the design of the control. For example, the timely basis of a control designed to
function on a monthly basis would not be the same for a control designed to function on a daily basis.
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of Material Information (Form 8-K) policy for information on what is to be included in a
Form 8-K filing and deadline dates.

Disclosures
Disclosure if the error results in recording a material out of period adjustment

Per FASB ASC 250-10-45 Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — Presentation,
Materiality Determination for Correction of an Error, paragraph 45-27 — “In determining
materiality for the purpose of reporting the correction of an error, amounts shall be related to the
estimated income for the full fiscal year and also to the effect on the trend of earnings. Changes
that are material with respect to an interim period but not material with respect to the estimated
income for the full fiscal year or to the trend of earnings shall be separately disclosed in the
interim period.”

Therefore, the disclosure should include:
e the fact that an out of period adjustment was made,
e the period in which the adjustment was recorded in the general ledger,
e the financial statement caption affected and the amount before and after tax, and
e if there is a material impact to the previously reported financial statements and the affect
on the full year financial statements for the current period reported.

Material Weakness Disclosure:

The disclosure for a material weakness in Form 10-K Item 9A and Form 10-Q Item 4 should
include:

e the nature of the material weakness,

e the period in which the adjustment was recorded in the general ledger,

e ts effect on financial reporting and the control environment, and the financial statement
caption affected and the amount before and after tax, and

e management’s current plans, if any, for remediating the weakness.

Per E&Y’s 2011 SEC annual reports- Form 10-K guidance book:

“The SEC staff has stated that it does not believe that an Item 4.02 Form 8-K is required for
every revision to a registrant's previously issued financial statements that is the result of an
error. However, the SEC staff has indicated that it would be "surprised” if amounts in the
primary financial statements (e.g., balance sheet, income statement, cash flow statement) were
changed due to an error, but an Item 4.02 Form 8-K was not filed.

A notable exception to the SEC staff’s expectation involves SAB Topic 1-N. Under SAB Topic 1-
N, correcting prior year financial statements for immaterial errors would not require previously
filed reports to be amended. Such correction may be made the next time a registrant files the
prior year financial statements. The SEC staff has stated that, in cases where a pending
restatement is immaterial, an Item 4.02 Form 8-K would not be required. However, the SEC
staff cautioned that, if the error being corrected materially affected a prior quarter of the current
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fiscal year, the SEC staff would expect the registrant to file an Item 4.02 Form 8-K with respect
to those interim financial statements.

While not addressed in the SEC rules, we believe that a material weakness in internal control
that was identified and corrected during the fiscal year would not preclude management from
concluding that internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end of the fiscal
year. In those circumstances, management’s internal control report” would not be required to
disclose the existence and correction of a material weakness earlier in the company’s fiscal year.
However, under Item 308(c) of Regulation S-K (discussed below), a change during a fiscal year
necessary to correct a material weakness in internal control would need to be disclosed in the
periodic SEC report covering the respective fiscal quarter.”
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355 - SEC Reporting Requirements

Policy: All required U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) filings are to be
completed for LG&E and KU Energy LLC (LKE), Louisville Gas and Electric Company
(LG&E) and Kentucky Utilities Company (KU) (collectively the Company).

Procedure: The United States government through laws and rules requires companies with
publicly traded securities to report information to the SEC. All SEC forms that are required to be
filed by the Company are to be prepared and filed when due following the controls, policies and
guidelines of the Company. Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and annual reports on Form 10-K
will be included in PPL Corporation’s (PPL) Forms 10-Q and 10-K, consistent with other PPL
registrants.

Scope: All forms filed by the Company with the SEC.

Objective of Procedure: To ensure all forms for LKE, LG&E and KU that are required to be
filed with the SEC are accurate.

General Requirements:
Procedures:

Any questions on SEC Reporting or potential disclosures should be directed to Financial
Reporting. Requirements for the preparation and review of 10-Q/10-K workpapers include,
among others:

e The financial statements, including footnotes, and management discussion and analysis
(MD&A) will be cross-referenced where applicable, to supporting workpapers.

e Support for all amounts presented in the financial statements, footnotes and MD&A will be
contained in the workpapers.

e Workpapers will be maintained by Financial Reporting and will be provided to Financial
Reporting containing the sign-off of the preparer and the reviewer to document appropriate
review of analyses for accuracy, including calculations in spreadsheets.

e The following items will be documented in the workpapers through checklist/timeline sign-
off by the performer and the reviewer:

o verify the reasonableness of the results,

e compare disclosures among registrants for consistency,

e compare disclosures for each registrant for internal consistency,

o apply other verifications for accuracy, reasonableness and consistency specific to the area
of contribution.

Additional procedures and controls are set forth in accounting policy and procedure 359 -
Financial Statement Disclosures and Filing Requirements.
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Reports Generated and Recipients:

All SEC Forms are filed electronically with the SEC along with the filing of the respective PPL
forms. The revolving credit facility banks and bond trustees will access copies of the reports on
the SEC’s internet site. Copies are maintained by the LKE Controller group.

Electronic copies of the 10-K/10-Q reports for LKE, LG&E and KU are sent to the Treasurer’s
department to be filed with the MSRB (Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board) and to provide
courtesy copies to rating agencies. Electronic copies are also maintained on fs2:\\cntrlr shared
drive and the PPL internet site (pplweb.com).

Hard copies of the 10-K/10-Q reports for LKE, LG&E and KU are provided to all Accounting
Managers, CFO Directors and Officers, the Legal department, the Treasurer’s department, the
Rates department and other interested parties. A complete listing is maintained by the Financial
Reporting department.

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

e Adherence to accounting policy and procedure 962 - Compliance with GAAP and
Regulations.

e Controls over financial statement disclosures as set forth in accounting policy and procedure
359 - Financial Statement Disclosures and Filing Requirements.

e Internal Controls over financial reporting documented for all internal control cycles

Regulatory Requirements:

The Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act) primarily addresses securities trading and
the disclosures that a public company must make to ensure that investors are continually
informed of a company’s financial condition and prospects. Companies that report under the
Exchange Act are required to file if the company engages in interstate commerce, the securities
are held of record by 500 or more security holders, and the company had more than $10 million
in total assets at its latest year end. Any company whose securities are registered under Section
12 of the Exchange Act must file annual and other reports that the SEC prescribes. Accordingly,
LKE and subsidiaries, LG&E and KU must file with the Securities and Exchange Commission
due to their public debt securities.

Rule 13a-1 of the Exchange Act requires the filing of an annual report on the appropriate form.
Rule 13a-13 of the Exchange Act requires the filing of a quarterly report for each of the first
three quarters of a fiscal year. Rule 13a-11 or Rule 15d-11 of the Exchange Act requires the
filing of a “current report” on Form 8-K unless the information was previously reported. Form
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8-K should also be used for reports of nonpublic information required to be disclosed by
Regulation FD of the Exchange Act.

Forms required to be filed under the Exchange Act applicable to LKE, LG&E and KU registrants
include the following:

Form 10-K — For the annual report, large accelerated filers are required to file within 60 days
after year-end, and must comply with internal control over financial reporting disclosure
requirements (including obtaining an auditor’s opinion regarding the effectiveness of internal
controls over financial reporting). Non-accelerated filers are required to file their annual
reports within 90 days after the end of the year. Effective with the passing of the Dodd-
Frank Act (signed into law in July 2010), non-accelerated filers are no longer required to
obtain an auditor’s opinion regarding the effectiveness of internal controls over financial
reporting. (Note: Although PPL is the only large accelerated filer, the Form 10-K reports for
all PPL registrants are filed within the 60-day period, since the notes to the financial
statements are prepared on a combined basis.)

Form 10-Q - For the quarterly report, large accelerated filers are required to file within 40
days after the quarter end. Non-accelerated filers are required to file within 45 days.
(Similar to the Form 10-K, all PPL registrants file within the Form 10-Q deadline for large
accelerated filers.)

Form 8-K - For the reporting of certain events, to be filed within four business days of the
occurrence of the reportable event unless otherwise specified. See LKE corporate policy
Ongoing Disclosure of Material Information (Form 8-K), for additional information.

Form 12b-25 — To be filed when a report is not filed by its due date and which, if certain
conditions are met, provides additional time in which to file.

Reference:

Securities Act of 1933

Securities Act of 1934

SEC Regulation S-X (governs the form and content of the financial statements)

SEC Regulation S-K (governs the form and content of disclosures outside the financial
statements)

SEC Requirements, rules, regulations and interpretive guidance

Accounting policy and procedure 962 - Compliance with GAAP and Regulations
Accounting policy and procedure 359 - Financial Statement Disclosures and Filing
Requirements
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Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

305 - SEC Reporting

Key Contact:

Manager, Financial Reporting - coordinate all external financial reporting for LKE, LG&E and
KU and coordinate the holding company’s reporting within PPL’s quarterly and annual financial
statements on Form 10-Q/10-K.

Administrative Responsibility:

Controller

Date Created: 3/18/11
Date Revised: 6/30/11, 9/4/12
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Policy: LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE” or the “Company”) and its subsidiaries will
recognize in their respective financial statements any subsequent event if the event provides
additional evidence about conditions that existed at the balance sheet date. Subsequent events
that provide evidence of a condition that did not exist at the balance sheet date should not be
recognized in the financial statements.

Procedure: Between the balance sheet date and the date the Company’s financial statements are
issued or available to be issued, reviewers of the financial statements are to consider whether an
amount reported or information disclosed needs to be adjusted or updated for the occurrence of a
subsequent event.

Scope: All financial statements issued by LKE and/or its subsidiaries.

Objective of Procedure: To establish a policy and procedure for identifying and reporting
subsequent events that may impact LKE reporting companies’ financial statements. These
financial statements may be prepared for and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC™) or the Federal Energy Regulation Commission (“FERC”).

General Requirements:
Definition

Subsequent events, as defined in Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 855, Subsequent
Events, ASC 855-10-20, are:

Events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are
issued or are available to be issued. There are two types of subsequent events:

A. The first type (Type I) consists of events or transactions that provide additional evidence
about conditions that existed at the date of the balance sheet, including the estimates
inherent in the process of preparing financial statements (that is, recognized subsequent
events). Example: When a previously identified loss contingency is increased after a
quarter’s end but before financial statements are released.

B. The second type (Type Il) consists of events that provide evidence about conditions that
did not exist at the date of the balance sheet but arose subsequent to that date (that is,
non-recognized subsequent events). Example: When an entirely new event occurs after
the quarter’s end but before financial statements are released, resulting in a loss
contingency or probable loss contingency.
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Recognition

As indicated in ASC 855-10-25-1, subsequent events should be recognized in the financial
statements if the events provide additional evidence about conditions that existed at the balance
sheet date (Type I), including adjustments to estimates made at the balance sheet date.

As indicated in ASC 855-10-25-2, public entities should evaluate subsequent events through the
date the financial statements are issued.

As indicated in ASC 855-10-25-3, subsequent events that provide evidence of a condition that
did not exist at the balance sheet date (Type Il) should not be recognized in the financial
statements, but may be disclosed.

As indicated in ASC 855-10-25-4, if financial statements are reissued, Type Il subsequent events
should not be recognized in the financial statements; however, disclosure may be necessary to
keep the financial statements from being misleading.

Disclosure

As stated in ASC 855-10-50-1, “[a]n entity shall disclose the date through which subsequent
events have been evaluated, as well as whether that date is the date the financial statements were
issued or the date the financial statements were available to be issued.” As indicated in ASC 855-
10-50-4, this date should be disclosed in originally issued financial statements as well as reissued
financial statements.

As stated in ASC 855-10-50-2, “some non-recognized subsequent events may be of such nature
that they must be disclosed to keep the financial statements from being misleading. For such
events, an entity shall disclose the following:

A. The nature of the event and

B. An estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made.”

If a non-recognized subsequent event is significant, disclosure of proforma financial data should
be considered. See ASC 855-10-50-3 for additional information.

ASC 855-10-55-1 through 55-2 provide examples of both recognized and non-recognized
subsequent events.
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Detailed Procedures Performed:

1.

Management and the business units must establish a reporting system or structure that
ensures the ongoing, prompt and accurate identification and reporting of all events,
circumstances or occurrences, including subsequent events, that may be material to LKE
and its reporting companies and therefore, may require disclosure in various financial
statements. The reporting system or structure and its importance must be clearly
communicated to employees within each area of responsibility. Employees must
understand that their reporting obligation under this reporting system or structure is an
ongoing obligation and that they should report to their supervisors all matters that might
be deemed to be material.

When reviewing drafts of quarterly and annual financial statements, reviewers are to
consider whether an amount reported or information disclosed needs to be adjusted or
updated for the occurrence of a subsequent event. If an event has occurred, the
Controller, the Manager, Financial Reporting and the Legal department need to be
contacted.

During internal LKE financial statement review meetings, other Controller group staff
meetings, the Governance and Financial Oversight Committee meeting, meetings with
external auditors and PPL’s Materiality and Disclosure Committee meeting that occur
between quarter-end and year-end balance sheet dates and the filing date of the financial
statements, discuss whether any subsequent events have occurred and whether the events
should be disclosed in the financial statements. If an event has occurred, Financial
Reporting and/or the Legal department will act accordingly.

Once notified, Financial Reporting, the Controller, and/or the Legal department, with
input from other departments, will determine the type of subsequent event. If a
recognized subsequent event, the applicable Controller’s group department will record
the necessary adjustment. If a non-recognized subsequent event, Financial Reporting
and/or the Legal department will prepare the appropriate disclosure for the financial
statements. Financial Reporting and/or the Legal department will contact PPL’s Office of
General Counsel to communicate the matter.

If an event has occurred or been identified after LKE’s Governance and Financial
Oversight Committee meeting or PPL’s Materiality and Disclosure Committee meeting
has taken place, Financial Reporting, the Controller, and/or the Legal department or
Office of General Counsel will determine whether the event should be communicated to
the Committees’ members.
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6. Financial Reporting and the Legal department will continue to monitor developments in
their areas of responsibility to identify the occurrence of subsequent events.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

Subsequent event footnote, which is included in the Company’s financial statements.
Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

Materiality is assessed at the reporting company level throughout the organization as of the date
financial statements are externally produced, per the Company’s Materiality Policy. The
assessment is made separately for each registrant at quarter-end and year-end.
Regulatory Requirements:

Disclosure of subsequent events is required for FERC Form 1 and Form 3 reporting.
Reference:

FASB Accounting Standards Codification 855, Subsequent Events

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

306 — Subsequent Events Policy

Key Contact:
Manager, Financial Reporting

Administrative Responsibility:
Controller

Date Created: 12/10/10
Dates Revised: 3/31/11, 8/5/11
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Policy: To properly record assets and liabilities on the balance sheet as current or long-term.

Procedure: The detailed procedure provides specifics for identifying assets and liabilities as
current or long-term based on accounting guidance and the nature of the underlying transactions.

Scope: The policy and procedure applies to LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE”) and its
subsidiaries.

Objective of Procedure: To ensure accurate presentation of assets and liabilities on the balance
sheet.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:

Per the Master Glossary of the Accounting Standards Codification (“*ASC”), current assets are
cash or other assets that are reasonably expected to be realized in cash or sold or consumed
during the normal operating cycle of the business. LKE’s operating cycle is 12 months. Per ASC
210-10-45 - Balance Sheet — Overall — Other Presentation Matters, liabilities are classified as
current if their liquidation is reasonably expected to require the use of existing resources properly
classified as current assets or to create other current obligations. Obligations that are due on
demand or that are callable at any time by the lender are classified as current regardless of the
intent of the enterprise or lender.

Current Assets

For LKE, current assets typically include resources such as:

. Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents'

. Short-term investments including certain marketable securities and short-term
deposits that could be used in current operations are reflected in other within current
assets'

. Accounts receivable, less a reserve for uncollectible accounts

. Unbilled revenue

. Receivables from officers, employees, affiliates and others, if collectible in the
ordinary course of business within a year

. Inventories of fuel, materials and operating supplies

. Prepaid expenses such as insurance, rents, taxes, current paid advertising service not
yet received applicable to the next 12 months

. Certain deferred income tax assets

. Assets held for sale
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Price risk management assets expected to be realized within 12 months

Portion of intangibles related to emission allowances and renewable energy credits
expected to be consumed or sold within 12 months

Regulatory assets related to under-recovery of regulatory mechanisms (FAC, ECR,
GSC and DSM)

If a current asset has been specifically designated for use of repayment or liquidation of a long-
term liability, it should be classified as a noncurrent asset.

Certain resources warrant classification as noncurrent assets, including:

Cash and claims to cash which are restricted to withdrawal or use for other than
current operations, are designated for expenditure in the acquisition or construction of
noncurrent assets or are segregated for the liquidation of long-term debt

Investments in securities or advances which have been made for the purposes of
control, affiliation, or other continuing business advantage'

Receivables arising from unusual transactions which are not expected to be collected
in 12 months

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies

Land and other natural resources

Depreciable assets

Financing costs associated with long-term debt (financing costs, commissions,
reacquired debt (in regulated operations only), even if a portion will be amortized in
the subsequent 12 months)

Long-term prepayments which are chargeable to the operations over several years, or
deferred charges such as prepayments under a long-term lease

Regulatory assets not related to under-recovery of regulatory mechanisms (see above)

Current Liabilities

For LKE, current liabilities typically include obligations such as:

Trade accounts payable for obligations to be repaid within the normal operating cycle
of the business

Short-term debt is generally classified as a current liability when the transfer of
resources is required during the normal operating cycle of the business. There are
certain exceptions "

Long-term debt portion payable within 12 months
Debt and other obligations due on demand (many customer and collateral deposits are
considered current because they are due on demand)

Accruals of expenses such as wages, commissions, rentals and royalties

Income and other taxes payable (including taxes withheld payable) within 12 months
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. Interest payable within 12 months

. Dividends declared and payable within 12 months

. Liabilities related to assets held for sale

. Price risk management liabilities expected to be realized within 12 months

. Current portion of ARO liability if timing of settlement is reasonably assured

. Advances and deposits

. Regulatory liabilities related to over-recovery of regulatory mechanisms (FAC, ECR,

GSC and DSM)

FERC and U.S. GAAP reporting requirements may differ. Oracle balance sheet accounts are
established consistent with the FERC Uniform System of Accounts. Each Oracle balance sheet
account must be identified to the appropriate line item for both utility financial reports and U.S.
GAAP financial statements by indicating the appropriate line item on the GLAFF Change
Request Form. Within the GLAFF Change Request Form, inquiries will be made about prior
period balances for reclassification discussions, see 354 — Materiality Policy for further
information.

Each department is responsible for reviewing the account balances under its responsibility before
the end of Day 4 during monthly accounting close to ensure that an asset account with a credit
(negative) balance and/or a liability or equity account with a debit (positive) balance are properly
reported. An Oracle Discoverer query has been developed to facilitate this analysis; the query
name is GL_Trial Balance review.DIS. The report returns all accounts with a non-net zero
balances for the period for all companies and populates a “Check” column within the query with
“YES” if certain criteria detailed above are met.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

GL_Trial Balance review.DIS
Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

354 — Materiality Policy

550 — Chart of Accounts and GLAFF Updates policy
GLAFF Change Request Form — Account
Regulatory Requirements:

N/A

Reference:
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FASB ASC Topic 210-10-45 - Balance Sheet — Overall — Other Presentation Matters
FASB ASC Master Glossary

FASB ASC Topic 470-10-45 - Debt-Overall-Other Presentation Matters
Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

307 — Current Asset/Liability Classifications

Key Contact:

Accounting Managers

Administrative Responsibility:

Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Controller

Date Created: 3/31/11
Date Revised: 8/9/11
3/21/13

" Generally, only investments with original maturities of three months or less qualify as cash equivalents. Original
maturity means the original maturity to the entity holding the investment. For example, both a three-month U.S.
Treasury bill and a three-year Treasury note purchased with three months to maturity qualify as cash equivalents.
However, a Treasury note purchased three years ago does not become a cash equivalent when its remaining maturity
is three months (although it would be classified as a current asset when its remaining maturity is twelve months or
less).

"FASB ASC 470-10-45-14 (Debt-Overall-Other Presentation Matters) indicates that a short-term obligation shall
be excluded from current liabilities if the entity intends to refinance the obligation on a long-term basis and the
intent to refinance the short-term obligation on a long-term basis is supported by an ability to consummate the
refinancing demonstrated in either of the following ways:

A. Post-balance-sheet-date issuance of a long-term obligation or equity securities. After the date of an entity's
balance sheet but before that balance sheet is issued or is available to be issued a long-term obligation or
equity securities have been issued for the purpose of refinancing the short-term obligation on a long-term
basis. If equity securities have been issued, the short-term obligation, although excluded from current
liabilities, shall not be included in owners' equity.

B. Financing agreement. Before the balance sheet is issued or is available to be issued, the entity has entered
into a financing agreement that clearly permits the entity to refinance the short-term obligation on a long-
term basis on terms that are readily determinable, and all of the following conditions are met:

a. The agreement does not expire within one year (or operating cycle) from the date of the entity's
balance sheet and during that period the agreement is not cancelable by the lender or the
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prospective lender or investor (and obligations incurred under the agreement are not callable
during that period) except for violation of a provision with which compliance is objectively
determinable or measurable.

b. No violation of any provision in the financing agreement exists at the balance sheet date and no
available information indicates that a violation has occurred thereafter but before the balance sheet
is issued or is available to be issued, or, if one exists at the balance sheet date or has occurred
thereafter, a waiver has been obtained.

c. The lender or the prospective lender or investor with which the entity has entered into the

financing agreement is expected to be financially capable of honoring the agreement.

"' Current portion of long-term debt should also include long-term obligations that would be callable by a creditor if
LKE was in violation of the debt agreement at the balance sheet date for which the violation would make the
obligation callable.
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Policy:
Waived adjustments will be tracked and analyzed in support of the Materiality Policy.
Procedure:

All waived adjustments impacting a quarter will be tracked and analyzed for overall materiality
on the quarterly and annual financial statements impacted by the adjustments.

Scope:

All amounts not accurately reflected in the financial statements in accordance with the
materiality policy.

Objective of Procedure:

To ensure that the waived adjustments files for each quarterly and annual period accurately
reflect entries for the period in order to accurately analyze their impact on the related financial
statements.

General Requirements:

Detailed Procedures Performed:

e All waived adjustments greater than or equal to the threshold included in the Materiality
Policy must be put in the Error Correcting Entries file. The file is located at ‘acctshare on
fs2’ in the “Waived Adjustments’ directory and in subdirectories by year and quarter.

e Entries in the Error Correcting Entries file should reflect the adjustment needed to the current
quarter and year-to-date balances in the financial statements to make them correct.

e The Error Correcting Entries file is set up in thousands. An entry for $250,000 should appear
as $250.

e When placing an entry into the Error Correcting Entries file, place a description of the entry
on the “Description” tab. The description must briefly describe the cause of the error and
include reference to an error assessment memo, if the error met the criteria for the memo, see
354 - Materiality Policy for the criteria.
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e All entries that affect the period must be included. If an error occurred in a prior quarter or
prior year and was corrected in the current quarter and/or year, it must be reflected in the
current quarter’s file since it created an error in the current quarter’s balances.

e Entries must reflect the adjustment to correct the current period’s financial statements.

o If an income statement adjustment was identified in a prior period and corrected in the
current period, the current period will be over- or under-stated and an adjustment to
reverse the correction booked should appear in the current quarter’s Error Correcting
Entries file.

o If a balance sheet adjustment was identified in a prior period and corrected in the current
period, the current period should not be impacted.

e Entries having an income statement impact must also include the tax effect by the accounts
impacted by the tax effect.

e Managers are responsible for reviewing the entries put into the files by their staffs.
Reports Generated and Recipients:

An Error Correcting Entries file by year and by quarter. The file is located at ‘acctshare on fs2’
in the “Waived Adjustments’ directory and in subdirectories by year and quarter.

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

This policy and procedures document supports controls provided by the Materiality Policy.
Regulatory Requirements:

None.

Reference:

354 - Materiality Policy

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

N/A

Key Contact:
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Manager, Financial Reporting
Administrative Responsibility:
Controller

Date Created: 3/31/08
Dates Revised: 10/08/09, 3/31/11, 8/5/11, 9/4/12



Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 70 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 12/18/13
Page 1 of 8

359 - Financial Statement Disclosures and Filing Requirements

Policy: Disclosures made in financial statement filings (the Reports) by LG&E and KU Energy
LLC (LKE), Louisville Gas and Electric Company (LG&E) and Kentucky Utilities Company
(KU) (collectively, the Company) are complete and accurate, and all required filings are filed
within the mandated due date, including extensions.

Procedure: Various regulators such as the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) and
U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), etc. require certain disclosures to be included
in the Reports issued by the Company. These disclosures are reviewed by management to ensure
they are complete and accurate, and the Reports are filed in accordance with the appropriate
governing regulations.

Scope: All U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (U.S. GAAP) Reports filed by the
Company. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC), the Kentucky Public Service
Commission (KPSC) and the Virginia State Corporation Commission (VSCC) required financial
statement filings are excluded from the scope of this policy.

Objective of Procedure: Financial statement disclosures are required to clarify and provide
additional information related to what is presented in the financial statements contained within
the Reports. The objective of this policy is to ensure all disclosures are complete and accurate,
and the proper information regarding disclosure requirements is made available to, and
considered by, the preparers and subject matter experts for the disclosures.

General Requirements:
Procedures

Filing Requirements

The Reports are issued annually and quarterly as required by various agencies (see the
Accounting Filings checklist at AcctPolicies/Checklists) and are prepared in compliance with
various regulations (i.e. the FASB, SEC and FERC) and include, as applicable,

Income Statements,

Statements of Comprehensive Income,

Statements of Cash Flows,

Balance Sheets,

Statements of Member’s/Common Equity,

Footnotes,

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) and,

Other information requested by management or required by various regulations.

Data contained in the Reports originates primarily from the Oracle financial system and is
entered directly into the applicable financial statements and supporting sections of the Reports.
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The footnotes further clarify and provide additional information related to what is presented in
the financial statements. Disclosures included in the footnotes and MD&A are required by the
regulatory bodies or are included at the Company management’s discretion to ensure the users of
the Reports receive a complete and accurate picture of the Company’s financial position and
results of operations.

The Financial Reporting department (Financial Reporting) is responsible for issuing annual and
quarterly U.S. GAAP basis financial statements for LKE, LG&E and KU that are included in
PPL’s annual and quarterly Reports (i.e., Form 10-K and 10-Q). Financial Reporting prepares a
schedule designating the anticipated timetable for various steps in drafting and reviewing the
relevant disclosure document and coordinates this timeline with PPL’s timeline to ensure PPL’s
reporting requirements are met relative to LKE. The timeline helps ensure important disclosure
issues are raised and analyzed in sufficient time for effective handling under the various
disclosure rules. The timeline also assists in ensuring relevant bodies, such as the Governance
and Financial Oversight Committee (GFOC) and outside advisors, such as legal counsel and
accountants, are involved in a timely fashion in disclosure issues.

New Accounting Guidance

Each quarter Financial Reporting completes an assessment of new accounting guidance issued by
the FASB and the SEC. The assessment reviews the new guidance issued and determines the
effect of the accounting and the disclosure requirements on the Company. A rationale and
overall conclusion is documented for any new guidance that affects the Company.

Financial Reporting follows up with each relevant group quarterly to ensure there are no new
regulations or requirements that need to be addressed in the Reports. Communications with the
groups as documented in accounting policy and procedure 962 - Compliance with GAAP and
Regulations are maintained with the supporting documentation for the Reports

Disclosure Responsibilities Matrix

A disclosure responsibilities matrix is maintained by Financial Reporting for the preparation of
the Reports and outlines by report section the Financial Reporting personnel responsible for
preparation, subject matter expert(s), and management personnel responsible for reviewing and
signing off on the disclosures. The subject matter expert(s) may be the same as the Financial
Reporting personnel responsible for preparation, an individual from another accounting
department, or a non-financial person with the requisite knowledge. Financial Reporting
personnel perform technical research, coordinate review comments, update the disclosures, and
resolve issues in coordination with the subject matter expert(s) and reviewers of the Reports.
Financial Reporting is also responsible for maintaining and completing the most current
disclosure checklists, which provide detail guidance of information required to be in the Reports
based on the FASB and SEC guidelines.
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On a quarterly basis, Financial Reporting updates the disclosure responsibilities matrix and
timeline and distributes them to all individuals listed on the disclosure responsibilities matrix to
ensure roles and responsibilities are clearly communicated with the subject matter experts and
management personnel responsible for reviewing and signing off on the disclosures. Financial
Reporting personnel individually distribute rolled-forward disclosures from the last issued
Reports and preliminarily completed disclosure checklists to the subject matter experts in order
to start obtaining information needed for the disclosures in the current Reports.

All parties identified on the disclosure responsibilities matrix are responsible for reviewing
disclosure inputs and content to ensure accuracy and completeness of the disclosed information.
Any issues identified are resolved through discussions with the subject matter expert(s),
Accounting departments and/or legal counsel. Supporting documentation for the disclosures is
prepared by the subject matter expert(s) or Financial Reporting personnel. The manager of the
key subject matter expert(s) for each report section are required to sign off on the disclosure
responsibilities matrix next to the applicable report section when the disclosures are complete
and the supporting workpapers have been placed in the support binders. This sign off also
indicates that the manager has reviewed the applicable disclosure checklist section(s) and is in
agreement with the responses provided. Financial Reporting maintains the signed workpapers
and disclosure checklists in support binders.

Accounting Issues or Changes

Any adjustments that are made to the Oracle general ledger after the fifth work day as it relates
to the closed period (except for consolidation adjustments made by Financial Reporting,
consolidated tax adjustments made by Corporate Tax, and statistical entries made for Oracle
purposes), including reopening the books, must be signed off by the Controller and
documentation retained. Following such a late adjustment, all financial statements and
supporting documentation are again verified and initialed in the supporting documentation. See
354 -Materiality Policy, for information regarding the thresholds for waived adjustments.

Any issues in need of clarification as identified by functional management, internal auditors or
legal counsel are communicated to and investigated by the respective departments responsible
for the report section, in coordination with the Financial Reporting personnel responsible for
relevant activities/functions to ensure completeness and accuracy of the information. Issues are
identified during the reviews of the drafts of the Reports. All issues are resolved before the filing
of the Reports.

Disclosures

The departments responsible for various sections of the Reports coordinate the evaluation of
material disclosures among the legal counsel, subject matter experts and subsidiaries to ensure
that all material items are considered in determining matters to be disclosed. Communications
regarding these issues are retained with the supporting documentation for the Reports.
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Quantitative and qualitative thresholds for materiality are documented in accounting policy and
procedure 354 -Materiality Policy.

Financial statement and footnotes criteria are applied in these discussions. The materiality
thresholds for disclosure in the footnotes are $5 million pretax for income statement-related
disclosures and $10 million for balance sheet-related disclosures. In general, items below the
thresholds will not be disclosed. However, in certain instances where it is required to indicate
that the amount is not material, disclosure will be made to state the fact that the amount is not
material. In addition, special items, even if they are below this threshold, and other items
required for transparency will be disclosed. Special items are noted in the MD&A and include
items such as:

discontinued operations,

gains and losses on sales of assets not in the ordinary course of business,

impairment charges, and

other charges or credits that are, in management’s view, not reflective of the Company’s
ongoing operations.

Supporting Workpapers

All source documents are stored in binders and maintained by Financial Reporting to ensure a
complete record of the support for the Reports. Supporting documents for all disclosures are
reconciled by the preparer to the general ledger, as applicable, and reviewed by the preparer’s
manager or his/her assigned delegate, to ensure accuracy and completeness. Sign-off on the
supporting workpapers is required of the preparer and the manager. Cross-references are made
among the statements, footnotes, and other sections of the Reports, as appropriate, by Financial
Reporting to ensure consistency throughout the Reports.

Electronic evidence which is used to calculate, develop or support the amounts in the SEC
financial statements, including disclosures and Management’s Discussion and Analysis, must be
provided to document the following:

e Verification of query parameters for reports run from an IT system to document time

periods, accounts, business unit, etc. used as parameters;

e Tie out to an independent source, when available and appropriate;

e Tie out to a general ledger balance, when available and appropriate; and/or

e Changes made to source data downloaded from an IT system.

When multiple queries are exported to a spreadsheet, each query, in its original form, must be
included on a tab in the spreadsheet and a lead sheet must be used to perform relevant
calculations from those tabs.
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Electronic evidence is defined as reports, queries, spreadsheets, e-mails or other data generated
by an IT application, reporting database or End User Computing Tool (EUCT) that is used in the
performance of internal controls over financial reporting that are in the scope of the company’s
Sarbanes-Oxley assessment. EUCTSs are applications that usually reside on an end user’s
desktop, and therefore are not traditionally subject to rigorous application and general computer
controls. Microsoft Excel spreadsheets and Access databases are examples of common EUCTSs.

See also PPL’s guidance regarding Electronic Evidence Requirements.

Audit Services may re-perform the tie out of the Reports at the request of E&Y, Company or
Accounting management or PPL.

Other Items Related to Identifying Potential Disclosures

The Manager, Financial Reporting receives quarterly risk reports from the Financial Planning
department and compares the information therein to the Reports to ensure that all identified risks,
as appropriate, are considered for inclusion prior to the filing of the Reports, documentation of
the review is maintained in the supporting work papers. In addition, the Senior Corporate
Attorney handling securities matters reviews the Reports for completion and accuracy. Any
items in question are discussed with management to determine the proper treatment/disclosure.

Financial Reporting personnel review the disclosure checklists to ensure consideration has been
given to required disclosures to determine their applicability. All disclosures are checked off
during the preparation of the Reports by Financial Reporting in coordination with the subject
matter expert(s). Any issues or missing items are discussed with Accounting management, and
legal counsel, if appropriate, for appropriate resolution.

Certifications

Various personnel complete quarterly backup certification memos to the signers of the Reports
and to members of the GFOC. The purpose of the memos is to certify that the Reports have been
reviewed and fairly present the Company’s financial condition and results of operations. See
Appendix 1 for back-up certifiers.

The Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting; the Director, Corporate Tax; the Director,
Financial Planning & Controlling; the Treasurer and the Director, Audit Services also certify that
they have reviewed the E&Y management representation letters related to the Reports indicating
that based on their knowledge of the business and adequate inquiry within their areas of
responsibility, they believe it is appropriate to execute the representation letter. The Controller
signs the E&Y management representation letters, along with the CFO (Chief Financial Officer)
and Chief Executive Officer (CEO).
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GFOC Review

The most recent Reports are sent to the GFOC before the quarterly GFOC meeting. The GFOC
meet prior to finalizing and issuance of the Reports. At the GFOC meeting, legal counsel
presents an evaluation of internal controls over financial reporting based on reviews of various
matters by the Controller; Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting; Director, Audit
Services; and legal counsel. This review is based on the matters documented in the Evaluation
of Internal Controls over Financial Reporting memo. Discussion of any significant issues
concerning disclosures or internal controls occurs until all GFOC members and attendees are
comfortable with their resolution. If the controls are determined to be effective and there are no
outstanding issues, the GFOC approves the Reports and provides filing clearance. If any
changes to the Reports are made after the GFOC meeting the Controller and the Manager,
Financial Reporting, will coordinate review of the changes with the appropriate functional
personnel and provide significant changes to the GFOC members.

Distribution of the Reports and Timing of Filings

The final versions of the Reports are sent in electronic format to the Treasurer’s department to be
filed with the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (for LG&E and KU only) and to provide
courtesy copies to rating agencies. Electronic copies are also maintained on fs2:\\Cntrlr shared
drive, Igeenergy.int\shares\group1\financial_reporting, and the PPL internet site
(http://www.pplweb.com/investors/).

Hard copies of the Reports for the Company are provided to Accounting Managers, CFO
Directors and Officers, the Legal department, the Treasurer’s department, the Rates department
and other interested parties based on distribution lists maintained by Financial Reporting and the
Legal department.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

e Disclosure responsibilities matrix that outlines by report section the Financial Reporting
personnel responsible for preparation, subject matter expert(s), and management personnel
responsible for reviewing and signing off on the disclosures.

e Proof of review by the CFO and CEO is maintained by Financial Reporting and the Legal
department in the form of the signature pages included in the Reports and certifications,
including backup certifications.

e Proof of review by the GFOC is maintained by the Legal department in the form of the
certifications and the GFOC meeting minutes.

e Disclosure Checklist provided to E&Y

Timeline schedule designating the anticipated timetable for various steps in drafting and
reviewing the relevant disclosure document.
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Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

e Adherence to GAAP and Regulations as set forth in accounting policy and procedure 962 -
Compliance with GAAP and Regulations.

e Internal Controls over financial reporting documented for all internal control cycles.

e SEC reporting as set forth in accounting policy and procedure 355 - SEC Reporting
Requirements.

Regulatory/Contractual Requirements:

e The annual Reports are required by Orders of the Kentucky Public Service Commission and
the Virginia State Corporation Commission.

e Annual Reports are required due to debt covenants with the Company’s lenders and
commitments made to Big Rivers (LKE only).

Reference:

Accounting policy and procedure 962 - Compliance with GAAP and Regulations
Accounting policy and procedure 354 - Materiality Policy

Accounting policy and procedure 355 - SEC Reporting Requirements

Electronic Evidence Requirements (see PPL Policies directory on the acctrestricted drive)

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

None
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Key Contact:
Manager, Financial Reporting

Administrative Responsibility:
Controller

Date Created: 1/3/08
Date Revised: 7/20/10, 3/18/11, 7/05/11, 8/3/11, 6/20/12, 12/18/13
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Policy:

FASB’s codification Topic “Derivatives and Hedging” establishes accounting and reporting
standards for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts, and for hedging activities. It requires that all derivatives that have not qualified for
scope exceptions be recognized on the balance sheet at fair value. If certain conditions are met, a
derivative may be specifically designated as a cash flow hedge, fair value hedge, or net
investment hedge. Currently, LG&E and KU do not elect the use of hedge accounting.

Procedure:

Derivatives that have not qualified for scope exceptions are recognized on the balance sheet at
fair value.

Scope:

A derivative instrument is a financial instrument or other contract with all three of the following
characteristics:

1. It has (1) one or more underlyings and (2) one or more notional amounts® or payment
provisions or both. Those terms determine the amount of the settlement or settlements,
and, in some cases, whether or not a settlement is required. An underlying is a specified
interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of rates, or
other variable (including the occurrence or nonoccurrence of a specified event such as a
scheduled payment under a contract). A notional amount is a number of currency units,
shares, megawatts, pounds, or other units specified in a derivative instrument.

2. It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than
would be required for other types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors.

3. Its terms require or permit net settlement. A contract meets the net settlement criteria if
its settlement provisions meet one of the following criteria:

a. Neither party is required to deliver an asset that is associated with the underlying and
that has a principal amount, stated amount, face value, number of shares, or other
denomination that is equal to the notional amount (or the notional amount plus a
premium or minus a discount). For example, most interest rate swaps do not require

! Sometimes, other names are used. For example, the notional amount is called a face amount in some contracts.
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that either party deliver interest-bearing assets with a principal amount equal to the
notional amount of the contract.?

b. One of the parties is required to deliver an asset of the type described above in
paragraph a., but there is a market mechanism that facilitates net settlement, for
example, an exchange that offers a ready opportunity to sell the contract or to enter
into an offsetting contract.

c. One of the parties is required to deliver an asset of the type described in paragraph a.,
but that asset is readily convertible to cash® or is itself a derivative instrument. An
example of that type of contract is a forward contract that requires delivery of an
exchange-traded equity security. Even though the number of shares to be delivered is
the same as the notional amount of the contract and the price of the shares is the
underlying, an exchange-traded security is readily convertible to cash. Another
example is a swaption — an option to require delivery of a swap contract, which is a
derivative.

Even though a contract may meet the definition of a derivative, it may be exempt from fair value
accounting if the contract is considered a “normal purchase or normal sale.” For those
transactions that qualify for the normal exception, LG&E/KU records the transactions at the time
of delivery (accrual accounting). Guidelines for determining if a contract qualifies for the
normal purchases and normal sales exception can be found in the “Qualifying for the Normal
Purchases and Normal Sales Exception for Energy Transactions” section.

Additionally, the following contracts are generally not subject to derivative accounting
requirements if specified criteria are met:

= Normal purchases and sales (election must be documented)
= Regular-way security trades

= Certain insurance contracts

= Certain financial guarantee contracts

2 ASC 815-10-55-9 through 55-18 state that a non-performance penalty provision that requites the defaulting party to
compensate the nondefaulting party for any loss incurred but does not allow the defaulting party to receive the effect of
favorable price changes (an asymmetrical default provision) does not give a commodity forward contract the
characteristic described as net settlement. In contrast, a contract that permits only one partty to elect net settlement of
the contract (by default or otherwise), and thus participate in either favorable changes only or both favorable and
unfavorable price changes in the underlying, meets the derivative characteristic described as net settlement.

3 FASB Concepts Statement No. 5, Recognition and Measurement in Financial Statements of Business Enterprises,
states that assets that are readily convertible to cash "have (i) interchangeable (fungible) units and (i) quoted prices
available in an active market that can rapidly absorb the quantity held by the entity without significantly affecting the
price" (paragraph 83(a)). For contracts that involve multiple deliveries of the asset, the phrase “in an active market that
can rapidly absorb the quantity held by the entity” should be applied separately to the expected quantity in each delivery.
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= Certain contracts that are not traded on an exchange, such as a climactic or geological
variable or other physical variable

= Derivative instruments that impede sales accounting

= Investments in life insurance

= Certain investment contracts

= Certain loan commitments

= Certain interest-only and principle-only strips

= Certain contracts involving an entity’s own equity

= Lease arrangements

= Residual value guarantees

= Registration payment arrangements

= Contracts issued or held by an entity that are both (1) indexed to its own stock and (2)
classified in stockholders’ equity

= Contracts issued by an entity in connection with stock-based compensation

= Contracts issued by an entity as contingent consideration from a business combination

= Forward contracts that require settlement by an entity delivering cash in exchange for the
acquisition of a fixed number of its equity shares

Based on LG&E/KU’s assessment, certain commodity contracts do not meet the definition of a
derivative because there is no net settlement, as defined in paragraph (c) above. While many
physical commodity contracts meet the definition of a derivative because the commodities are
considered “readily convertible to cash,” the determination of “readily convertible to cash”
requires judgment. Markets continually evolve which can increase or decrease a market’s
liquidity and/or the number of products available. At this time, LG&E/KU does not consider
contracts that require physical delivery of coal, renewable energy credits, limestone and uranium
to be derivatives, because LG&E/KU does not believe that the contracts meet the net settlement
criteria, including “readily convertible to cash”. However, the Financial Accounting & Analysis
department (FAA) re-assesses these markets at least annually and documents its conclusions. If
or when LG&E/KU believes that markets have evolved to the point where the contracts are
considered “readily convertible to cash,” LG&E/KU would apply ASC 815-10-25-3, which
states: If a contract that did not meet the definition of a derivative instrument at acquisition by
the entity meets the definition of a derivative instrument after acquisition by the entity, the
contract shall be recognized immediately as either an asset or liability with the offsetting entry
recorded in earnings. FAA has documented its intent (via memaos to file) to elect normal
accounting for these commodity contracts should they become derivatives in the future. This
election will preclude the need to mark these contracts to fair value in the future as long as they
continue to qualify for that exception.
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Embedded Derivatives

An embedded derivative is defined as implicit or explicit terms within a contract that do not in
their entirety meet the definition of a derivative and that affect, in a manner similar to a
derivative, some or all of the cash flows or the value of other exchanges required by the contract.
In certain circumstances embedded derivatives are required to be bifurcated and accounted for
separately, in the same manner as free-standing derivatives. Bifurcation is required when all of
the following criteria are met:

e The economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not “clearly and
closely related” to the economic characteristics and risks of the host contract.

e The contract that embodies both the embedded derivative and the host contract is not
remeasured at fair value under GAAP with changes in fair value reported in current
earnings.

e A separate, free-standing instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative
would be a derivative.

FASB has indicated that debt, equity and lease contracts are the most likely contracts to contain
embedded derivatives, but they may exist in any contract. Characteristics of potential embedded
derivatives are:

e Renewal, extension, cancellation, and prepayment options in debt

e Contracts that can be settled through multiple means (e.g., gross physical shares, net
physical shares, or cash)

e Contracts denominated in or referenced to a foreign currency that is not characteristic of
either party to the transaction

e Commodity contracts with floor and ceiling prices, which constitute a embedded put
and/or call option (collar)

e Investments in convertible, exchangeable, or indexed debt

e |f...then provisions, such as:

0 A contract that requires additional payments if a particular index, such as an
interest rate, equity or foreign currency index, moves above a predetermined floor
or cap

0 A contract for which the cash flows can fluctuate based on the occurrence or
nonoccurrence of a specified event, such as a change in control

0 A contract for which cash flows can fluctuate based on a sliding scales or index.

Paragraph 815-15-25-4 states that, if an entity identifies an embedded derivative that must be
bifurcated in a financial instrument that is not remeasured at fair value under GAAP, the entity
may irrevocably elect to record the entire host contract at fair value. LG&E/KU assesses this
option on a facts and circumstances basis.
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Objective of Procedure:

The objective of this policy is to outline the accounting methodology followed by LG&E and
KU to comply with accounting and reporting requirements for derivatives and hedging activities.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:

Although LGE/KU do not currently elect hedge accounting, if they were to do so in the future,
they would perform the following:

Hedge Criteria
Hedgable Risks

Hedge accounting, which modifies the default accounting treatment of reflecting changes in fair
value in current earnings, may be elected for derivatives that hedge certain risks, upon
completion of sufficient documentation and testing to show that the hedge is expected to be
highly effective throughout the term of the hedging relationship. The FASB has limited the
types of risks that could be designated as being hedged.

For financial instruments, hedge accounting is permitted for hedges of changes in fair value or
variability of future cash flows that result from changes in four types of risk:

a. Market Price Risk: the risk of overall changes in the fair value or cash flows related to the
entire financial asset or liability

b. Market Interest Rate Risk: the risk of changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to
changes in the benchmark interest rate

c. Foreign Exchange Risk: the risk of changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to
changes in the related foreign currency exchange rates

d. Default (Credit) Risk: the risk of changes in fair value or cash flows attributable to default,
changes in the obligor’s creditworthiness, and changes in the spread over the benchmark
interest rate with respect to the hedged item’s credit sector at inception of the hedge.

For non-financial items, only the market price risk of the entire item is a hedgable risk, with one
exception.  Foreign exchange risk associated with the forecasted purchase or sale of a
nonfinancial item is also considered a hedgable risk, as is foreign exchange risk associated with
the receivables and payables that may result from such transactions.
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Portfolio Hedging

The accounting standards permit a portfolio of similar assets or a portfolio of similar liabilities
(or a specific portion thereof), or a group of individual forecasted transactions to be hedged. If
similar assets, similar liabilities, firm commitments, or forecasted transactions are aggregated
and hedged as a portfolio, the individual items that make up the portfolio must share the risk
exposure for which they are designated as being hedged.

For example, a single derivative of appropriate size could be designated as hedging a given
amount of aggregated forecasted transactions such as the following:

= Forecasted sales of a particular product to numerous customers within a specified time
period, such as a month, a quarter, or a year

= Forecasted purchases of a particular product from the same or different vendors at
different dates within a specified time period

= Forecasted interest payments on several variable-rate debt instruments within a specified
time period

However, the transactions in each group must share the same risk exposure for which they are
being hedged. In addition, a forecasted purchase and a forecasted sale cannot both be included in
the same group of individual transactions, nor can forecasted interest inflows and interest
outflows.

Proportionate Hedging

Conversely, proportionate hedging is permitted as long as that designation is done at the
inception of the hedge relationship. For example, an entity may elect to use 90% of an
instrument (based on its notional) as a hedge against a certain risk. As long as all hedge criteria
for a cash flow hedge are met (and assuming perfect effectiveness), 90% of the change in fair
value of the derivative would be recorded in OCI, and the remaining 10% would be recorded
currently in earnings. The proportion must be expressed as a percentage of the entire derivative
so that the profile of risk exposures in the hedging portion of the derivative is the same as that in
the entire derivative. Thus, an entity is prohibited from separating a compound derivative into
components representing different risks and designating any such component as the hedging
instrument. This requirement can make it difficult to achieve the desired accounting when using
strip deals, such as calendar or quarterly energy deals.

Derivative Identification/Contract Review

Because of their complexity, it is difficult and inappropriate to make blanket assumptions about
the accounting treatment for derivatives. As such, all energy (and energy-related), interest rate,
and foreign exchange contracts must be reviewed by accounting personnel to determine the
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applicability of derivative accounting guidance. This may be done while the contract is still in
draft form or when deals are entered into under an umbrella master agreement. Additionally,
other major contracts that likely contain embedded derivatives (e.g., debt, construction contracts)
must also be reviewed. As a part of 451 - Contractual Review, all contracts within scope are
reviewed by appropriate personnel to ensure contracts are properly evaluated to identify the
potential presence of a derivative, an embedded derivative, lease, guarantee or variable interest
entity (VIE). Contracts within scope are reviewed at contract execution or following any
significant amendment to the contract. The following additional policies are followed for
reviewing contracts:

o 454 - Leases
e 1058 - Variable Interest Entities
e 1057 - Guarantees

FAA requires all business lines to maintain a list of all contracts, which will be updated quarterly
with terminations, additions, or material modifications to existing contracts. Additionally, the
business lines are required to contact the appropriate personnel in FAA to discuss and review any
contract terms prior to contract execution in order to determine whether the contract, or any of its
components, must be accounted for under derivative accounting guidance. With input from the
business lines, FAA will formally document its review.

The Derivative Documentation Flowchart located in Appendix 1 provides general guidance for
classifying transactions under derivative accounting standards. Any questions concerning the
identification and designation of a contract should be directed to the FAA Department.

The derivatives section of the contract review template is attached as Appendix 2.

Designating a contract as a cash flow hedge, fair value hedge or normal contract is an accounting
election. Currently LG&E/KU does not elect hedge accounting, even though the contract may be
eligible for hedge accounting.

Hedge Documentation Requirements

The criteria for hedge accounting are very specific. Derivatives that are utilized as hedges must
substantially offset the risk associated with the underlying contract or forecasted transaction
being hedged and must be specifically designated and documented as a hedge. A hedge must be
highly (80% - 125%) effective to qualify for hedge accounting.

When a contract is designated as a hedge, formal documentation must be completed
concurrently, explaining why the derivative is a hedge and its association with the hedged
transaction. Hedge documentation must therefore include, at a minimum, the following criteria:
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1. An identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, and nature of the risk that is
being hedged.

2. A description of how the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows that are attributable to the hedged risk
will be assessed, both prospectively and retrospectively.

3. A specification of the entity’s intent for undertaking the hedge.

4. Evidence that, at the hedge’s inception and on an ongoing basis, it is expected that the
hedging relationship will be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in the fair value
or cash flows that are attributable to the hedged risk.

5. Formal approvals of non-system-generated hedge documentation by the applicable business
line, Trading Controls, and the responsible accounting group.

For energy, interest rate and foreign currency transactions, separate documentation is prepared
for each contract. Draft documentation done at the time of contract execution is sufficient,
provided that formal, approved documentation is completed within a reasonable time period.

PPL may choose to hedge an exposure at the Corporate level or at an entity different from the
entity that has the exposure. A common example is a net investment hedge entered into at the
Corporate level, rather than at the lowest dollar-denominated entity that holds the WPD entities.
The hedge documentation states that mirror intercompany derivatives are implicit in the
transaction. Therefore, PPL “pushes down” the accounting for the net investment hedge to a
WPD entity that has dollar-denominated financial statements. Another example is a foreign
currency hedge entered into at the Corporate level that hedges an exposure at PPL Generation
that must be paid in a currency other than dollars. Again, PPL may push down the accounting
for the hedge down to PPL Generation (within PPL Energy Supply).

Initial Designation Responsibilities

Designation of energy activities is to be made by Traders, and designation of financing activities
is to be made by Treasury at the time of the trade. Information for energy activities will be
entered into the Commodities Trading System (CTS). Spreadsheets and Word documents are
used to document the designation of financing activities.

Deal Designation Validation (Energy only)

The Trading Controls department verifies the designation for each forward energy transaction
that extends beyond the current month. If there is a question regarding the accounting
designation, Trading Controls and FAA will follow the process for dispute resolution (discussed
below) to address the issue with Trading personnel.
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During the initial hedge effectiveness testing for energy deals done by the Trading Controls
department, a question may arise regarding the accounting classification. Again, if there is a
question regarding the accounting designation, Trading Controls and FAA will follow the
process for dispute resolution (discussed below) to address the issue with Trading personnel.

Dispute Resolution Process (Energy only)

FAA is responsible for determining the appropriate accounting classification of certain energy
transactions which may be in question. During its verification process, Trading Controls may
challenge the designation (e.g., economic/non-trading, cash flow hedge, etc.) as documented by the
trader. FAA is responsible for resolving the accounting classification disagreements.

Trading Controls informs FAA of any energy designation discrepancies. If the designation can be
easily resolved through clarification of accounting rules, and the accounting classification does not
need to be changed, the questions are resolved verbally with the Trading Controls department.

More often, however, the question requires discussion with the trader to fully understand the
transaction and the reason for the accounting classification choice. The discussion and relevant facts
are documented.

When the accounting classification needs to be changed, FAA reviews the original designation
(provided by the Trading Controls department) with the Trader, who is then required (by Trading
Controls department policy) to update the original designation in CTS.

Qualifying for Cash Flow Hedge — Accounting Treatment

A cash flow hedge is a hedge of an exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk. That exposure may be associated with an existing recognized asset or liability or
a forecasted transaction. In a cash flow hedge, a derivative instrument is marked to its fair value
with gains or losses reflected in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI); the gain or loss on the
derivative instrument is reclassified from OCI into earnings in the same period as the loss or gain
is recognized on the hedged cash flow. However, any ineffectiveness (discussed later)
associated with the cash flow hedge will be recorded immediately in current earnings. Hedge
effectiveness testing is performed within the Treasury organization at inception and at least
quarterly.

Derivative instruments qualify for cash flow hedge accounting if all of the following criteria are
met:

a. At inception of the hedge, there is formal documentation of the hedging relationship and the
entity’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, including:

= |dentification of the hedging instrument
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= The hedged transaction (including the date on or period within which the forecasted
transaction is expected to occur, the specific nature of the asset or liability involved (if
any), and the expected currency amount or quantity of the forecasted transaction.)

= The nature of the risk being hedged

= How the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in hedging the exposure to the hedged
transaction’s variability in cash flows attributable to the hedged risk will be assessed,
both prospectively and retrospectively.

The hedged forecasted transaction shall be described with sufficient specificity so that when
a transaction occurs, it is clear whether that transaction is or is not the hedged transaction.
For energy contracts, LKE defines the hedged item as the first MwHSs of generation or load in
a month.

Both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis (at least quarterly), the hedging
relationship is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting cash flows attributable
to the hedged risk during the term of the hedge.

If a written option is designated as hedging the variability in cash flows for a recognized
asset or liability, the combination of the hedged item and the written option provides at least
as much potential for favorable cash flows as exposure to unfavorable cash flows.

A forecasted transaction is eligible for designation as the hedged item in a cash flow hedge if all
the following additional criteria are met:

a.

b.

C.

The forecasted transaction is specifically identified as a single transaction or a group of
individual transactions. If the hedged transaction is a group of individual transactions, those
individual transactions must share the same risk exposure for which they are designated as
being hedged. See Portfolio Hedging for additional testing to prove that the group of hedged
items share the same risk exposure.

The occurrence of the forecasted transaction is probable.

e For energy and energy-related contracts, LKE assesses probability based on documented
criteria that are subject to back-testing.

0 Back-testing is performed at least quarterly within the Treasury organization.

e The Company relies on the business plan and subsequent forecasts that document, among
other things, its expected financing needs and foreign currency transactions, as well as
plan updates provided by senior management.

The forecasted transaction is a transaction with a party external to the reporting entity and
presents an exposure to variations in cash flows for the hedged risk that could affect reported
earnings.
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d. The forecasted transaction is not the acquisition of an asset or incurrence of a liability that
will subsequently be remeasured with changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risk
reported currently in earnings. If the forecasted transaction relates to a recognized asset or
liability, the asset or liability is not remeasured with changes in fair value attributable to the
hedged risk reported currently in earnings.

e. If the variable cash flows of the forecasted transaction relate to a debt security that is
classified as held-to-maturity, the risk being hedged is the risk of changes in its cash flows
attributable to default or changes in the obligor's creditworthiness. For those variable cash
flows, the risk being hedged cannot be the risk of changes in its cash flows attributable to
changes in market interest rates.

f. The forecasted transaction does not involve a business combination and is not a transaction
(such as a forecasted purchase, sale, or dividend) involving (1) a parent company's interests
in consolidated subsidiaries, (2) a minority interest in a consolidated subsidiary, (3) an
equity-method investment, or (4) an entity's own equity instruments.

g. If the hedged transaction is the forecasted purchase or sale of a non-financial asset, the
designated risk being hedged is (1) the risk of changes in the functional-currency-equivalent
cash flows attributable to changes in the related foreign currency exchange rates or (2) the
risk of changes in the cash flows relating to all changes in the purchase price or sales price of
the asset (reflecting its actual location if a physical asset), not the risk of changes in the cash
flows relating to the purchase or sale of a similar asset in a different location or of a major
ingredient.

h. If the hedged transaction is the forecasted purchase or sale of a financial asset or liability or
the variable cash inflow or outflow of an existing financial asset or liability, the designated
risk being hedged is (1) the risk of changes in the cash flows of the entire asset or liability,
such as those relating to all changes in the purchase price or sales price (regardless of
whether that price and the related cash flows are stated in the entity's functional currency or a
foreign currency), (2) the risk of changes in its cash flows attributable to changes in market
interest rates, (3) the risk of changes in the functional-currency-equivalent cash flows
attributable to changes in the related foreign currency exchange rates , or (4) the risk of
changes in its cash flows attributable to default or changes in the obligor's creditworthiness.
Two or more of the above risks may be designated simultaneously as being hedged.

All-in-one Hedging:

Under ASC 815-20-25-21 through 25-22, an entity may designate a derivative instrument (which
will result in gross settlement) as the hedging instrument in a cash flow hedge, which is referred
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to as an “all-in-one” hedge. For example, a forward purchase contract of a commodity (if the
purchase contract meets the definition of a derivative) could be designated as the hedging
instrument in a cash flow hedge, as well as the forecasted transaction. Contracts which are
subject to net settlement (e.g., “bookout”) cannot be designated as an “all-in-one” hedge.

Qualifying for Fair VValue Hedge Accounting

A fair value hedge represents the hedge of an exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset,
liability, or an unrecognized firm commitment that is attributable to a particular risk. In a fair
value hedge, a derivative instrument is marked to its fair value currently through earnings, as is
an offsetting change to fair value of the hedged item. A hedge that is 100% effective would
offset perfectly; otherwise, the ineffectiveness will impact earnings.

Designated derivative instruments qualify for fair value hedge accounting if all of the following
criteria are met:

a. At inception of the hedge, there is formal documentation of the hedging relationship and the
entity’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge, including:

= |dentification of the hedging instrument

= The hedged transaction (including a reasonable method for recognizing in earnings the
asset or liability representing the gain or loss on the hedged firm commitment)

= The nature of the risk being hedged

= How the hedging instrument’s effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the
hedged item’s fair value attributable to the hedged risk will be assessed.

b. Both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis (at least quarterly), the hedging
relationship is expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value
attributable to the hedge risk during the period that the hedge is designated.

c. If awritten option is designated as hedging a recognized asset or liability, the combination of
the hedged item and the written option provides at least as much potential for gains as a
result of a favorable change in the fair value of the combined instruments as exposure to
losses from an unfavorable change in their combined fair value.

An asset or a liability is eligible for designation as a hedged item in a fair value hedge if all of
the following criteria are met:

a. The hedged item is specifically identified as either all or a specific portion of a
recognized asset or liability or of an unrecognized firm commitment. The hedged item
is a single asset or liability (or a specific portion thereof) or is a portfolio of similar
assets or a portfolio of similar liabilities (or a specific portion thereof). If similar assets
or similar liabilities are aggregated and hedged as a portfolio, the individual assets or
individual liabilities must share the risk exposure for which they are designated as
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being hedged. The change in fair value attributable to the hedged risk for each
individual item in a hedged portfolio must be expected to respond in a generally
proportionate manner to the overall change in fair value of the aggregate portfolio
attributable to the hedged risk. That is, if the change in fair value of a hedged portfolio
attributable to the hedged risk was 10 percent during a reporting period, the change in
the fair values attributable to the hedged risk for each item constituting the portfolio
should be expected to be within a fairly narrow range, such as 9 percent to 11 percent.
In contrast, an expectation that the change in fair value attributable to the hedged risk
for individual items in the portfolio would range from 7 percent to 13 percent would be
inconsistent with this provision. This provision is referred to as the homogeneous test
described in the cash flow hedge sections above. While the technical guidance only
requires homogeneous testing for portfolio hedging of fair value hedges, we believe it
is industry practice to perform the same homogeneous testing for portfolio hedging of
cash flow hedges.

b. The hedged item presents an exposure to changes in fair value attributable to the
hedged risk that could affect reported earnings.

c. The hedged item is not (1) an asset or liability that is remeasured with the changes in
fair value attributable to the hedged risk reported currently in earnings, (2) an
investment accounted for by the equity method, (3) a noncontrolling interest in one or
more consolidated subsidiaries, (4) an equity investment in a consolidated subsidiary,
(5) a firm commitment either to enter into a business combination or to acquire or
dispose of a subsidiary, a noncontrolling interest, or an equity method investee, or (6)
an equity instrument issued by the entity and classified in stockholders’ equity in the
statement of financial position.

d. If the hedged item is all or a portion of a debt security (or a portfolio of similar debt
securities) that is classified as held-to-maturity, the designated risk being hedged is the
risk of changes in its fair value attributable to credit risk, foreign exchange risk, or
both. If the hedged item is an option component of a held-to-maturity security that
permits its prepayment, the designated risk being hedged is the risk of changes in the
entire fair value of that option component. (The designated hedged risk for a held-to-
maturity security may not be the risk of changes in its fair value attributable to interest
rate risk. If the hedged item is other than an option component that permits its
prepayment, the designated hedged risk also may not be the risk of changes in its
overall fair value.)

e. If the hedged item is a nonfinancial asset or liability (other than a recognized loan
servicing right or a nonfinancial firm commitment with financial components), the
designated risk being hedged is the risk of changes in the fair value of the entire hedged
asset or liability (reflecting its actual location if a physical asset). That is, the price risk
of a similar asset in a different location or of a major ingredient may not be the hedged
risk.

f. If the hedged item is a financial asset or liability, a recognized loan servicing right, or a
nonfinancial firm commitment with financial components, the designated risk being
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hedged is: (1) the risk of changes in the overall fair value of the entire hedged item, (2)
the risk of changes in its fair value attributable to changes in the designated benchmark
interest rate, (3) the risk of changes in its fair value attributable to changes in the
related foreign currency exchange rates (referred to as foreign exchange risk), or (4) the
risk of changes in its fair value attributable to both changes in the obligor’s
creditworthiness and changes in the spread over the benchmark interest rate with
respect to the hedged item’s credit sector at inception of the hedge (referred to as credit
risk). Two or more of the risks (other than overall fair value) may simultaneously be
designated as being hedged.

Fair value hedges are rarely used for energy hedging strategies but are fairly common in those
instances when the Company hedges the fair value of its fixed-rate debt by effectively converting
it to floating-rate obligations through the use of a fixed-to-float swap.

Tax Hedging Documentation Rules

In addition to applying the proper designations for derivatives and energy contracts for
accounting purposes, separate determinations must be made for tax purposes. The Tax
department will review certain transactions for appropriate designations.  Usually, the
Company’s federal income tax issues related to its use of derivatives and energy contracts
concern whether the gain or loss arising from such contracts will be treated as capital or
ordinary. Generally, ordinary gain or loss treatment is preferable because the Internal Revenue
Code limits the deductibility of capital losses.

The federal income tax rules allow commodity dealers or traders (determined on a legal entity
basis) to elect a mark-to-market regime for all commodity derivatives, notwithstanding how such
positions are treated for financial accounting purposes. Such election may allow all gains and
losses from commaodity dealer or trader’s positions to be viewed as ordinary income or loss.

The federal income tax rules also provide that properly identified commodity-based derivatives
that manage the price risk of physical transactions on a current or anticipatory basis can qualify
as tax hedges. Any gain or loss on contracts entered into as a tax hedge is ordinary. Proper
contemporaneous identification of contracts as tax hedges is essential.

Hedge Effectiveness Testing

Derivative accounting may increase volatility in earnings to the extent that hedges do not perfectly
offset the underlying risk. Earnings volatility is also increased by the requirement that hedge
accounting treatment is permitted only for those hedges that are deemed to be effective (commonly
defined as being between 80% and 125%) and only the effective portion of the hedge is recorded in
OCI, with the ineffective portion being recorded in earnings. In certain cases, a transaction will lose
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hedge accounting treatment retrospectively as well, and the balance previously recorded in OCI will
be reclassified into earnings. This occurs when the forecasted transaction is probable of not occurring.

Ineffectiveness results when the change in the hedging instrument’s fair value or cash flows are not
completely offset by the change in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows. For a cash flow hedge,
the effective portion of the gain or loss is reported in OCI and the ineffective portion (that exceeds the
change in the hedged item’s fair value) is reported quarterly in earnings. For fair value hedges,
changes in the fair value of the derivative and the hedged items are reflected in earnings.
Ineffectiveness is recorded to the same line items as the hedged transactions.

The methodology to prospectively and retrospectively assess hedge effectiveness must be documented
at the inception of the hedging transaction. Once the hedge relationship is documented and the
prospective assessment proven at inception, retrospective hedge effectiveness testing must be
performed at least quarterly to determine how effective the hedging relationship actually was in
achieving the offset in fair value or forecasted cash flows. The prospective assessment test must also
be performed quarterly to demonstrate that the hedge is still expected to be effective going forward.
The Treasury organization is responsible for performing these assessments and the responsible
accounting groups are responsible to interpret the hedge effectiveness results and record the hedge
ineffectiveness journal entries.

Initial Hedge Effectiveness Assessment (Prospective Assessment)

The initial hedge effectiveness assessment is a prospective assessment made prior to initiating a hedge
relationship. This analysis shall be able to justify the expectation that the hedge will be highly
effective over the period being hedged (the hedged period) in achieving offsetting changes in the cash
flows or fair value of the hedged item.

The methods of assessing prospective hedge effectiveness include regression analysis or another
statistical analysis approach (such as historical simulation or Monte Carlo simulation). The FASB
decided not to include examples of specific effectiveness assessment tests to preserve entities’
flexibility. The Company typically elects to use regression for the initial prospective assessment of
hedge effectiveness, but any method may be chosen, as long as it is stated in the hedge documentation.
In order to conclude that the hedging relationship is expected to be highly effective using a regression
analysis, at least 30 data points should be used in the analysis. The R? (which can vary between 0 and
1) should be equal to or greater than 0.8, the slope should be between a 0.8 and 1.25, and the t and F
statistics should be evaluated at a 95 percent confidence level in accordance with guidance provided
by the SEC staff.

R? measures the ability of the independent variable to explain the variation in the dependent variable.
The higher the value is, the higher the indication that the independent variable can explain variation in
the dependent variable. The slope represents an estimate of the sensitivity to changes in the
independent price to changes in the dependent price.
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The t and F statistics are used to indicate correlation or a linear relationship between independent and
dependent variables. A high t statistic generally indicates that correlation or a linear relationship exists
between the independent and dependent variables. To achieve a 95% confidence level, the
significance of F should be less than 5%. If the significance of F is less than 5% there is less than 5%
probability that no linear relationship is present. The initial assessment need not be performed for each
and every hedge but only when a new hedge strategy is proposed. However, the data used in the
regression shall be updated at least on a quarterly basis (as new hedges are entered into). In addition,
the initial assessment of effectiveness for a particular hedge strategy shall be evaluated if the ongoing
assessment for a particular relationship, as discussed below, repeatedly indicates an ineffective hedge.

Hedges must pass volumetric tests that are used to assess that the forecasted transaction is probable of
occurring.

Special situations: Short-cut method/Critical terms match

Shortcut: An assumption of no ineffectiveness is especially important in a hedging relationship
involving an interest-bearing financial instrument and an interest rate swap, because it significantly
simplifies the computations necessary to make the accounting entries (referred to as the shortcut
method). An entity may assume no ineffectiveness in a hedging relationship of interest rate risk
involving a recognized interest-bearing asset or liability and an interest rate swap. ASC 815-20-25-
104 through 25-106 detail the criteria that must be met to apply the shortcut method. It is common
that the fair value hedges of the Company’s debt instruments qualify for the short-cut method.

Critical terms match: ASC 815-20-35-9 through 35-13 allow for a simplified approach to
assessing and measuring ineffectiveness of cash flow hedges if, at inception, the critical terms of
the hedging instrument and the hedged forecasted transaction are the same. If so, the entity can
conclude that changes in cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged are expected to be
completely offset by the hedging derivative. Therefore, subsequent assessments can be
performed by verifying and documenting whether the critical terms of the hedging instrument
and the forecasted transaction have changed during the period in review. Because the
assessment of hedge effectiveness in a cash flow hedge involves assessing the likelihood of the
counterparty’s compliance with the contractual terms of the derivative instrument designated as
the hedging instrument, the entity must also assess whether there have been adverse
developments regarding the risk of counterparty default.

If there are no changes in the critical terms and it is still probable that the counterparty will not
default, the entity may conclude that there is no ineffectiveness to be recorded. In that case, the
change in fair value of the derivative instrument can be viewed as a proxy for the present value
of the change in cash flows attributable to the risk being hedged. However, the entity must
measure the amount of ineffectiveness that must be recorded currently in earnings if any of the
following conditions exist:

e The critical terms of the hedging instrument or the hedged forecasted transaction have

changed.
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e There have been adverse developments regarding the risk of counterparty default.

In addition, the entity must then assess whether the hedging relationship is expected to continue
to be highly effective.

The Company will document that critical terms match for energy deals with identical volumes,
delivery points and dates, and for interest rate swaps that match expected debt issuances.

e Treasury formally documents each quarter its assertion that the use of critical terms
match as the assessment of hedge effectiveness continues to be appropriate. If terms
have changed, FAA will request that the Treasury department perform hedge
effectiveness testing for the changed transactions. This generally occurs when the
issuance date and/or benchmark interest rate for the forecasted debt changes.

e For energy deals, the only variable that could change is the volume of the hedged item,
and these deals are included in the overall volumetric tests that Trading Controls
performs. Additionally, Trading Controls will formally document each quarter its
assertion that the critical terms still match.

¢ All blanket hedge documentation documents the need for the Treasury organization to
notify the appropriate accounting group if there has been a significant adverse
development in any counterparty’s creditworthiness. This is implicitly corroborated
through the magnitude of the credit valuation adjustment.

Special situations: Net Investment Hedges

Per ASC 815-35-35-16 through 35-17, if the notional amount of the derivative designated as a
net investment hedge equals the portion of the net investment designated as being hedged and the
derivative’s underlying relates solely to the foreign exchange rate between the functional
currency of the hedged net investment and the investor’s functional currency, all changes in fair
value of the derivative should be reported in the same manner as a foreign currency translation
adjustment (that is, reported in the cumulative translation adjustment section of OCI). In that
case, no hedge ineffectiveness would be recognized in earnings (including the time value
component of purchased options or the interest accrual/periodic cash settlement components of
qualifying receive-floating-rate, pay-floating-rate and receive-fixed-rate, pay-fixed-rate cross-
currency interest rate swaps). The Company documents this practice in its hedge documentation
to satisfy both the prospective and retrospective testing.

On-Going Hedge Effectiveness Testing (Prospective and Retrospective Assessments)

The Treasury organization performs dollar offset, regression and volumetric testing for cash flow
hedge and fair value hedge positions. The specific testing requirements for each hedging relationship
are detailed in the respective hedge documentation.

Price correlation testing is done for all energy hedge transactions. When no forward curve is
available, a model is used to determine a curve based on the nearest liquid trading point.
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Volumetric testing is done for transactions based on comparing the monthly hedge position
volumes to the monthly anticipated volume requirements.

Interest rate and foreign currency hedges generally qualify for the “short-cut method” or the
“critical terms match method,” which are discussed in Special Situations: Shortcut
method/Critical terms match. When the Company can no longer use critical terms match
(generally because Treasury changes its expectation of the date it will issue debt and/or the
benchmark interest rate to be hedged) as its hedge effectiveness assessment, the Company
assesses hedge effectiveness via the hypothetical-derivative method, discussed in ASC 815-30-
35-25 through 35-30.

Measuring hedge ineffectiveness: The only appropriate method for calculating the amount of
ineffectiveness that is recorded in earnings is the dollar offset method. This method compares
the amount of the dollar change in fair value or cash flows of the derivative with the amount of
the dollar change in fair value or cash flows of the hedged item over the assessment period. In
those cases where the Company uses the dollar offset method for its retrospective assessment and
regression analysis for its prospective assessment, ASC 815-20-55-68 through 55-69 is followed
to compute the amount of quarterly ineffectiveness. A hedge transaction that fails the dollar
offset test but passes the regression test will lose hedge accounting for the quarter being assessed,
but will not be de-designated as a hedge since the prospective assessment passes. In this
instance, the entire change in fair value of the derivative for the quarter being assessed will be
recorded in earnings, as well as any ineffectiveness computed as of the last time the dollar offset
test passed.

Special Situation: Counterparty Credit Risk

ASC 815-20-35-14 through 35-18 require entities to assess the possibility of whether a counterparty
will default by failing to make any contractually required payments to the entity. The assessment
should include the effect of any related collateralization or financial guarantees. Although a change in
a counterparty’s creditworthiness would not necessarily indicate the counterparty would default, such
a change must warrant further evaluation. If the likelihood that the counterparty will not default
ceases to be probable, an entity would be unable to conclude that the hedging relationship in a cash
flow hedge is expected to be highly effective. (The Treasury organization is responsible for informing
FAA of any significant change in a counterparty’s creditworthiness, per standard hedge
documentation.) In contrast, a change in the creditworthiness of a counterparty in a fair value hedge
would have an immediate impact because the change in the creditworthiness would affect the change
in the derivative’s fair value, which would immediately affect both the assessment of whether the
relationship qualifies for hedge accounting and the amount of ineffectiveness to be recognized.

However, under fair value accounting guidance, nonperformance risk (including the counterparty’s
credit risk and the entity’s own credit risk) may be calculated on a counterparty portfolio level (unit of
valuation), if the contracts are subject to master netting arrangements (e.g., ISDA, EEI, NAESB).
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Conversely, derivative accounting rules are applied at transaction level (unit of account). The
difference between the unit of valuation and the unit of account had raised questions regarding (1)
whether credit risk must be considered in assessments of hedge effectiveness and, if so, whether a
qualitative approach is permitted and (2) how and whether allocations from the counterparty portfolio
to the individual derivatives should be performed.

The accounting guidance provides an explicit accommodation for credit risk in cash flow hedging
relationships, and for calculations performed under methodologies most commonly used, credit risk
does not impact the dollar amount of ineffectiveness recognized in earnings or the assessments of
effectiveness. The three methodologies used for assessing effectiveness under a cash flow hedge,
which are discussed in ASC 815-30-35-10 through 35-32, are:

e Method 1: Change in variable cash flows (commonly used; credit risk is not assessed)

e Method 2: Hypothetical derivative (most commonly used, credit risk is qualitatively assessed)
e Method 3: Change in fair value (not commonly used; would result in ineffectiveness from
credit risk)

For fair value hedging relationships (excluding those accounted for under the short-cut method), the
fair value of the derivative must include an adjustment for credit risk, whereas the assessment of the
hedged item for hedges of the benchmark interest rate (the Company’s most common strategy when
using fair value hedges) is not impacted by credit risk. In April 2008, the SEC provided guidance that
a qualitative analysis may be performed for non-shortcut fair value hedges in which the entity
determines that changes in fair value attributable to credit risk would not affect whether the hedge is
considered highly effective. Therefore, the Company is permitted to exclude the credit valuation
adjustment calculated on a counterparty portfolio from the quarterly quantitative assessments,
provided that the Company documents qualitatively that credit risk would not cause the hedging
relationship to fail.

Derivative Classifications

Qualifying for the Normal Purchase and Normal Sales (NPNS) Exception for Energy
Transactions

Contracts that provide for the purchase or sale of nonfinancial instruments in quantities expected to be
used or sold by the entity over a reasonable period in the normal course of business are not subject to
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derivative accounting requirements. Transactions that qualify for the NPNS exception receive accrual
accounting treatment at the time of delivery. [See Appendix 1.]

The following guidance should be considered in determining whether a specific type of contract
qualifies for the NPNS exception (from ASC 815-10-15-22 through 15-51).

(1) Forward contracts (non-option-based contracts). Forward contracts are eligible to qualify for
the NPNS exception if it is probable at inception and throughout the term of the individual contract
that the contract will not settle net and will result in physical delivery. Therefore, forward contracts
that contain net settlement provisions under the contract terms* or through a market mechanism will
rarely qualify for the NPNS exception.

(2) Freestanding option contracts. Option contracts that would require delivery of the related asset
at an established price under the contract only if exercised are not eligible to qualify for the normal
purchases and normal sales exception, except as indicated in (4) below.

(3) Forward contracts that contain optionality features. Forward contracts that contain optionality
features that do not modify the quantity of the asset to be delivered under the contract are eligible to
qualify for the normal purchases and normal sales exception. Except for power purchase or sales
agreements addressed in (4), below, if an option component permits modification of the quantity of
the assets to be delivered, the contract is not eligible for the NPNS exception, unless the option
component permits the holder only to purchase or sell additional quantities at the market price at the
date of delivery. In order for forward contracts that contain optionality features to qualify for the
NPNS exception, the criteria discussed in (1) must be met.

4) Power purchase or sales agreements. Notwithstanding the criteria in (1) and (3), a power
purchase or sales agreement (whether a forward contract, option contract, or a combination of both)
that is a capacity contract also qualifies for the NPNS exception if it meets the criteria below.

Criteria applicable for both parties to the contract:

1. The terms of the contract require physical delivery of electricity. That is, the contract
does not permit net settlement provisions, as described in ASC 815-10-15-100 through
15-109 under the contract terms or through a market mechanism settlement. For an
option contract, physical delivery is required if the option contract is exercised.

2. The power purchase or sales agreement (whether a forward contract, an option
contract, or a combination of both) is a capacity contract. Differentiating between an

# Neither party is required to deliver an asset that is associated with the underlying and that has a principal amount,
stated amount, face value, number of shares, or other denomination that is equal to the notional amount (or the notional
amount plus a premium or minus a discount). For example, most interest rate swaps do not require that either party
deliver interest-bearing assets with a principal amount equal to the notional amount of the contract.
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option contract that is a capacity contract and a traditional option contract (that is, a
financial option on electricity) is a matter of judgment that depends on the facts and
circumstances. For power purchase or sale agreements that contain option features,
the characteristics of an option contract that is a capacity contract and a traditional
option contract, which are set forth in Paragraph 815-10-55-31 [see Appendix 1],
should be considered in that evaluation; however, other characteristics not listed may
also be relevant to that evaluation.

e ASC 815-10-55-31 defines a capacity contract as follows:

“An agreement by an owner of capacity to sell the right to that capacity to
another party so that it can satisfy its obligations. For example, in the electric
industry, capacity (sometimes referred to as installed capacity) is the
capability to deliver electric power to the electric transmission system of an
operating control area. A control area is a portion of the electric grid that
schedules, dispatches, and controls generating resources to serve load
(ultimate users of electricity) and coordinates scheduling of the flow of
electric power over the transmission system to neighboring control areas. A
control area requires entities that serve load within the control area to
demonstrate ownership or contractual rights to capacity sufficient to serve
that load at the time of peak demand and to provide a reserve margin to
protect the integrity of the system against potential generating unit outages in
the control area.”

Criteria applicable for the seller of electricity

3. The electricity that would be deliverable under the contract involves quantities that
are expected to be sold by the reporting entity in the normal course of business.

Criteria applicable to the buyer of electricity:

4. The electricity that would be deliverable under the contract involves quantities that
are expected to be used or sold by the reporting entity in the normal course of
business.

5. The buyer of the electricity under the power purchase or sales agreement is an entity
that is engaged in selling electricity to retail or wholesale customers that is statutorily
or otherwise contractually obligated to maintain sufficient capacity to meet electricity
needs of its customer base.

6. The contracts are entered into to meet the buyer’s obligation to maintain a sufficient
capacity, including a reasonable reserve margin established by or based upon a
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regulatory commission, local standards, regional reliability councils, or regional
transmission organizations.

Additionally, certain contracts that meet the definition of a derivative in their entirety and may
otherwise qualify for the NPNS exception have a price adjustment feature the underlying of
which is based on the fair value of an asset that is different from the asset to be delivered in the
contract. In other cases, the underlying of the price adjustment feature is based on an index or
other variable that is not related to the asset to be delivered under the contract. ASC 815-10-15-
30 through 15-34 provide guidance about when the price adjustment for an underlying would not
be considered clearly and closely related to the asset being delivered, which would preclude the
NPNS exception:

= The underlying is extraneous (that is, irrelevant and not pertinent) to both the changes in the
cost and the changes in the fair value of the asset being sold or purchased, including being
extraneous to an ingredient or direct factor in the customary or specific production of that
asset.

= |f the underlying is not extraneous as discussed in (1) above, the magnitude and direction of
the impact of the price adjustment is not consistent with the relevancy of the underlying. That
is, the magnitude of the price adjustment based on the underlying is significantly
disproportionate to the impact of the underlying on the fair value or cost of the asset being
purchased or sold (or of an ingredient or direct factor, as appropriate).

= The underlying is a currency exchange rate involving a foreign currency that meets none of
the criteria in Paragraph 815-15-15-10(b) for that reporting entity

LG&E/KU policies to comply with this guidance follow:

= Forward physical contracts (non-option-based contracts) that are subject to unplanned netting
(that is, subject to possibly being booked out) are not eligible to qualify for the NPNS
exception unless the contract explicitly includes the associated capacity, or unless the
contract’s delivery point is a non-liquid point, where delivery is highly probable. If not
eligible for NPNS, these transactions may be eligible for cash flow hedge accounting. (See
“Qualifying for Cash Flow Hedge Accounting.”)

= Forward option contracts that would require delivery of the related asset at an established
price under the contract only if exercised are not eligible to qualify for the NPNS exception,
unless they meet the definition of a capacity contract. (For example, plant-specific tolling
arrangements may qualify for the normal exception.) Again, if not eligible for NPNS, these
transactions may be eligible for cash flow hedge accounting.

= Forward contracts that contain optionality features that do not modify the quantity of the
asset to be delivered are eligible for the normal purchases and normal sales exception. If an
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option component permits modification of the quantity of the assets to be delivered (as in the
case of a requirements contract), the contract is not eligible for the normal purchase and
normal sales exception, unless it is probable that the contract will result in physical delivery,
and if the option component permits the holder only to purchase additional quantities at the
market price at the date of delivery.

= Power purchase or sales agreements (whether a forward contract, option contract, or a
combination of both) that is a capacity contract (see definition above) may qualify for the
normal purchases and normal sales exception if it meets certain criteria.

= Contracts that contain more than one underlying are evaluated to ensure that all underlyings
are relevant to the contract or are immaterial to the overall contract. An example of an
immaterial underlying could be the escalation of variable operation and maintenance costs at
CPI1 when the primary underlying is the price of gas in a financial tolling arrangement.

The following transactions for LG&E/KU fall under the NPNS exclusion:

e Ohio Valley Electric Cooperative (OVEC) Surplus [CTS transaction ids
#96002766 (LG&E), 98029245 (KU)]. These transactions represent our
ownership interests in OVEC generation via our electric bilateral capacity
purchase agreements. The amount of generation we receive on these contracts is
based on the ownership percentages of LG&E and KU (5.63% and 2.5%
respectively) and the availability of the OVEC units. These are physical purchases
of electricity used to serve native load requirements in the ordinary course of
business and therefore fall under the normal purchase normal sales exemption.

e Trimble County Allotment to IMEA and IMPA based on ownership percentage of
approximately 12.5%, respectively. These deals simply track the ownership
percentage allotment of generated power to IMEA and IMPA from the Trimble
County facility. These “transactions” are scheduling mechanisms and not real
transactions.

e Flows without Costs — [CTS transaction id# 98030785 (KU), 98030820 (LG&E)
or any Midwest 1SO revenue deals]. These deals are only used as a balancing
mechanism for transmission losses after-the-fact. These transactions are not
actual transactions subject to ASC 815 (formerly SFAS 133).

Other transactions in CTS are excluded from MTM treatment due to the following:
1. Certain transactions are excluded:

e Sales to ultimate customers (physical transactions) because these transactions are
considered normal sales

e Deals to track capacity agreements for reserve margin purchases
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e Physical deals to supply municipals
e Deals that have no notional amount (no minimum quantity)

2. Internal transactions between LG&E and KU are excluded since they are physical delivery
transactions and therefore are normal sales and purchases.

3. Transmission deals do not meet the definition of a derivative because of limited and illiquid
markets which fail the net settlement provision.

The primary transactions marked to market for LG&E/KU are as follows:

e All indexed capacity deals (sales & purchases) unless purchases for reserve margin.
e Financial swaps with a broker

Other important considerations and processes:

e Once MTM transactions are identified, credit reserves are established.

e The Energy Management System (EMS) is used to determine how load was served and
from what meter point off-system sales and purchases were delivered.

e The After-the-Fact Billing (AFB) process is an economic dispatch method required by
the Kentucky Public Service Commission and does not affect how off-system sales and
purchases will be treated for ASC 815 (formerly SFAS 133).

Transaction Accounting

Cash flow hedges are marked to fair value with the effective portion reflected in OCI, and the
ineffective portion (if any) reflected currently in earnings in the following income statement line
items:

= For energy and energy-related transactions: “~Operating revenues
= For interest rate derivatives: “Interest Expense”
= For foreign currency derivatives: “Other Income and Deductions”

Amounts in OCI are reclassified into earnings in the same period as the hedged forecasted transaction
impacts earnings and on the same line item as the hedged item. The line items used are:

= For energy and energy-related transactions: “~Operating revenues”
= For interest rate derivatives: “Interest Expense”
= For foreign currency derivatives: “Other Income and Deductions”
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Cash flow hedge accounting will be discontinued prospectively if any one of the following occurs:

= Any criteria qualifying the transaction as a cash flow hedge is no longer met.
= The derivative expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised.
= The designation of the cash flow hedge is removed voluntarily.

For discontinued hedges, the net gain or loss shall remain in OCI and be reclassified into earnings as
specified above, unless it is probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur by the end of the
originally specified time period or within an additional two-month period of time thereafter. If it is
probable that the forecasted transaction will not occur, all amounts will be reclassified into earnings at
the time the hedge is discontinued.

De-designated Cash Flow Hedges

The Company may enter into an offsetting position to “lock in” a margin on another
forward position that was originally designated as a cash flow hedge. For example, the
Company may enter into a forward purchase that offsets a previous forward sale of expected
generation. Both transactions will be classified as de-designated (matched) cash flow
hedges. This practice removes the cash flow hedge designation on the original trade.

If a cash flow hedge is discontinued because it is probable that the original forecasted
transaction (in this example the forward sale of generation) will not occur, the net derivative
gain or loss in OCI shall immediately be reclassified into earnings. We have interpreted this
guidance to mean that it must be 80% probable that the forecasted transaction will NOT
occur. Therefore, the forecasted transaction only needs to be 20% probable at the time of
de-designation for the balances to remain in OCI at the time of de-designation.

The Treasury organization will perform a dollar offset test on the original deal as of the date of de-
designation. Based on the calculation, the effective portion of the original deal will be deferred in
OCI. The amount in OCI will be reclassified to earnings as the deal goes to delivery. The ineffective
portion of the deal will be reclassified to earnings immediately.

Deferred taxes

At any given time, OCI reflects unrealized gains and losses from active or de-designated cash flow
hedges and realized gains and losses from settled or de-designated cash flow hedges. Under FASB’s
ASC 740, “Income Taxes,” OCI must be recorded net of taxes, and the deferred taxes must be
classified as “current or noncurrent based on the classification of the related asset or liability for
financial reporting. A deferred tax liability or asset that is not related to an asset or liability for
financial reporting, including deferred tax assets related to carryforwards, shall be classified according
to the expected reversal date of the temporary difference.” As such, the Company records the
unrealized and realized gains and losses in OCI as short-term or long-term, depending on when the
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amounts will be reclassified to earnings, so that the Tax Department can accurately calculate and
classify the deferred taxes associated with OCI.

Fair Value Hedge Accounting

The gain or loss on the hedging instrument (the fair value hedge) that results from recording the
derivative at fair value is recognized currently in earnings on the Statement of Income. The gain or
loss on the hedged item is recorded as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item and
recognized currently in earnings on the Statement of Income. Depending on the hedged item, the line
items that would be impacted on the Statement of Income are “Operating revenues” and “Interest
Expense.” The realized cash settlements will be recognized in “Utility revenues” and “Interest
Expense.”

If the fair value hedge is fully effective, the gain or loss on the hedging instrument, adjusted for the
component, if any, of that gain or loss that is excluded from the assessment of effectiveness under the
entity’s defined risk management strategy for that particular hedging relationship, would exactly offset
the loss or gain on the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk. Any difference that may arise is
hedge ineffectiveness, which consequently is recognized currently in earnings.

Economic Activity
When describing ongoing earnings in our press releases and analysts calls, the Company excludes
the unrealized gains and losses (“Carve-out”) related to economic hedging transactions which either
do not qualify or were not designated as accounting hedges. The rationale behind excluding
unrealized earnings for these transactions was that they were entered into for hedging purposes and
were probable of going to delivery or settlement. Accordingly, the interim earnings volatility could
and should be ignored as the ultimate earnings impact of these transactions will be based on the
pricing terms of the contracts (plus/minus any basis that was not hedged). Even though these deals
did not qualify for hedge accounting or hedge accounting was not elected, accrual treatment is a
more fair interim and ultimate representation for these transactions than speculative (or trading)
accounting treatment. The four broad categories of energy risk management activities that may
qualify as non-trading, economic activity are:
= Contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting, such as reasonably effective hedges,
hedge ineffectiveness and spark spread trades.
= Contracts that qualify for hedge accounting, but hedge accounting has not been elected
(undesignated hedges), such as certain load-following obligations and retail gas activities.
= Asset-backed strategies which optimize the option value of the Company’s portfolio of
plants.
= Strategies to facilitate non-trading realized accounting classifications.

The designation of energy transactions as non-trading, economic activity impacts the classification
of individual line items on the financial statements. Transactions that are classified as non-trading,
economic activity are recorded in “Operating revenues”.
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Realized vs. Unrealized Accounting & Reporting

As speculative and economic transactions are realized on the income statement, they should be
recognized on the same major income statement line item as the unrealized activity related to those
transactions was recorded.

Valuation Issues
Definition of Fair Value

Fair value, as defined in ASC 820-10-20, is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. Within this definition are fair value measurement concepts including: a) exit
price (an entry or settlement price does not necessarily equate to fair value), b) highest and best
use, ¢) principal or most advantageous market and d) non-performance risk (e.g., credit risk) for
an entity’s assets as well as its own liabilities.

The discussion about the definition of fair value (and its application in the fair value framework)
provides clarity on a number of key points, including:

= Fair value is the price to sell an asset or transfer a liability and, therefore, represents an
exit price, not an entry or settlement price.

= The exit price for an asset or liability is conceptually different from its transaction price
(an entry price). While exit and entry price may be identical in many situations, the
transaction price is no longer presumed to represent the fair value of an asset or liability
on its initial recognition. A key assumption is that credit risk is assumed to continue after
the theoretical sale or transfer; as such, the credit risk associated with both assets and
liabilities must be considered in the fair value measurement.

= The exit price for an asset or liability is also conceptually different from a settlement
price. Again, a key assumption is that credit risk is assumed to continue after the
theoretical sale or transfer. Additionally, settlement results in changes in the timing of
the cash flows, which necessitates a consideration of the cost of carry. For example,
valuation techniques require that expected cash flows be discounted at a risk-free rate, but
when a settlement value is calculated, prudent business practice requires the
consideration of a company's average financing costs (WACC, or weighted average cost
of capital). As such, settlement values will rarely equal the theoretical fair value. A
significant difference between fair value and settlement value should be analyzed to
ensure that the inputs to the fair value measurements are consistent with the inputs a
market participant would use.
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= Fair value is the exit price in the principal market (or, if lacking a principal market, the
most advantageous market) in which the reporting entity would transact. However, the
price in the exit market should not be adjusted for transaction costs.

= Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and, as
such, is determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability.

= The exit price objective of a fair value measurement applies regardless of the reporting
entity’s intent and/or ability to sell the asset or transfer the liability at the measurement
date.

= A fair value measurement contemplates the sale of an asset or transfer of a liability, not a
transaction to offset the risks associated with an asset or liability.

= The transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability is a hypothetical transaction as of
the measurement date and assumes an appropriate period of exposure to the market, such
that the transaction is considered orderly.

=  The measurement of fair value gives the highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable
inputs.

= |f a fair value measurement is based on bid/ask prices, the price within the bid/ask spread
that is most representative of fair value should used. However, entities are not precluded
from using mid-market pricing or other pricing conventions as a practical expedient for
fair value measurements.

Fair Value Hierarchy

Each derivative (and other instruments recognized at fair value on the balance sheet) must be
classified within one of three levels in the fair value hierarchy for disclosures purposes. The
measurement of fair value gives the highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs
(Level 3). Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets or for identical or
similar assets or liabilities that are not active are considered Level 2. The level in the fair value
hierarchy within the fair value measurement in its entirety falls shall be determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. Assessing the
significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment,
considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following represents a general view on a hierarchy of valuation data and information:
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= Level 1: Quoted market prices in active reference markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

= Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

= Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

Valuation — General

All derivative instruments not designated and qualifying for the NPNS exception shall be recorded on
the balance sheet at their fair value at each reporting period. All transactions shall be valued using
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs.

Valuation techniques consistent with the market approach, income approach, and/or cost
approach shall be used to measure fair value. Key aspects of those approaches are:
= Market approach: The market approach uses prices and other relevant information
generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
= Income approach: The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future
amounts (for example, cash flows or earnings) to a single present amount (discounted).
The measurement is based on the value indicated by current market expectations about
those future amounts.
= Cost approach: The cost approach is based on the amount that currently would be
required to replace the service capacity of an asset (often referred to as current
replacement cost). This valuation technique is not appropriate for the valuation of
derivatives.

In some cases, a single valuation technique will be appropriate; in other cases, multiple valuation
techniques may be appropriate. If multiple valuation techniques are used to measure fair value,
the results (respective indications of fair value) shall be evaluated and weighted, as appropriate,
considering the reasonableness of the range indicated by those results. A fair value measurement
is the point within that range that is most representative of fair value in the circumstances.

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value must be consistently applied. However, a
change in a valuation technique or its application (for example, a change in its weighting when
multiple valuation techniques are used) is appropriate if the change results in a measurement that
is equally or more representative of fair value in the circumstances. That might be the case if, for
example, new markets develop, new information becomes available, information previously used
is no longer available, or valuation techniques improve. A change in valuation technique does
not require entities to restate or retrospectively adjusting amounts reported in financial
statements of prior periods or by reporting pro forma amounts for prior periods.

Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or
liability, including assumptions about risk, for example, the risk inherent in a particular valuation
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technique used to measure fair value (such as a pricing model) and/or the risk inherent in the
inputs to the valuation technique. Inputs may be observable or unobservable:
= Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity.
= Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about
the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed
based on the best information available in the circumstances. Valuation techniques used
to measure fair value must maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use
of unobservable inputs.

If no active trading market exists for a derivative or a derivative’s duration, fair value must be
calculated using internally developed valuation techniques or models. Key components used in these
valuation techniques include price curves, creditworthiness, volatility, correlation, and tenor. There
may be observable market data for certain components and unobservable data for other components,
the combination of which measures the fair value of the derivative. These relationships shall be
routinely re-evaluated based on available market data, and changes in price relationships shall be
reflected in price curves prospectively.

Valuation — Commodity Derivatives

The fair value of a commodity derivative is calculated by evaluating the mark-to-market value,
adjusted for other factors, such as credit risk, liquidity risk and modeling risk.

Mark-to-Market Value: Commodity derivatives are currently valued, almost exclusively, in CTS.
LKE currently does not transact in exchange-traded gas futures and options that settle each day
through margin accounts. If LKE enters such transactions in the future, they would be valued using
the market techniques (and classified as Level 1). All of the contracts LKE currently enters into are
valued using the income technique.

Pricing inputs come from a variety of sources: NYMEX, GlobalView, InterContinental Exchange and
broker quotes. The market price curve is generally the most significant component affecting the
ultimate fair value for a contract subject to fair value accounting.

The price curves are updated daily by Trading Controls. Quarterly, Trading Controls validates the
prices by getting quotes from an independent pricing source to ensure the reasonableness of the
forward price curves. LKE classifies these price points as Level 2. The discount rates used in
valuation are the data points in the LIBOR curve (up through one year) and the US Treasury yield
curve (beyond one year), and are considered Level 2.

A contract is classified as Level 3 if at least 20% of its value was derived from Level 3 inputs.
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Credit valuation adjustments: Valuing the credit risk in a derivative contract is particularly complex
for three main reasons:

= It is unknown whether the contract will be in an asset position or liability position at the
time of default (which requires entities to consider both the counterparty’s and its own
creditworthiness at each valuation date).

= |t is unknown what the value of the contract will be at the time of default.

= Entities rarely sell/transfer contracts but enter into offsetting positions instead — at prices
that do not incorporate credit risk. Credit risk is managed through credit limits and
collateral.

Additional complexities include:

= Unlike interest rate information (e.g., interest rate curves and volatilities), which applies
universally to all entities and is widely available, credit risk information is unique and
entity-specific. Credit default swaps and quoted bond spreads can provide an indication
of the credit risk that market participants perceive about an entity. However, this
information is often not available for all counterparties and/or durations, and developing
the data required may be more of an art than a science. For example, entities could start
by considering borrowing spreads on currently outstanding debt, and then adjust those
spreads for factors such as changes in general market conditions, changes in credit sector
spreads, changes in entity-specific financial condition (deterioration/improvement),
changes in the time remaining to maturity on the derivative, and changes in collateral or
other credit enhancements (for example, parent guarantees). Entities could also consider
spreads on recently issued debt, dealer quotes for projected debt issuances, and/or implied
spreads on traded debt.

= Credit risk theory states that credit valuation adjustments should be based on both the
current exposure (current settlement value) and potential exposure, which is a function of
potential price movements over time and the resulting, probability-weighted fair values.
The potential exposure is calculated by (a) applying implied volatilities to the current
term structure of market prices, (b) determining the fair values of the derivative based on
the dispersion of those prices after volatility is applied, and (c) probability weighting and
discounting those potential future values. Added together, the current exposure and
potential future exposure make up the total expected exposure.

= Credit valuation must include the effects of master netting arrangements and collateral (or
other credit enhancements)

Fortunately, the impact of credit risk on the fair value of derivatives is generally small relative to
liabilities like debt, because the principal (notional) amount is not at risk and credit
enhancements often exist. As such, LG&E/KU has taken a more pragmatic approach to valuing
credit risk, which we believe many of our peers have done as well. LG&E/KU’s policy is to
apply a counterparty’s probability of default (from the Credit/Contract Administration
department, which gets it from S&P’s system) to the net asset position (offset by liabilities and
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collateral) for each counterparty and to apply LG&E/KU’s probability of default to a net liability
position (offset by assets and collateral) for each counterparty. For those net positions that
include non-derivative or NPNS deals, collateral is applied first to the non-derivative and NPNS
deals, and then to the derivatives on the balance sheet.

LG&E/KU considers the credit valuation adjustments as Level 2 along with the contract, since
credit valuation adjustments are considered to be immaterial.

Valuation — Interest Rates/Foreign Exchange Contracts

The fair value of interest rate and foreign exchange contracts is calculated by evaluating the mark-to-
market value, adjusted for other factors, such as credit risk, liquidity risk and modeling risk.

Mark-to-Market Value: On a monthly basis, Senior Treasury Analysts within Treasury who are
not responsible for trading, receive mark-to-market valuations from counterparties for each
transaction in order to ensure that they are effectively offsetting the interest rate risk of the
position or asset being hedged. In order to ensure reasonableness, these monthly valuations are
validated each month by running an internal spreadsheet prepared by a Treasury Analyst within
Treasury. The Treasury Analyst checks the valuations received from the counterparties against
this spreadsheet. If the valuation provided by the counterparty does not tie out with the internal
models, the Treasury Analysts resolve the differences with the counterparty. Once any errors are
corrected and valuations agree, a second Analyst from Treasury reviews the spreadsheet for
accuracy and initials the report indicating agreement. The internal models are not sophisticated
enough to value many of the tax-exempt transactions so the internal models will only provide a
rough approximation of the mark-to-market position.

Credit valuation adjustments: See the discussion “Credit valuation adjustments” within
“Valuation — Commodity Derivatives,” above.

Domestic interest rate/foreign currency derivatives:

For interest rate and foreign currency derivatives, LG&E/KU uses a 40% recovery rate
(consistent with market practice) to acknowledge that it is improbable that a loss given default
would equal 100% of the fair value.

Some derivatives extend well beyond the probabilities of default available; as such, the Company
has used simple extrapolation to extend the default curves to approach 100%, if necessary.

This practice will be assessed quarterly to assess the reasonableness of the results and to
determine if observable market information is available to calculate its credit valuation
adjustments, rather than relying on probabilities of default, which are based on historical default
rates. Because the Company uses probabilities of default, the credit valuation adjustments are
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considered Level 3 and are considered in the overall evaluation of whether a contract should be
classified as Level 2 or Level 3.

Liquidity and modeling valuation adjustments: The Company generally does not calculate
separate liquidity valuation adjustments, based on the traders’ view that liquidity risk is included
in the market prices. LG&E/KU also does not generally calculate modeling reserves, as the
interest rate/foreign currency derivatives can be developed using standard practices.

Reporting Requirements — General

ASC 815-10-50 details the disclosure requirements for derivatives and hedging activities. As
such, LG&E/KU discloses quarterly:
= Qualitative disclosures about the objectives and strategies for using derivatives, including
an understanding of the volume of derivative activity, by primary underlying risk
category (e.g., commodity, interest rate, foreign currency, and/or credit) and accounting
designation,
= Quantitative tabular disclosures about fair values of derivatives, on the Balance Sheet and
gains and losses on derivative instruments on the Income Statement,
= Disclosures about ineffectiveness, the discontinuance of hedges because forecasted
transactions are no longer probable, and the unrealized gains/losses that are expected to
be recognized in earnings over the next twelve months, and
= Disclosures about credit-contingent features in derivative (and other commodity)
contracts.

Furthermore, details the disclosure requirements for items recorded at fair value, including
derivatives. LG&E/KU discloses quarterly:
= The fair value measurements as of the balance sheet date, separated into the levels within
the fair value hierarchy
= A reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of fair values that are classified as
Level 3
= The valuation techniques and inputs used to develop the fair value measurements

In 2012 LKE prospectively adopted accounting guidance that was issued in ASU 2011-04 to
clarify existing fair value measurement guidance as well as enhance fair value disclosures. The
additional disclosures required by this guidance include quantitative information about
significant unobservable inputs used for Level 3 measurements, qualitative information about the
sensitivity of recurring Level 3 measurements, information about any transfers between Level 1
and 2 of the fair value hierarchy, information about when the current use of a non-financial asset
is different from the highest and best use, and the hierarchy classification for assets and liabilities
whose fair value is disclosed only in the notes to the financial statements.
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Also, ASC 815-30-45-1 requires that entities display, as a separate classification within other
comprehensive income, the net gains and losses on derivative instruments that qualify as cash flow
hedging instruments. Entities must also separately disclose a roll-forward of the activity for such net
gains and losses that are deferred in other comprehensive income, pursuant to ASC 220-10-45-14 (i.e.,
entities must disclose the "beginning"” and "ending" accumulated net derivative gain or loss, the related
change in the net gain or loss that is associated with current-period transactions, and any amount of the
net gain or loss that was reclassified as earnings during the period).

Finally, the SEC requires that market-risk information and accounting policies relating to derivative
activities are disclosed. The SEC’s accounting-policy and market-risk disclosure rules for derivatives
(Rule 4-08 of Regulation S-X, Item 305 of Regulation S-K, and Item 310 of Regulation S-B) require
that an entity disclose:

= the policies that it uses to account for derivative instruments, and

= certain quantitative and qualitative information about market-risk exposures relating to
the entity’s derivatives and other financial instruments, divided into commodity,
interest rate, foreign currency, and equity risk discussions, further divided into trading
and non-trading activities..

The SEC staff also requires certain disclosures made in Management’s Discussion & Analysis
(MD&A) section of financial statements. For energy trading and non-trading contracts, entities must
disclose:

= The types of contracts used to minimize risk

= A description of the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate fair value
= The sensitivity of the estimates to changes in the near term.

= The fair value of the contracts, aggregated by source or method of fair value,

= The maturity dates of the contracts

= Aroll-forward detailing changes in the fair value

Effect on Financial Statements

When complying with the accounting rules summarized above, LG&E/KU has made certain
accounting elections, as discussed below.

Balance Sheet

Short-term vs. long-term: Fair value measurements are recorded to price risk management
assets and liabilities based on whether the short- and long-term portion of the transaction is in a
gain or loss position. For example, if the overall fair value of a derivative consists of a gain
within the next twelve months and loss beyond that, the derivative is recorded as both a short-
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term price risk management asset and a long-term price risk management liability. Options are
recorded on the balance sheet based upon whether they are a purchased or sold option.
Purchased options (either put or call) are recorded as assets. Sold options (put or call) are
recorded as liabilities. For single expiry strip options, short-term vs. long-term is determined
based upon expiry date. If the single expiry strip option expires within 12 months of the
reporting date, the position is considered short-term. If the single expiry strip option expires
beyond 12 months of the reporting date, the position is considered long-term.

Netting: ASC 815-10-45-5 permits entities to offset the fair value of derivatives, collateral and accrual
for accounts receivable/payables under master netting arrangements. LG&E/KU has not elected to
present net positions. As such, in accordance with ASC 815-10-50-8, LG&E/KU discloses the
amount of collateral received and posted under master netting arrangements

Settlement date vs. delivery date: Some contracts, such as futures contracts and certain swap
contracts, settle a few days before the delivery month. LG&E/KU has opted to continue to show these
settled positions as price risk management assets/liabilities until the delivery month, in recognition that
Is immaterial to the balance sheet.

Income Statement

The following table diagrams where LKE’s realized and unrealized gains and losses are recorded
on the income statement in operating revenue.

Cash Flow Statement

LG&E/KU reflects the effects of unrealized and realized gains and losses from derivatives in the Cash
Flows from Operations portion of the cash flow statement, because they follow the same
classifications as the hedged items. However, when a derivative is entered into at off-market terms
(e.g., the fair value of the derivative is not zero at inception), LG&E/KU must evaluate the contract to
determine if it contains a financing element, as discussed in ASC 815-10-45-11 through 45-15.
Identifying a financing element within a derivative instrument is a matter of judgment that depends on
facts and circumstances. For example, LG&E/KU may have a financing element if it enters into an
out-of-the-money interest rate swap or it de-designates a derivative instrument and later redesignates
that derivative in a new hedging relationship. When the derivative contains a significant financing
element, all cash flows must be included in the Cash Flows from financing portion of the cash flow
statement.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Income statement tables: The tables show the amount realized for derivatives for the period.
LG&E/KU has defined the spot market activities, which are not treated as derivatives, to be
transactions that are entered into and deliver within the same month. Therefore, these values are
excluded from the tables. Furthermore, LG&E/KU classifies all derivatives that are no longer in
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active hedging relationships, such as matched cash flow hedges and other de-designated hedges as
“derivatives not designated as hedging instruments under SFAS 133” and has added a supplemental
disclosure of the value that remains in OCI as of the balance sheet date.

Level 3 reconciliation tables: LG&E/KU is required to provide a reconciliation table between the
beginning and ending balances of price risk management assets/liabilities that are classified as Level
3. When the reconciling item is due to a transfer in or out of Level 3, the transfers are assumed to
occur at the last day of the quarter.

To comply with the expanded disclosures about quantitative unobservable inputs:

e For energy commodities and auction rate securities, the range and weighted average
represent the percentage of fair value derived from the unobservable inputs.

e For cross currency swaps, the range and weighted average represent the percentage
decrease in fair value due to the unobservable inputs due to the unobservable inputs used
in the model to calculate the credit valuation adjustment.

e Footnotes to the reconciliation table further explain the nature of the Level 3 items as
well as the qualitative sensitivities surrounding the unobservable inputs.

Credit contingent features: Disclosures are required when credit contingent features exist within
derivative contracts that are in a net liability to LG&E/KU. LG&E/KU has interpreted “net liability”
to be the negative sum of all derivative contracts and collateral within a master agreement.
LG&E/KU has further opted to disclose the impact of credit contingent features if LG&E/KU were
downgraded one notch below investment grade. LG&E/KU includes credit contingent features that
have “hard triggers” (quantitative triggers) and “soft triggers (qualitative triggers).

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Much of the information required in the MD&A is referenced to the Notes. Those disclosures
that remain in the MD&A include:

Roll-forward tables: These tables are designed to tie to the income statement tables in the
Notes; therefore, spot activities are not included in the roll-forward tables.

Sensitivity analyses: For commodity risk, LG&E/KU does not disclose a VaR (Value at Risk)
because it has been deemed to be immaterial to the LG&E/KU financial statements.

Reports Generated and Recipients:
Regulated Trading Operation Mark to Market (Source: Trading Controls Dept)

NPV Mark to Market Spreadsheet (Source: Trading Controls Dept)
LG&E Continuing Operations Mark to Market Reserves
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Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

451 - Contractual Review policy

Regulatory Requirements:

Guidance for accounting for derivative activities in the FERC Uniform System of Accounts
Reference:

ASC-815-10, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
ASC-815-15, Embedded Derivatives

ASC 815-10-45-5, Netting

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

400 - Accounting Policy for Derivatives and Hedging

Key Contact:

Manager, Financial Accounting and Analysis.

Administrative Responsibility:

Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Date Created: 3/31/11
Dates Revised: 9/21/11, 11/1/12



Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 116 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 11/1/12
Page 38 of 44

450 — Derivatives and Hedging

Appendix 1: Derivative Documentation Flowchart
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451 — Contractual Review

Policy: Contracts within the scope defined below are reviewed monthly and evaluated to
determine the appropriate accounting treatment related to the terms in the contract, which may
include leases, variable interest entities (VIES), guarantees, derivatives, purchase obligations and
credit contingent features within the executed contract. Additionally, contracts are evaluated to
identify swaps to comply with the requirements of the Commaodity Exchange Act, as modified by
Title VII of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Dodd-Frank
Act).

Included in this policy are the references to the Sarbanes-Oxley Transaction 80.04 Loss
Contingencies, Leases, Contracts and Guarantees Control Activities (80.04 CA 1,2,3,6,8).

Procedure: Contracts are reviewed by Financial Accounting and Analysis (FAA) using
checklists of items to consider when evaluating the transactions for accounting implications and
for Dodd-Frank Act swap identification purposes.

Scope: Applicable to LG&E and KU Energy LLC’s and its subsidiaries’ (“LKE” or “the
Company”) all contracts meeting the following thresholds are considered “in-scope”:

$1 Million total contract value over the life of the contract, or

Term of 5 years or longer, or

Any contract with an indeterminable amount or an indeterminable term.

All lease agreements (no financial threshold).

All long-term commaodity transactions entered into by Power Supply (no financial
threshold).

The financial thresholds and guidelines are based on a determination of contracts that may have a
material impact on the financial statements.

The review of contracts is documented differently based on the financial impact of the contract
as follows:

e Review of a contract greater than $5 Million or a term of 5 years or longer is required to
be documented using the contract review template. (See Step 2 - Review of the
Contracts, Item 2 below).

e Review of contracts that are greater than $1 Million, but less than $5 Million, is done at a
higher level with the goal of complex issue identification. Completion of the contract
review template is not required; however it may be used if a complex accounting issue is
identified. (See Step 3 - Contract Inventory and Conclusions, Item 2 below).

e Review of a contract that has no estimable total value or an indeterminable term is
required to be documented using the contract review template. (See Step 2 — Review of
the Contracts, Item 2 below).
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e |f the contract value is clearly lower than $1 Million and has no reasonable possibility of
approaching that amount, the contract can be excluded from the review and documented
as such.

In addition to the accounting review of the contracts, all contracts are subject to the Authority
Limit Matrix approval requirements and are not considered approved contracts until all the
appropriate approvals are obtained. It is noted in the Authority Limit Matrix in Notes 6(e) that in
compliance with accounting guidelines, all contracts greater than $1,000,000 must be submitted
to Financial Accounting and Analysis.

Objective of Procedure: The objective of this procedure is to establish guidance for the review
and evaluation of contracts so that the proper accounting treatment may be applied, and to
provide a process for ascertaining LKE’s compliance with the Dodd-Frank Act.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:
Step 1 - Gathering the Contracts

1. Microsoft SharePoint will be utilized as a central location to gather in-scope contracts to
be reviewed. FAA is one of the site owners and has access to review all site content.
Each business line shall appoint one individual, the “Group Admin”, who will coordinate
the submission of documents to the site; however any approved individual within a
business line will have access to upload or view documents. (See the Contracts Database
SharePoint Site under references for the SharePoint Permission Levels document for
more information).

2. FAA will notify Group Admins of monthly submission deadlines via Microsoft Outlook
Calendar appointment (with copy to site Calendar) to be sent in January as a recurring
monthly appointment for the year. Group Admins are responsible for meeting this
monthly submission deadline. Upon submission, Group Admins are also responsible for
initiating review workflows and assigning a review task to the FAA Analyst.

3. An Oracle report is received from Supply Chain for all contracts and purchase orders
entered into Oracle greater than $1M to gather monthly procurement contracts. These
lists are used to ensure that FAA has received these contracts.

4. FAA Analyst conducts a separate survey of leases on a quarterly basis, as all lease
agreements are reviewed regardless of the dollar value of the agreement. The FAA
Analyst sends the lease inventory spreadsheet to designated business line contacts (see
Appendix B) within LKE who are responsible for lease agreements (including, but not
limited to, vehicles, equipment, rail cars and real estate). (80.04 CA 6)


http://intranet/BusAreas/HR/Peoplelink/Policies/Authority%20Limit%20Matrix.xlsx
http://intranet/BusAreas/HR/Peoplelink/Policies/Authority%20Limit%20Matrix.xlsx
http://intranet/BusAreas/HR/Peoplelink/Policies/Authority%20Limit%20Matrix.xlsx
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Step 2 — Review of the Contracts

1.

All contracts are reviewed by the FAA Analyst and evaluated to determine that the

appropriate accounting features have been identified in the contract. The evaluation is

performed in accordance with the following LKE and PPL policies containing the

relevant ASC technical guidance and all other applicable GAAP:

e 450 - Derivatives and Hedging (ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging)

454 - Leases (ASC 840, Leases)

1057 - Guarantees (ASC 460, Guarantees)

1058 - Variable Interest Entities (ASC 810, Consolidation)

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, Title VII Compliance

Manual for PPL Corporation

If required (see Scope section), the review of the in-scope contract is documented on an

Excel spreadsheet template. Changes to the template are coordinated with PPL. The

completed templates are uploaded to the applicable contract document set in SharePoint.

(See the Contracts Database SharePoint Site under references for the current version of

the Contract Review Template document for more information).

FAA Analyst will perform a high-level review of $1 - $5 million contracts uploaded to

the site in order to identify trends, unusual items or other accounting issues that could

potentially have a material financial impact. The contract review templates are not

required to be completed, but may be used as a tool to evaluate complex accounting

issues identified during the review of the contract.

FAA'’s review is not limited to the items included on the template, as the template is a

tool that is utilized to walk through complex accounting issues. FAA will also review the

accounting features and other attributes populated by users on a contract document set for

accuracy as part of the review.

The contract review template may be completed by the Business Line Contact or by the

FAA analyst, and must be reviewed by the Manager, Financial Accounting and Analysis

(FAA Manager) and Manager, Credit and Contract Administration (CCA Manager). The

FAA analyst initiates a workflow task to be completed by FAA Manager and CCA

Manager indicating the completion of their reviews. (80.04 CA 1,3)

The CCA Manager has access to review all site content and will review all contracts for

the proper identification of credit contingent features and to identify swaps based on the

definition in the Dodd-Frank Act.

Certain contracts have standard terms and conditions in a base agreement. These

contracts are executed by individual counterparty, but executed contracts cannot vary in

terms and conditions from the base agreement. Therefore, the base agreements are

reviewed annually of each year or as changes are made. These contracts include the

following:

e Customer Contracts - The Company’s Rates, Terms and Conditions for Furnishing
Electric/Gas Service, are filed with and approved by the Kentucky Public Service
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Commission and the Virginia State Corporation Commission. In lieu of reviewing
individual contracts, FAA will confirm quarterly with the Economic Development
and Major Accounts departments (see Appendix A) that no deviations have occurred
from the base agreements. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission municipal
customer’s contracts are reviewed separately in the Energy Supply and Analysis
Business Line and sent to FAA.

e Gas Retail Contracts - Individual transactions are denoted on daily nomination
schedules. These contracts are deemed to be derivative contracts that qualify for the
normal purchase, normal sale exclusion. These transactions are entered into and
managed by the Gas Management Planning and Supply department. In lieu of
reviewing individual contracts, FAA will confirm quarterly with the Gas
Management Planning and Supply department that no deviations have occurred from
the base agreement (see Appendix A) and that all transactions entered into would be
considered normal purchase normal sale transactions.

The signed Confirmations are sent by the respective Business Line contacts from
Economic Development and Major Accounts and Gas Supply departments to the FAA
Analyst before the last day of a quarter-end month and uploaded by the FAA Analyst to
the Contracts Database SharePoint site. (see Appendix A) (80.04 CA 2)

Step 3 - Contract Inventory and Conclusions

1. All conclusions reached through the contract review process should be included within
the appropriate document set for the contract and available to the Business Line contacts
and others for review.

2. A listing of all contracts over $5 million along with completed templates and a listing of
contracts between $1 and $5 Million will be sent to PPL Technical Accounting before the
quarter-end closing meeting.

3. Financial Reporting and Audit Services will have access to the SharePoint Site to
facilitate gathering SEC reporting, SOX, and quarterly/annual Client Assistance contract
review supporting documentation.

Security:
The FAA department will perform a quarterly SharePoint access review to ensure proper access

to the site and each document library. Access to the site should be approved by Manager-level or
above within the lines of business and granted by Site Owners. (80.04 CA 8)
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Reports Generated and Recipients:

The following reports are generated quarterly:

e Contract Inventory listing of contracts greater than $5 million from FAA is sent to PPL
Technical Accounting and Financial Reporting.

e Contract Inventory listing of contracts between $1 - $5 million from FAA is sent to PPL
Technical Accounting and Financial Reporting

e Confirmations received from Economic Development and Major Accounts and the Gas
Management Planning and Supply departments are sent to FAA

e Lease inventory report from FAA is sent to Financial Reporting and E&Y



Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 128 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 4/13/2013
Page 6 of 8

451 — Contractual Review

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
None

Regulatory Requirements:

None

Reference:

ASC-460, Guarantees

ASC-810, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities

ASC-815, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities
ASC-840, Accounting for Leases

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, Title VII Compliance Manual for
PPL Corporation

Key Contact:

Manager, Financial Accounting and Analysis

Administrative Responsibility:

Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Date Created: 4/9/07
Dates Revised: 6/30/08, 4/23/09, 8/23/10, 3/18/11, 6/29/11, 10/4/11, 6/28/12, 4/13/13, 12/17/13
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APPENDIX A — Confirmations

Confirmation of Customer Contracts

Group Name : Economic Development and Major Accounts

The purpose of this confirmation is to confirm that all transactions entered into under the base contract agreements for
the applicable quarter did not deviate from the base agreement.

1.) Were there any executed agreements over $1,000,000 during the quarter that deviated
in terms and conditions from the base agreements?

The Company's Rates, Terms and Conditions for Furnishing Electric/Gas Service, are filed
with and approved by the Kentucky Public Service Commission and the Virginia State
Corporation Commission. A response of no confirms there are no deviations from the base
agreements that exceeded $1,000,000.

Confirmation of Normal Purchase Normal Sales Transactions
Group Name : Gas Management Planning and Supply

The purpose of this confirmation is to confirm that all transactions entered into under the base contract
agreements for the applicable quarter are in compliance with the normal purchase normal sale exception
for derivatives accounting.

1.) Determine if the contract transactions meet the definition of a normal purchase

normal sales.

All of the following answers must be yes in order for the contract transactions to be deemed normal
purchase normal sales transactions.

a.) Did all transactions entered into have normal quantities, location for physical delivery, and timing of
gas purchases and sales reasonable in relation to the business needs of LG&E?

(no transactions occurred without the probable intent of being used for LG&E gas
customers)

b.) Were all price indices used to determine the fair value of the transactions not extraneous, not
disproportionate in magnitude or direction, and not related to a nonfunctional currency?

Please list the indices used for the transactions.

c.) Did all transactions occur in physical settlement of gas delivered? (no transactions occurred with only
financial settlement and no gas delivered)

2.) Were there any executed agreements during the quarter that deviated in terms and conditions from
the base agreement?
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APPENDIX - B
Lease Review Contacts
Contact Title Lines of Business
M anager, Corporate Accounting Accounting
M anager, Transportation Distribution Operations
Right of Way Agent Il Distribution Operations
M anager, Administrative/Contract Services Distribution Operations
Fleet Contract M anager Distribution Operations
Director, Operating Services Business Process M anagement Distribution Operations
Transportation Records Technician Distribution Operations
Director, Distribution Operations Distribution Operations
M anager, Fuels Accounting and Administration Energy Marketing
M anager, Commercial Operations (Cane Run) Energy Services
Contract Administrator (Mill Creek) Energy Services
M anager, Commercial Operations (Trimble County) Energy Services
M anager, Commercial Operations (E.W. Brown) Energy Services
M anager, Finance & Budgeting - Power Production Energy Services
Senior, Budget Analyst (Trimble County) Energy Services
Senior, Budget Analyst (Ghent) Energy Services
M anager, Maintenance - Power Generation (Green River) Energy Services
Senior, Budget Analyst (Cane Run) Energy Services
Administrative Coordinator (Green River) Energy Services
Senior, Budget Analyst Energy Services
M anager, Commerical Operations (Ghent) Energy Services
Senior, Budget Analyst (E. W. Brown) Energy Services
Senior, Corporate Attorney Legal
Corporate Affairs Coordinator Legal
Telecommunications Shop Supervisor Network Infrastructure
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Policy: Goodwill of LG&E and KU Energy LLC ("LKE™) and its subsidiaries is recorded in
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (*ASC”) 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, and ASC 820, Fair Value
Measurements and Disclosures.

Procedure: The excess cost of the acquired entity over the net fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or on a
more frequent interim basis if relevant conditions dictate.

Scope: Goodwill recorded on LKE and its subsidiaries.

Objective of Procedure: The objective of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”)
Accounting Standards Codification (“*ASC”) Topic 350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other, is to
address how intangible assets that are acquired individually or with a group of other assets
(excluding those acquired in a business combination) should be accounted for in financial
statements upon their acquisition and thereafter. The purpose of testing goodwill is to determine
if an impairment of the asset according to ASC 350 has occurred and if it must be recognized in
the financial statements. Below are definitions of values used for testing goodwill:

e Impairment of goodwill is the condition that exists when the carrying value of the
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value.

e Carrying value of goodwill is defined as the value of the asset as it appears on the balance
sheet.

e Implied fair value of goodwill is defined as the excess of the fair value of reporting unit
over the amounts assigned to its assets and liabilities.

Fair Value — As stated in ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, “fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.” ASC 820 requires documentation of fair
value measurement concepts including: a) exit price (entry, transaction or settlement price does
not necessarily equate to fair value), b) highest and best use, c¢) principal or most advantageous
market and d) non-performance risk (e.g. credit risk) for an entity’s own liabilities. In addition,
ASC 820 expands the fair value disclosure requirements of other accounting pronouncements.
When measuring fair value, these concepts as well as the disclosures should be considered and
documented.
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General Requirements:

ASC 350 is generally an acknowledgement by the FASB that goodwill often is not a wasting
asset and that such assets, accordingly, should not be subject to amortization. Replacing
amortization in this context is the application of impairment testing which generally involves:

e Definition of the reporting units;

e Allocation of goodwill to the various reporting units;

e Determination of the fair value of each reporting unit;

e Comparison of the fair value of each reporting unit with the carrying value of the
reporting unit;

e Adjustment of goodwill in the event of impairment (carrying value of the reporting unit
exceeds its fair value).

Testing for impairment of goodwill is conducted at least annually on the reporting unit level.
The impairment test may be performed any time during the fiscal year provided the test is
performed at the same time every year. LKE and its affiliates have determined that the annual
impairment testing for reporting units will occur in the fourth quarter of each year based on the
current long-term planning data. (For example, the goodwill impairment for 2011 would occur
in October of 2011 using long-term planning data from the 2012 Plan.)

Reporting unit — definition

Goodwill impairment test must be performed on the reporting unit level. According to ASC 250
— Segment Reporting, a reporting unit is an operating segment or one level below an operating
segment (referred to as a component). An operating segment is defined as a component of an
enterprise that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses
whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker to make
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available.

A component of an operating segment is a reporting unit if the following criteria are fulfilled:
e The component constitutes a business for which discrete financial information is
available;
e The components have different economic characteristics and,;
e Segment management regularly reviews the results of that component.

Currently, LKE has three reporting units — LKE and subsidiaries, Louisville Gas and Electric
Company (LG&E) and Kentucky Utilities (KU).
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All goodwill acquired in a business combination shall be assigned to one or more reporting units
as of the acquisition date. Goodwill shall be assigned to reporting units of the acquiring entity.

In connection with PPL’s acquisition of LKE on November 1, 2010, the carrying value of LKE’s
goodwill as of October 31, 2010, was eliminated. New goodwill was recorded on November 1,
2010 on LG&E and KU as the reporting units of LKE. The allocation of the goodwill was based
on the net asset value of each company. The goodwill represents value paid for the rate
regulated business located in a defined service area, which provides for investment, future
earnings and cash flow growth. LG&E’s and KU’s franchise values are being attributed to the
going concern value of the business and thus, were recorded as goodwill rather than a separately
identifiable intangible asset. None of the goodwill recognized is deductible for income tax
purposes or included in customer rates.

When a portion of a reporting unit that constitutes a business is to be disposed of when the
reporting structure is reorganized the amount of goodwill shall be allocated based on the relative
fair values of the portion of the business to be disposed of and the portion of the reporting unit to
be retained. However, if the business to be disposed of was never integrated into the reporting
unit after its acquisition, (thus the benefits of the acquired goodwill were never realized by the
rest of the reporting unit) the current carrying amount of that acquired goodwill shall be included
in the carrying amount of the business to be disposed of. When only a portion of goodwill is
allocated to the business to be disposed of, the goodwill remaining in the portion of the reporting
unit retained shall be tested for impairment.

Qualitative Assessment (Step 0 Analysis)

In 2011, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) 2011-08 which amends the
guidance in ASC 350-20 on testing goodwill for impairment. Under the revised guidance,
beginning with fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2011, entities testing goodwill for
impairment have the option of performing a qualitative assessment before calculating the fair
value of the reporting unit (i.e., step 1 of the goodwill impairment test). In the qualitative
assessment, entities would determine whether it is more likely than not (i.e., a likelihood of more
than 50 percent) that the fair value of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount. If so,
they would proceed to step 1 of the goodwill impairment analysis in ASC 320-20. However, if
not, further testing of goodwill for impairment would not be required to be performed. Because
the qualitative assessment is optional, entities may bypass it for any reporting unit in any period
and begin their impairment analysis with the quantitative calculation in step 1. Entities may
resume performing the qualitative assessment in any subsequent period.

The ASU did not change how goodwill is calculated or assigned to reporting units, nor does it
revise the requirement to test goodwill annually for impairment. In addition, the ASU does not
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amend the requirement to test goodwill for impairment between annual tests if events or
circumstances warrant.

All goodwill recognized by a public or nonpublic subsidiary (subsidiary goodwill) in its separate
financial statements that are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) shall be accounted for in accordance with ASC
350. Subsidiary goodwill shall be tested for impairment at the subsidiary level using the
subsidiary’s reporting units. If goodwill of a subsidiary is impaired, a push-up of the impairment
to the consolidated level does not necessarily take place. If a goodwill impairment loss is
recognized at the subsidiary level, an assessment is made as to whether or not the fair value of
the reporting unit needs to be adjusted on a higher consolidated level by performing an interim
impairment test in the reporting units in which the subsidiary resides. Should a reduction in the
fair value of the reporting unit be considered unnecessary, an impairment loss is not recorded in
the consolidated statement of income.

If goodwill and another asset (e.g., under ASC 360 — Impairment of Long-Lived Assets) of a
reporting unit are tested for impairment at the same time, the other asset shall be tested for
impairment before goodwill.

Detailed Procedures Performed for Goodwill Impairment Test:

Step 0 Analysis

If the optional qualitative assessment is performed, ASC 350-20-35-3C provides the following
examples (not all-inclusive) of events and circumstance that may be considered in the qualitative
assessment:

a. Macroeconomic conditions such as a deterioration in general economic
conditions, limitations on accessing capital, fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
or other developments in equity and credit markets

b. Industry and market considerations such as a deterioration in the environment in
which an entity operates, an increased competitive environment, a decline in market-
dependent multiples or metrics (consider in both absolute terms and relative to
peers), a change in the market for an entity’s products or services, or a regulatory or
political development

c. Cost factors such as increases in raw materials, labor, or other costs that have a
negative effect on earnings and cash flows

d. Overall financial performance such as negative or declining cash flows or a
decline in actual or planned revenue or earnings compared with actual and projected
results of relevant prior periods
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e. Other relevant entity-specific events such as changes in management, key
personnel, strategy, or customers; contemplation of bankruptcy; or litigation

f. Events affecting a reporting unit such as a change in the composition or carrying
amount of its net assets, a more-likely-than-not expectation of selling or disposing
all, or a portion, of a reporting unit, the testing for recoverability of a significant
asset group within a reporting unit, or recognition of a goodwill impairment loss in
the financial statements of a subsidiary that is a component of a reporting unit

g. If applicable, a sustained decrease in share price (consider in both absolute terms
and relative to peers).

Entities should also consider:

* The *“extent to which each of the adverse events and circumstances identified could
affect the comparison of a reporting unit’s fair value with its carrying amount. An entity
should place more weight on the events and circumstances that most affect a reporting
unit’s fair value or the carrying amount of its net assets.”

» Any “positive and mitigating events and circumstances that may affect” the analysis.
However, positive and mitigating evidence should not be viewed as a rebuttable
presumption that an entity does not need to perform the quantitative calculation under
step 1.

* The difference between the current-period carrying amount and the fair value of a
reporting unit calculated in a recent prior period.

* The factors in their totality. No one factor is meant to be a determinative event that
triggers a quantitative calculation.

If the qualitative analysis is performed it must be documented thoroughly including any
underlying analysis to support the assertion of whether the fair value of the reporting unit is not
more likely than not less than its carrying amount.

Indicators for a possible decrease in value

Goodwill of a reporting unit shall be tested for impairment between annual tests if an event
occurs or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a
reporting unit below its carrying amount. Per ASC 350-20-35-30, examples of such events or
circumstances include:

e Asignificant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate;
e An adverse action or assessment by a regulator;

e Unanticipated competition;

e A loss of key personnel;
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e A more-likely-than-not expectation that a reporting unit or a significant portion of a
reporting unit will be sold or otherwise disposed of:

e The testing for recoverability under ASC 360 — Property, Plant and Equipment of a
significant asset group within a reporting unit;

e Recognition of a goodwill impairment loss in the financial statements of a subsidiary that
is a component of a reporting unit.

Quantitative Testing

Identification of a possible decrease in value (Step 1)

The first step in the quantitative portion of testing goodwill to identify potential impairments is
to compare each reporting unit's fair value with its carrying amount including goodwill. If a
reporting unit's carrying amount exceeds its fair value, this indicates that its goodwill may be
impaired and second-step testing is required.

To test for impairment, the fair value of a reporting unit is determined by means of a valuation
model that is derived from the business plan presented to the Board of Directors. PPL has
determined that it will centrally coordinate and perform all goodwill impairment testing
beginning in 2011. LKE will retain responsibility for ensuring the overall accuracy and
reasonableness of the calculations performed by PPL including conformity with GAAP.

A detailed determination of the fair value of a reporting unit may be carried forward from one
year to the next if all of the following criteria have been met:

e The assets and liabilities that make up the reporting unit have not changed significantly
since the most recent fair value determination;

e The most recent fair value determination resulted in an amount that exceeded the carrying
amount of the reporting unit by a substantial margin;

e Based on an analysis of events that have occurred and circumstances that have changed
since the most recent fair value determination, the likelihood that a current fair value
determination would be less than the current carrying amount of the reporting unit is
remote.

Determining the decrease in value (Step 2)

The second step of the quantitative portion of the goodwill impairment test, used to measure the
amount of impairment loss, is to compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill
with the carrying amount of its goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is computed by
allocating the reporting unit's fair value to all of its assets and liabilities in a manner that is
similar to a purchase price allocation in a business combination in accordance with ASC 805 —
Business Combinations. The remainder after this allocation is the implied fair value of the
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reporting unit's goodwill. If the fair value of goodwill is less than its carrying value, the

difference is recorded as an impairment loss.

Recognition of subsequent reversal of a previously recognized goodwill impairment loss is
prohibited once the measurement of that loss is completed under ASC 350.

Disclosure requirements

According to ASC 350 for each goodwill impairment loss recognized, the following information
shall be disclosed in the notes to the financial statements that include the period in which the
impairment loss is recognized:

e A description of the facts and circumstances leading to the impairment;

e The amount of the impairment loss and the method of determining the fair value of the
associated reporting unit;

e If arecognized impairment loss is estimated that has not yet been finalized, that fact and
the reasons therefore and, in the subsequent periods, the nature and amount of any
significant adjustments made to the initial estimate of the impairment loss.

Goodwill disclosure requirements pursuant to ASC 350 include, but are not necessarily limited to
the following:

e The total carrying amount at the end of each financial reporting period;

e The change in the carrying amount of goodwill during the period, including the aggregate
amount of goodwill acquired, the amount of impairment losses recognized, and the
amount of goodwill included in the gain or loss on disposal of a reporting unit (or portion
thereof).

Relevant personnel will determine, by use of Impairment Questionnaires and Checklists, the
applicability of reporting requirements pursuant to ASC 350 on at least an annual basis (or more
frequently based on the occurrence of relevant events) as previously described. (See Asset
Impairment Accounting Policy and Procedures.)

The PPL Controller and PPL Senior Director of Financial Planning is responsible for
determining whether the optional qualitative analysis will be performed, coordinating the
performance of any required impairment tests with PPL’s and LKE’s Financial Planning
departments and/or external consultants, reviewing the results with the external auditor and
communicating the results to LKE. LKE’s Financial Accounting and Analysis department, will
record any entries required if impairment exists.
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Reports Generated and Recipients:

Annual impairment test completed by PPL.

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
654 - Asset Impairment

Regulatory Requirements:

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) Accounting Guidelines

Reference:
e ASC 820 - Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures
ASC 350 - Intangibles — Goodwill and Other
ASC 250 - Segment Reporting
ASC 360 - Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
ASC 360 - Property, Plant and Equipment
ASC 805 - Business Combinations
February 13, 2011 - Segment Reporting technical research memo
April 25, 2011 - Segment Reporting LKE technical research memo

July 30, 2011 - Addendum I to April 25, 2011 Segment Reporting LKE technical
research memo

Key Contact:
Manager, Financial Accounting and Analysis
Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

e 1002 — Accounting and Reporting Requirements for Goodwill
e 402 — Asset Impairments

Administrative Responsibility:

Director, Accounting & Regulatory Reporting
Controller

Date Created: 6/30/05
Dates Revised: 7/27/10, 3/31/11, 9/8/11, 3/7/12
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Policy: LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE” or “the Company”) will account for and disclose
leases as required by U.S. GAAP.

Procedure: Review the applicable contracts within scope and consult with Supply Chain and
Legal department to report all leases for LKE.

Scope: All leases entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Objective of Procedure: Ensure all contracts for leases are appropriately reviewed and
reported.

General Requirements:
l. Definitions

Bargain purchase option - A provision allowing the lessee, at his option, to purchase the
leased property for a price which is sufficiently lower than the expected fair value of the
property at the date the option becomes exercisable that exercise of the option appears, at
the inception of the lease, to be reasonably assured.

Bargain renewal option - A provision allowing the company, as lessee, the option, to
renew the lease for a rental sufficiently lower than the expected fair rental of the same or
equivalent property at the date the option becomes exercisable. At the inception of the
lease, the projected economic benefit of this “bargain” rental renewal is such that the
ultimate exercise of the option is reasonably assured.

Capital lease - A lease which because of the terms of the agreement, requires that the
leased asset and corresponding obligation be recorded on the balance sheet of the entity
(lessee) which benefits from the use of the asset.

Contingent Rental - The increases or decreases in lease payments that result from
changes occurring subsequent to the inception of the lease in the factors (other than the
passage of time) on which lease payments are based. The portion of a lease payment
which increases or decreases depending on changes in factors such as the prime rate or
the consumer price index, or the future use of the leased property, such as machine hours
of use or sales volume during the lease term. Since these changes are not known at the
inception of the lease, contingent rentals are excluded from minimum lease payments.
Lease payments which depend on a rate or index are included in minimum lease
payments based on the index or rate in effect at the inception of the lease; any increases
or decreases in lease payments that result from subsequent changes in the index or rate
are contingent rentals. Escalation of lease payments in accordance with the terms of the
lease agreement due to increase in construction, acquisition cost or other measure of cost
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prior to or during the construction period are not considered to be contingent rentals;
therefore these payments are included in minimum lease payments.

Estimated economic life of leased property - The estimated remaining period during
which the property is expected to be economically usable by one or more users, with
normal repairs and maintenance, for the purpose for which it was intended at the
inception of the lease without limitation by the lease term.

Estimated residual value of leased property - The estimated fair value of the leased
property at the end of the lease term.

Executory costs - Those costs such as insurance, maintenance and taxes incurred for
leased property, which depending on the lease arrangement, may be paid by the lessor or
lessee. Amounts paid by a lessee in consideration for a guarantee of the residual value
from an unrelated third party are also executory costs.

Fair value of Leased Property - The price for which the property could be sold in an
arm’s-length transaction between unrelated parties

Inception of the lease - The date of the lease agreement or commitment, if earlier. For
purposes of this definition, a commitment must be in writing, signed by authorized
parties in interest to the transaction, and must specifically set forth the principal
provisions of the transaction. Preliminary agreement or commitments, wherein any of the
principal provisions are yet to be negotiated, do not fall within this definition and,
accordingly, the lease is deemed to have not commenced.

Incremental Borrowing Rate - the rate that, at the inception of the lease, the lessee
would have incurred to borrow over a similar term the funds necessary to purchase the
leased asset. If the lessee is a subsidiary, the rate used by the subsidiary should reflect
the incremental borrowing rate of the parent, unless the subsidiary is able to obtain
financing on a stand-alone basis without the parent or other related entities guaranteeing
the debt.

Interest rate implicit in the lease - the discount rate that, when applied to:

1. the minimum lease payments excluding that portion of the payments representing
executory costs to be paid by the lessor, and

2. the unguaranteed residual value accruing to the benefit of the lessor
causes the aggregate present value at the beginning of the lease term to be equal to the
fair value of the leased property at the inception of the lease, minus any investment
tax credit retained by the lessor.
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Initial Direct Costs - Only those costs incurred by the lessor that are (a) costs to originate
a lease incurred in transactions with independent third parties that result directly from and
are essential to acquire that lease and would not have been incurred had the leasing
transactions not occurred and (b) certain costs directly related to specified activities
performed by the lessor for that lease. Those activities are: evaluating the prospective
lessee’s financial condition, evaluating and recording guarantees, collateral, and other
security arrangements; negotiating lease terms; preparing and processing lease documents
and closing the transaction.

Lease - an agreement conveying the right to use property, plant, or equipment (land
and/or depreciable assets) usually for a stated period of time.

Lease term - The sum of the following:

1) The fixed, noncancelable term of the lease,

A lease which is cancelable for any of the following reasons is considered to be

noncancelable for purposes of this definition

(@) only upon the occurrence of some remote contingency,

(b) only with the permission of the lessor,

(c) only if the lessee enters into a new lease with the same lessor, or

(d) only if the lessee incurs a penalty in such amount that continuation of the lease
appears, at inception, reasonably assured.

2) Any periods covered by bargain renewal options

3) Any periods which penalties are imposed for failure to renew the lease and the
amount of the penalty reasonably ensures renewal (see below for definition of
penalty)

4) Any periods covered by ordinary renewal options during which a guarantee by the
lessee of the lessor's debt related to the leased property is expected to be in effect or a
loan from the lessee to the lessor related to the leased property is expected to be
outstanding

5) Any periods covered by ordinary renewal options preceding the date as of which a
bargain purchase option is exercisable, and

6) Any periods, representing renewals or extensions of the lease at the lessor's option

However, in no case shall the lease term be assumed to extend beyond the date a bargain

purchase option becomes exercisable.

Minimum lease payments -

From the standpoint of the lessee: The payments that the lessee is obligated to make or

can be required to make in connection with the leased property.

Minimum lease payments include the following:

1. The minimum rental payments called for by the lease over the lease term.

2. Any payments or guarantees that the lessee must make or can be required to make
concerning the leased property at the end of the lease term including:
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a) Any amount to purchase the property
b) Any amount to cover a deficiency from a specified guaranteed residual value
c) Any amount for failure to renew or extend the lease at the expiration of the lease
term
When a lease contains a bargain purchase option, only the minimum rental payments over
the lease term and the payment called for by the bargain purchase option are included in
the minimum lease payments.

The following are excluded when computing minimum lease payments:

1. A guarantee by the lessee of the lessor’s debt

2. The lessee’s obligation (apart from rental payments) to pay executory costs in
connection with the leased property

3. Contingent rentals

From the standpoint of the lessor:

Minimum lease payments include the following:

1. Lessee minimum lease payment as defined above plus,

2. Any guarantee of the residual value or of rental payments beyond the lease term by a
third party unrelated to either the lessee or the lessor, provided the third party is
financially capable of discharging the obligation that may arise from the guarantee.

Non-cancelable Lease - A lease that is cancelable (a) only upon the occurrence of remote
contingency (b) only with the permission of the lessor, (c) only if the lessee enters into a
new lease with the same lessor, or (d) only if the lessee incurs a penalty in such amount
that continuation of the lease appears, at inception, reasonably assured.

Operating lease - A lease which, due to its terms, does not qualify as a capital lease and
therefore is recorded as periodic rental expense.

Penalty - Any requirement that is imposed or can be imposed on the lessee by the
lease agreement or by factors outside the lease agreement to disburse cash, incur or
assume a liability, perform services, surrender or transfer an asset or rights to an asset
or otherwise forego an economic benefit, or suffer an economic detriment. Factors to
consider when determining if an economic detriment may be incurred include, but are
not limited to, the uniqueness of purpose or location of the property, the availability
of a comparable replacement property, the relative importance or significance of the
property to the continuation of the lessee's line of business or service to its customers,
the existence of leasehold improvements or other assets whose value would be
impaired by the lessee vacating or discontinuing use of the leased property, adverse
tax consequences, and the ability or willingness of the lessee to bear the cost
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associated with relocation or replacement of the leased property at market rental rates
or to tolerate other parties using the leased property.

Sale-Leaseback - a transaction that occurs when a company sells property and
immediately leases it back from the purchaser.

Sublease - The leased property is re-leased by the original lessee to a third party, and the
lease agreement between the two original parties remains in effect.

Unguaranteed residual value - The estimated residual value of the leased property
exclusive of any portion guaranteed by the lessee or by a third party unrelated to the
lessor.

Accounting Practice
Background

The accounting principles for leases are primarily promulgated by Financial Accounting
Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 840 (Leases).
However, there is additional significant authoritative guidance that addresses
implementation questions. Please see References - Related Publications for a listing of
some of the more significant guidance.

Accounting

Through the contract review process (See 451 — Contractual Review policy), LKE
identifies arrangements to be evaluated for potential lease treatment in accordance with
the procedures outlined below. The evaluation of whether an arrangement contains a
lease should be based on the substance of the arrangement. The Lease Evaluation
Worksheet which is part of the contract review process should be utilized to document an
initial assessment or a reassessment of an arrangement. (See 451 — Contract Review
policy) (The decision matrix included in Appendix A provides additional guidance, if
needed, in determining whether an arrangement qualifies as lease.) If the arrangement
does not qualify as a lease then other appropriate generally accepted accounting
principles should be applied.

Examples of arrangements that may qualify as leases include take-or-pay
contracts/commitments, service arrangements involving the use of specific items of
PP&E, information technology outsourcing arrangements, emission treatment contracts,
throughput arrangements, power supply arrangements and energy-related contracts and
transportation service contracts.
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Following the initial assessment of a contractual arrangement at its inception, an

arrangement would be reassessed only if:

(1) a substantive formal or informal modification or change is made to the contractual
arrangement,

(2) there has been a substantial physical change to the specified PP&E, or

(3) there is a change in the determination as to whether fulfillment of the contractual
arrangement is dependent on the specified PP&E.

The reassessment of the arrangement is based on the facts and circumstances as of the

date of the reassessment, including the remaining term of the arrangement.

A renewal or extension of an arrangement that does not include modification of any of
the terms in the original arrangement prior to the end of the original arrangement will be
evaluated only with respect to the renewal or extension period. The accounting for the
remaining term of the original arrangement will continue without modification.

If the original accounting for an arrangement gave effect to the assumed exercise of a
renewal option, then the exercise of the option, absent any modification, would not
trigger a reassessment of the arrangement. The exercise of a renewal option in all other
circumstances would trigger a reassessment

If upon reassessment, an arrangement or a portion of an arrangement becomes a lease or
ceases to be a lease, the applicable guidance is outlined below:
¢ Supply arrangement becomes an operating lease for the Purchaser/Lessee - see
ASC 840-20-25-9
¢ Supply arrangement becomes an operating lease for the Seller/Lessor - see ASC
840-20-25-22
¢ Supply arrangement becomes a capital lease for Purchaser/Lessee - see ASC 840-
30-30-5
¢ Supply arrangement becomes a sales-type lease for the Seller/Lessor - see ASC
840-30-25-4
¢ Operating lease becomes a supply arrangement for the Purchaser/Lessee - see
ASC 840-20-40-2
¢ Operating lease becomes a supply arrangement for the Seller/Lessor - see ASC
840-20-40-6
¢ Capital lease becomes a supply arrangement for the Purchaser/Lessee - see ASC
840-30-40-20
¢ Direct-financing, sales-type or leveraged lease becomes a supply arrangement for
the Seller/Lessor - see ASC 840-30-40-6
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Lessee Accounting:
Lease Classification

When LKE is the lessee, it classifies the lease as capital or operating depending on its
assessment of the lease criteria at the inception of the lease term.

¢ Capital Lease - A lease is capital if it meets one or more of the following criteria

>

>
>

>

The lease transfers ownership of the property to the lessee by the end of the lease
term

The lease contains a bargain purchase option

The lease term is equal to 75% or more of the estimated economic life of the
leased property. However, if the beginning of lease term falls within the last 25%
of the total estimated economic life of the leased property, including earlier years
of use, this criterion will not be used for purposes of classifying the lease

At the inception of the lease, the present value of the minimum lease payments
excluding executory costs equals or exceeds 90 percent of the fair value of the
leased property less any investment tax credit, or other investment tax incentive
retained and expected to be realized by the lessor. This criterion is not used for
purposes of classifying the lease if the beginning of lease term falls within the last
25% of the total estimated economic life of the lease property.

LKE will compute the present value of the minimum lease payments using the
incremental borrowing rate, unless it is practicable to learn the implicit rate
computed by the lessor and the implicit rate is less than the incremental
borrowing rate. If both these conditions are met, LKE will use the implicit rate.

If the lease does not meet any of these four criteria, it is an operating lease.

NOTE: The lease classification determined for financial accounting purposes is not
necessarily the same classification to be used for income tax purposes. For the
appropriate tax treatment, consult the Tax department.

Accounting for capital and operating leases

1. Recording capital lease transactions

A capital lease is recorded as an asset and an obligation in an amount equal to the
present value at the beginning of the lease term of minimum lease payments during
the lease term, excluding executory costs to be paid by the lessor. However, if the
amount determined exceeds the fair value of the leased property at the inception of
the lease, the amount recorded as the asset and obligation will be the fair value.
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2. Amortization of capital leases
» If the lease terms provide for transfer of ownership of the property to the lessee by
the end of the lease term or contains a bargain purchase option, the asset will be
amortized in a manner consistent with normal depreciation policy for owned
assets
» Otherwise, the asset will be amortized over the lease term to the estimated
residual value at the end of the lease term

3. Recording of capital lease payments
The interest portion of each lease payment will be identified and expensed so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining obligation throughout the
life of the lease. The remaining portion of the lease payment reduces the amount of
the lease obligation.

4. Recording operating lease
Rental on an operating lease is charged to expense straight-line over the lease term as
it accrues.

Lessor Accounting:
Lease Classification

When LKE is the lessor, it classifies the lease as sales-type, direct financing, leveraged or
operating depending on its assessment of the lease criteria at the inception of lease term.

If the lease at inception meets any one of the four criteria under Lessee Accounting, Lease
Classification—Capital Lease and it meets both of the following criteria, it shall be classified as a
sales-type lease, a direct financing lease, or a leveraged lease.

» Collectibility of the minimum lease payments is reasonably predictable, and
» No important uncertainties surround the amount of unreimbursable costs yet to be
incurred by the lessor under the lease.

¢ Sales-type —Sales type leases give rise to manufacturer’s or dealer’s profit or loss to the
lessor (i.e. fair value of the leased property at the inception of the lease is greater or less
than its cost or carrying amount, if different) and normally result when a company uses
leasing as a means of marketing its products. A lease involving real estate shall be
classified as a sales-type lease only if it transfers ownership of the property to the lessee
by the end of the lease term.

LKE has determined that the detailed definition of Integral Equipment in ASC-Topic 360
is intended to be within the context of ASC-Topic 840 and ASC-Topic 360-20 (Property,
Plant and Equipment-Real Estate Sales), related to those subsections which specifically
address real estate or real estate including equipment.  Accordingly, the concept of
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integral equipment as defined in the previously discussed lease accounting literature does
not apply to projects that do not involve the sale or lease of real estate and accordingly,
real estate lease accounting rules do not apply to these projects

¢ Direct Financing—Direct financing leases do not give rise to manufacturer’s or dealer’s
profit or loss to the lessor and result from financing the acquisition of property by a
lessee.
¢ Leveraged —Leveraged leases are direct financing leases meeting certain other specified
criteria:
> Lease involves 3 parties-lessee, a long-term creditor and lessor
» Financing provided by long-term creditor is nonrecourse and the amount of
financing is sufficient to provide the lessor with substantial “leverage” in the
transaction
» The lessor’s net investment declines during the early years once the investment
has been completed and rises during the later years of the lease before its final
elimination.

Leases not classified as sales-type, direct financing or leveraged leases will be classified as
operating leases.

NOTE: As LKE for the most part is not in the business of financing equipment for lessees,
most leases will either qualify as a sales-type lease or an operating lease. For Direct
Financing and Leveraged Lease accounting guidance, see applicable accounting literature or
contact Financial Reporting.

Accounting for Sales-type leases
» The minimum lease payments, net of any executory costs plus the unguaranteed residual
value will be recorded as the gross investment in the lease. The present value of the
minimum lease payments will be computed using the interest rate implicit in the lease.

» The difference between the gross investment in the lease and the sum of the present value
of two components of the gross investment (i.e. minimum lease payments and
unguaranteed residual) will be recorded as unearned income.

The sales price will be equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments
receivable.

The cost of sales will be equal to the cost or carrying amount of the leased asset plus
initial direct costs minus the present value of the unguaranteed residual value.

The discount rate to be used in determining the present values shall be the interest rate
implicit in the lease.

The unearned income will be amortized to income over the lease terms so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

Y WV VYV V¥V
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NOTE: A lease involving real estate, property improvements or integral equipment may
not be classified as a sales-type lease unless the lease agreement provides for the transfer
of title to the lessee at or shortly after the end of the lease term.

Accounting for Operating leases:

» The leased property will be included with property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet.
The property will be depreciated using the lessor’s normal depreciation policy.

» Rent will be included as income over the lease term as it becomes receivable according to the
provisions of the lease. If rentals vary from a straight-line basis the income will be
recognized on a straight-line basis unless another systematic and rational basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which use benefit from the leased property is diminished,
in which case that basis shall be used.

> Initial direct costs will be deferred and allocated over the lease term in proportion to the
recognition of rental income. Initial direct costs may be charged to expense as incurred if the
effect is not materially different.

> If, at the inception of the lease the fair value of the property in an operating lease involving
real estate that would have been classified as a sales-type lease except that it did not transfer
ownership to the lessee by the end of the lease term is less than its cost or carrying amount, if
different, then a loss equal to that difference will be recognized at the inception of the lease.

Review of Residual Values

For leases in which LKE qualifies as lessor, a review of the estimated residual basis must be
performed on a lease-by-lease basis at least annually and, if the review results in a lower estimate
than had been previously established and the decline is judged to be other than temporary, then
the effect must be given to the lower estimate.

LKE has adopted the approach that upon an other-than-temporary reduction in residual value, a
revised implicit rate using the revised lower estimate is calculated. The amortization to date of
unearned income would be recalculated using the revised implicit rate, and the net investment
would be adjusted to reflect the recalculated earned to date.

Other Leasing Issues

Leases Involving Real Estate:

Land and Buildings

If the lease transfers ownership of the property or contains a bargain purchase option, LKE, as
lessee, will capitalize the land and the building separately. For this purpose the present value of
the minimum lease payments after deducting executory costs will be allocated between the two
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elements in proportion to their fair values at the inception of the lease. The building will be
amortized in a manner consistent with normal depreciation policy for owned assets.

If the lease meets neither the transfer of ownership or bargain purchase criteria and the fair value
of the land is less than 25 percent of the total fair value of the leased property at the inception of
the lease then the land and building will be considered a single unit. If either the economic life
or the present value of future minimum lease payments criterion is met, LKE shall capitalize the
land and building as a single unit and amortize it to its expected value over the lease term.

If the lease meets neither the transfer of ownership or the bargain purchase criterion and the fair
value of the land is greater than or equal to 25 percent of the total fair value of the leased
property at the inception of the lease, the land and the building will be considered separately in
evaluating whether it qualifies as a capital lease under the remaining two criteria. If the building
element meets either of the last 2 criteria and therefore qualifies as a capital lease, the period of
amortization will be the lease term. The land element will be accounted for separately as an
operating lease. If the building element does not meet either of the last 2 capital lease criteria
then both the building element and the land element will be accounted for as an operating lease.

Leases Involving Only Part of Building

When the leased property is part of a larger whole, its cost and fair value may not be objectively
determinable for example, when an office or floor of a building is leased. If the fair value of the
leased property is objectively determinable, the lease should be classified and accounted for in
accordance with Section IV above entitled Leases Involving Real Estate. If the fair value of the
leased property is not objectively determinable, the lessee should classify the lease solely on
criterion 3 (lease term equal to or in excess of 75% of the estimated economic life of the leased
property). If that criterion is met, the leased property will be capitalized as a unit and amortized
over the lease term. For the lessor, if either the cost or the fair value of the property is not
objectively determinable, the lessor shall account for the lease as an operating lease.

Leases Involving Equipment as well as Real Estate

If a lease involving real estate also includes equipment, the portion of the minimum lease
payments applicable to the equipment element of the lease shall be estimated by whatever means
appropriate in the circumstances. The equipment shall be considered separately for purpose of
applying the lease criteria and determining capital or operating lease classification.
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Lessee Involvement in Asset Construction

When intending to be the lessee, LKE’s involvement during the construction period may raise

questions about whether it is acting as an agent for the owner-lessor or is in substance the owner

of the asset during the construction period. LKE’s involvement may include:

¢ Being obligated to begin making lease payments regardless of whether the project is
complete

¢ Guaranteeing the construction debt or providing construction financing either directly or
indirectly

¢ Being primarily or secondarily obligated on construction contracts

¢ Serving as an agent for the construction, financing or ultimate sale of the assets for the
owner-lessor

¢ Acting as a developer or being the general contractor

¢ Being obligated to purchase the asset if the construction is not successfully completed by an
agreed-upon date and,

¢ Being obligated to fund cost overruns

If LKE is considered the owner of the asset during the construction period, then effectively a sale
and leaseback of the asset occurs when construction of the asset is complete and the lease term
begins.

If the documents governing the construction project could require, under any circumstances, that
the lessee pay 90 percent or more of the total project costs (excluding land acquisition costs) as
of any point in time during the construction period, then the lessee/agent should be deemed to
have substantially all of the construction period risks and should be considered to be the owner
of the real estate project during the construction period.

Accounting for Rental Costs Incurred during a Construction Period
Rental costs associated with ground or building operating leases that are incurred during a
construction period shall be recognized as rental expense.

Related Party Leases
Leases between related parties normally use the same criteria as similar leases between unrelated
parties.

Subleases and Similar Transactions

For all sublease transactions, both the original lessee and the original lessor will continue to
account for the original lease as before. If LKE is the original lessee and the original lease
was accounted for as an operating lease, the sublease must be accounted for as an operating
lease. Sublease payments received may not be netted against lease obligations paid unless
the transaction qualifies for right of offset.
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If original lease is replaced with a new lease agreement, LKE as lessor shall account for the
original lease as a terminated lease and the new lease as a separate transaction.

If LKE, as the original lessee, is relieved of the primary obligation under the original lease,
the termination of the original lease agreement shall be accounted for as follows:

a. If the original lease was a capital lease of property (other than real estate including integral
equipment), the asset and obligation representing the original lease shall be removed from
the accounts, a gain or loss shall be recognized for the difference.

If LKE is secondarily liable, a guarantee obligation shall be recognized in accordance with
ASC-Topic 860 (Transfers and Servicing). As a guarantor, a guarantee obligation will be
recognized in the same manner as would a guarantor that had never been primarily liable
to that creditor. The guarantee obligation will be initially measured at fair value, and that
amount will reduce the gain or increase the loss recognized on extinguishment.

Any consideration paid or received upon termination shall be included in the
determination of gain or loss to be recognized.

b. If the original lease was a capital lease of real estate (including integral equipment), the
determination as to whether the asset held under the capital lease and the related
obligation may be removed from the balance sheet shall be made in accordance with the
requirements of ASC-Topic 360-20. If the criteria for recognition of a sale in ASC-Topic
360-20 are met, the asset and obligation representing the original lease will be removed
from the accounts and any consideration paid or received upon termination and any
guarantee obligation will be recognized in accordance with the requirements above for
property other than real estate. If the transaction results in a gain, that gain may be
recognized if the criteria in ASC-Topic 360-20 for recognition of profit by the full accrual
method are met. Otherwise, the gain shall be recognized in accordance with one of the
other profit recognition methods discussed in ASC-Topic 360-20. Any loss on the
transaction shall be recognized immediately.

c. If the original lease was an operating lease and LKE is secondarily liable, the guarantee
obligation shall be recognized in the same manner as would a guarantor that had never
been primarily liable to that creditor. The guarantee obligation will be initially measured
at fair value, and that amount will reduce the gain or increase the loss recognized on
extinguishment.

Operating Leases with Scheduled Rent Increases

Operating leases with scheduled rent increases, including “rent holidays” will be recognized on
a straight-line basis over the lease term (including any “rent holiday” period) unless another
systematic and rational allocation basis is more representative of the time pattern in which the
leased property is physically employed.

Landlord/Tenant Incentives
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In regards to an operating lease, landlord incentives will be recorded as deferred rent and
amortized as reductions to lease expense over the lease term.

Sale-Leaseback Transactions

When accounting for a sale-leaseback transaction, the seller-lessee records the sale, removes all
property and related liabilities from its balance sheet, and recognizes the gain or loss from the
sale in accordance with ASC-Topic 840 and ASC-Topic 360. Generally when a sale-leaseback
occurs, the profit or loss on the sale is deferred and is amortized in proportion to the leased asset,
if a capital lease, or in proportion to the related gross rental charged to expense over the lease
term, if an operating lease.

3. Disclosure requirements

Lessee:
1. All Leases:

A general description of the lessee’s leasing arrangements, including but not limited

to the following:

v’ The basis of which contingent rental payments are determined

v The existence and terms of renewal or purchase options and escalation clauses

v’ Restrictions imposed by lease arrangements, such as those concerning dividends,
additional debt and further leasing.

2. Capital Leases:

v Assets recorded under capital leases and the accumulated amortization thereon
shall be separately identified in the lessee’s balance sheet or in footnotes thereto
as of the date of each balance sheet presented. Also, the related obligations shall
also be separately identified in the balance sheet as of the date of each balance
sheet presented and should be subject to the same considerations as other
obligations in classifying them with current or noncurrent liabilities. The
amortization charge to income for each period an income statement is presented
should be separately disclosed in the financial statements or footnotes, unless it is
included in depreciation expense and the fact that it is included is disclosed.

v The gross amount of assets recorded under capital leases as of the date of each
balance sheet presented by major classes according to nature or function.

v Future minimum lease payments as of the latest balance sheet date presented, in
the aggregate and for each of the five succeeding fiscal years, with separate
deductions from the total for the amount representing executory cost and imputed
interest.

v' The total of minimum sublease rentals to be received in the future under
noncancelable subleases as of the date of the latest balance sheet presented.

v’ Total contingent rental actually incurred for each period for which an income
statement is presented.
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3. All Operating Leases:
v Rental expense for each period for which an income statement is presented, with
separate amounts for minimum rentals, contingent rentals, and sublease rentals.
Rental payments under leases with terms of a month or less that were not renewed
need not be included.
4. Operating Leases having an initial or remaining noncancelable lease term in excess of
One year:
v Future minimum rental payments required as of the date of the latest balance
sheet presented, in the aggregate and for each of the five succeeding fiscal years.
v The total of minimum rentals to be received in future under noncancelable
subleases as of the date of the latest balance sheet presented
5. Related Parties
The nature and extent of any leasing transactions with related parties must be
disclosed.

Lessor

When leasing, exclusive of leverage leasing, is a significant part of revenue, net income,
or assets certain information is required to be disclosed. Lessor disclosures generally
would be unnecessary whenever revenue, net income, and assets related to leasing
represent less than 10% of consolidated amounts. Since it would appear that the above
requirements would not be met for LKE or any other reporting entity currently, the
required disclosures have not been enumerated in this policy. Required disclosures can
be found in ASC 840, ASC 310 (Receivables) and ASC 410 (Asset Retirement and
Environmental Obligations) for assets under operating lease that include an ARO.

Sale-Leaseback Disclosures

¢ The financial statements of a seller-lessee shall include a description of the terms of
the sale-leaseback transaction, including future commitments, obligations, provisions,
or circumstances that require or result in the seller-lessee’s continuing involvement.

¢ The financial statements of a seller-lessee that has accounted for a sale-leaseback
transaction by the deposit method or as a financing according to the provisions of

ASC 840 also shall disclose:

0 The obligation for future minimum lease payments as of the date of the latest
balance sheet presented in the aggregate and for each of the five succeeding fiscal
years

0 The total of minimum sublease rentals, if any, to be received in the future under
noncancelable subleases in the aggregate and for each of the five succeeding
fiscal years.
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Procedures

Financial Accounting and Reporting (FAA) will identify Business Line
areas/departments within their organizations that may enter into
contracts/arrangements that may qualify as a lease.

Business Line Contacts must establish a process to obtain from their organizations
information about new arrangements/contracts or amendments and modifications to
existing arrangements/contracts in a timely manner. The process should be
coordinated with FAA and the Legal Department. Contact individual(s) must be
designated for each Business Line. See LKE’s 451 - Contractual Review policy for
the list of Business Line Contacts. The lease contract reviewers are the designated
Accounting Analyst in FAA, designated Supply Chain Manager, and Manager of
Corporate Fuels and By-Products.

Upon identification of arrangement as a lease determine appropriate lease
classification depending on whether LKE is lessee or lessor in leasing transaction.
Analysis performed in connection with determination must be documented and
reviewed by designated Lease Reviewer and his (or her) manager/director.

Upon determination of the appropriate lease classification, FAA must apply the
appropriate accounting.

In connection with modification of original arrangement or renewal/extensions
respective accounting organization must evaluate impact on current classification and
accounting.

For leases in which LKE qualifies as the lessor, a review of the estimated residual
value must be performed on a lease-by-lease basis at least annually. .

At least quarterly but preferably on a monthly basis, all Lease Evaluation Worksheet
results will be summarized by each Lease Reviewer as part of the contract review
process..

The Lease Evaluation Worksheet and supporting documentation, including
arrangements and conclusions, will be reviewed and approved by the Manager,
Financial Accounting and Analysis or designee.

Upon approval, the summary of the conclusions reached in the contract review
process will be sent to LKE Financial Reporting and PPL Technical Accounting.
FAA will notify LKE Financial Reporting and PPL Technical Accounting of new
leases as they become aware of them.

PPL Technical Accounting may request copies of significant or unusual agreements
for additional review or disclosure.

FAA will submit significant or unusual arrangements to the Controller (or designee)
for his (or her) review and approval.

Each Lease Reviewer will maintain supporting documentation in accordance with
record retention policies. FAA will maintain supporting documentation in
accordance with record retention policies.
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IV.  Responsibility

A. The Controller is responsible for implementing and maintaining procedures to ensure
that the practices set forth in this policy are followed.

B. The Legal Department and Business Line Contacts are responsible for providing
timely notification to FAA of new arrangements or changes to existing arrangements.

C. FAA is responsible for performing necessary lease analysis in accordance with the
policy to determine appropriate classification and accounting. Documentation of
lease analysis and conclusions reached thereon will be in writing.

D. FAA will be responsible for ensuring that the appropriate accounting/disclosure
requirements are implemented based on those conclusions/decisions in a timely
manner.

E. Lease Reviewers within respective business areas must review and approve
conclusions reached in a timely manner. Review and approval must be evidenced in
writing.

F. FAA must notify Financial Reporting of outcome of analysis, conclusions/decisions
reached in a timely manner so that required disclosures can made in financial
statements.

G. FAA must ensure that a review of the residual values is performed and documented,
as required above, at least on an annual basis.

Reports Generated and Recipients:
¢ Inventory listing of contracts within scope of contract review that include review
for Leases provided by FAA

¢ Contract review templates provided by Lease Reviewers
¢ List of existing contracts from the Legal Department

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
451 - Contractual Review policy
Regulatory Requirements:
None
References - Related Publications
Accounting Pronouncements

e ASC 840 (Leases)
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ASC 360 (Property, Plant and Equipment)

ASC 860 (Transfers and Servicing)

ASC 310 (Receivables)

ASC 410 (Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations)

Other
0 PPL Research and Special Projects White Paper, R&SP 04-20, “Sundance Sale-
Leaseback Accounting”
o “Accounting for Leases—Interpretations of FASB Statement No. 13”, Author-
Arthur Andersen
o0 “Financial Reporting Series—Lease Accounting”; Author-Ernst & Young
Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

e 403 Determining Whether an Agreement Contains a Lease
e 404 Accounting and Reporting Requirements for Leases

Key Contact:
Manager, Financial Accounting and Analysis
Administrative Responsibility:

Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting
Controller

Date Created: 3/31/11
Dates Revised: 9/19/11
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Appendix A — Flowchart Illustration of the EITF 01-8 Model to Determine Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease
(Intended only to be used as a supplement, nct in lieu of, to the guidance in EITF 01-8)

Dees the arrangement invalve preperty, plant or equipment No
(PP&E)?
l Yes
Is the PP&E explicitly identified in the arrangement?
No
¥
Is the PP&E implicitly specified? For example, the seller owns No
Yes L .
or leases only one asset that may be used to fulfill its obligation i
under the arrangement?
Yes
L J A 4
Is fulfillment of the arrangement dependent, by its terms, on the use No

of specified PP&E? For example, the owner/seller does not have
the right or ability to use ancther asset or provide goods or services
from third parties to fulfill its obligation under the arrangement.

A 4

Yes
L 4

Does the purchaser have the ability or right to operate the PP&E
Yes | or direct others to operate the PP&E while obtaining more than a
minor amount of the output or other utility of the PP&E?

F 3

No
A 4
Yes | Dees the purchaser have the ability or right to control physical
access to the underlying PP&E while obtaining more than a
minor amount of the output or other utility of the PP&E?

F 3

No

¥

Do facts and circumstances indicate that
it is remote that one or more other parties No

will take mare than a minor ameunt of the >
output expected to be produced by the
PP&E for the term of the arrangement.

Yes

Is the price that the purchaser will pay for Yes

the output either centractually fixed per »
unit of output or equal to the current
market price per unit of cutput at the time
of delivery?

No .
The arrangement does not contain a lease.

L The arrangement contains a lease to be accounted for
in accordance with FAS 13.

(Note: The above illustration was taken from an external document and therefore is read-only and
cannot be updated. All pre-codification references should be updated to ASC 840, “Leases.”
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Notes to Appendix A:

A) ASC 840, “Leases” applies to contracts that convey the right to use land, a depreciable asset
or both. Therefore, intangible assets, inventory, etc. are outside the scope of ASC 840.

In order for an arrangement to contain a lease of Property, Plant & Equipment (“PP&E”), the
PP&E must be identified either explicitly or implicitly. Although specific PP&E may be
identified explicitly in the contract, the arrangement would not contain a lease if the legal owner
of the PP&E has both the right and the ability to fulfill the arrangement with the buyer using
other PP&E not specified in the arrangement. Operational, legal, and financial restrictions should
be considered in evaluating whether the PP&E is identified either explicitly or implicitly. PP&E
has been implicitly specified if, for example the seller owns or leases only one asset with which
to fulfill the obligation and it is not economically feasible or practicable for the owner/seller to
perform its obligation through the use of alternative PP&E.

A warranty provision allowing or requiring the seller to substitute other PP&E in the event the
specified PP&E becomes defective would not, by itself, preclude the arrangement from being
considered a lease. Likewise, a provision that contractually permits or requires the seller to
substitute other PP&E on or after a specified date does not preclude the arrangement from being
considered to contain a lease prior to the substitution date.

B) If the seller has the right to fulfill its obligation under the arrangement using other assets but it
is not economically feasible or practicable for the seller to do so, PP&E would be implicitly
specified because the right to use other assets to fulfill the obligation would be considered non-
substantive. For example, suppose an enterprise contracts to provide data-processing outsourcing
services to a customer. If the seller can fulfill its obligation under the arrangement with the
purchaser by using only a particular piece of computer equipment (i.e., PP&E), the computer
equipment would be considered to be specified implicitly. If the seller has a contractual right to
use other PP&E, the use of the other PP&E would not be considered feasible and, therefore,
disregarded if the pricing of the arrangement with the purchaser precludes the use of other PP&E
for the entire term of the arrangement. The pricing would be considered to preclude use of other
PP&E if it would be cost-prohibitive for the seller to use other PP&E for the entire term of the
arrangement. Further, it would not be considered feasible to use other PP&E if the other PP&E is
not expected to have sufficient capacity to service the purchaser.

C) The purchaser’s ability to operate the PP&E may be evidenced by (but is not limited to) the
purchaser’s ability to hire, fire, or replace the property’s operator or the purchaser’s ability to
specify significant operating policies and procedures in the arrangement with the owner/seller
having no ability to change such policies and procedures.
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A requirement to follow “prudent operating practices” (or other similar requirements) generally
does not convey the right to control the underlying PP&E. Similarly, a contractual requirement
designed to enable the purchaser to monitor or ensure the seller’s compliance with performance,
safety, pollution control, or other general standards generally do not establish control over the
underlying PP&E.

PPL believes that 10 percent or more of the output to be produced by the PP&E over the term of
the contractual arrangement is considered “more than a minor amount of the output.” An
arrangement in which a purchaser receives substantially all of the output from dedicated PP&E
may be considered to contain a lease.

D) Complex pricing arrangements should be discussed with FAA.
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Policy: Contingencies must be recognized if they are probable and can be reasonably estimated.
Disclosure is required for certain events which could give rise to a loss, but do not meet the
conditions for accrual.

Procedure: Contingencies required to be recognized must be recorded in a timely manner and
required disclosure information must be submitted to Financial Reporting in accordance with its
SEC reporting timeline. Detailed procedures are outlined below.

Scope: All contingencies, with the exception of tax contingencies and guarantees (See 1057 —
Guarantees Policy). Examples include:

¢ collectability of non-customer receivables (see 953 — Reserve for Bad Debts Policy
for customer receivables),

product warranties or defects,

damage by fire, explosion or other hazards,

expropriation of assets,

pending or threatened litigation,

actual or possible claims or assessments, and

environmental obligations.

® & & & o o

Objective of Procedure: The purpose of this policy is to appropriately account for and disclose
contingencies according to Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies and
ASC 410-30, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations: Environmental

Obligations.

Definitions:

Contingency — an existing condition, situation, or set of circumstances involving uncertainty as
to possible gain or loss to an enterprise that will ultimately be resolved when one or more future
events occur or fail to occur.

Probable — the future event or events are likely to occur.

Reasonably Possible — the chance of the future event or events occurring is more than remote but
less than likely.

Reasonably Estimable — range of amounts can be established.

Remote — the chance of the future event or events occurring is slight.
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General Requirements:

Recognition and Measurement

Loss Contingencies:

Individual loss contingencies must be accrued as a charge to income if the loss is probable (75%
or greater probability), can be reasonably estimated, and the estimate is $100,000 or more. Loss
contingencies that are probable and estimable, but individually below $100,000 must be accrued
if in aggregate they exceed $100,000.

Where there is a probable loss (75% or more) with a range of possible values as the outcome, the
most likely point in the range should be included in the loss accrual. If a judgment cannot be
made as to the most likely outcome within the range, the lower end of the range should be
included in the loss accrual. If an offer of settlement has been made by the Company for a
matter, the probability of loss is assumed to be 100% and the amount of the offer is the minimum
amount accrued.

For certain events which could give rise to a loss, but do not meet the conditions for accrual,
disclosure is required when it is reasonably possible (but not probable) that a loss has been
incurred (see the Disclosures section for further detail). Furthermore, if the loss is probable
(75% or more), but the amount of the loss cannot be reasonably estimated, disclosure is required.

General or unspecified business risks (sometime referred to as “reserves for general
contingencies”) do not meet the conditions for accrual and therefore no accrual and no disclosure
for such risks is required.

The accrual or disclosure of remote contingencies is not required, except for guarantees within
the scope of ASC-460, Guarantees. If a remote contingency related to a guarantee would result
in a material loss, judgment must be exercised regarding disclosure (see 1057 — Guarantees
Policy).

Gain Contingencies:

Gain contingencies which represent the recovery of previous losses (costs) incurred will be
recognized as a receivable and a credit to the account initially charged for the respective loss
contingency when the amount is greater than $100,000 and formal written confirmation of the
reimbursable amounts or information regarding the timing of such reimbursements from the
respective insurer (minimum of $100,000 threshold) is received from the Legal Department.
Gain contingencies which represent a gain in excess of loss amounts, or incremental income, are
not recorded until their realization is 100% probable (i.e., when payment is received). Gain
contingencies may not be recognized until all contingencies related to the matter are resolved.
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Costs of attorneys’ and other experts’ fees, associated with defending the Company’s position
related to a contingency, should be accrued as incurred.

If information becomes available after the books are closed, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements, indicating it is probable an asset has been impaired or a liability has been
incurred at the date of the financial statements and the amount is material in conformity with 354
— Materiality Policy, the financial statements will be adjusted.

Disclosure
A. Amounts accrued

Footnote disclosure of the nature and amount of the accrual may be necessary for the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, relevant information.

B. Amounts not accrued

If a loss contingency has not been recorded because one or both of the conditions for accrual
are not met, ASC 450 requires footnote disclosure when there is at least a reasonable
possibility that a loss has been incurred.

Financial Accounting and Analysis (FAA) works with the Financial Reporting department to
ensure any required disclosures are appropriately included in the financial statements and
notes thereto.

If exposure to loss exceeds the amount accrued, disclosure is required when there is a
reasonable possibility that an additional loss has been incurred. The disclosure must indicate
the nature of the contingency and provide an estimate of the possible loss or range of loss, or
state that such an estimate cannot be made.

No disclosures are required for contingencies qualifying as remote except for guarantees
within the scope of ASC 460 (see 1057 - Guarantees Policy).
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Detailed Procedures Performed for Contingencies:

A. Loss Contingency Accruals

The Legal Department prepares the quarterly Material Loss Contingency Assessment chart
which lists potential losses with a probability of 75% or greater that the Company will incur a
loss of over $100,000. A quarterly meeting is held with the designated Legal and

Accounting personnel, including the Manager, Financial Accounting & Analysis, to evaluate
the need for accruals related to these potential losses. Additionally, after the quarterly Loss
Contingency meeting has taken place, the LKE designated Legal and Accounting personnel
participate with designated PPL personnel in conference calls to discuss any loss
contingencies.

Separately, the Legal Department also prepares a quarterly Immaterial Loss Contingencies --
Summary memo, as requested by the FAA department, for estimable, in-scope matters not
individually meeting the >75% and >$100,000 thresholds described above. The memo
identifies potential aggregate accruals for individual estimable loss contingencies of less than
$100,000. This memo includes the items that are handled by in-house counsel and external
counsel. Additionally, the Manager, FAA or designated Accounting Analyst also receive the
applicable monthly Auto and General Liability Open/Reserved Claims report provided by
Underwriters Safety and Claims Inc. (USC), the Company’s outside third party claims
administrator. The Legal Department chart and memo are intended to exclude relevant
privileged information of the cases in order to maintain attorney-client privilege. FAA
verifies that the amounts included in the chart, memo and report are properly accrued as of
quarter-end.

In determining the estimate of loss or obligation required above, there may be a wide range
of possible losses due to various interpretations or on-going developments regarding the
facts, the legal issues involved, commercial or negotiating aspects applicable to the parties,
etc. Where there is a probable loss with a range of possible values as the outcome, the most
likely point in the range is included in the loss accrual. If a judgment cannot be made as to
the most likely outcome within the range, the lower end of the range is included in the loss
accrual. If an offer of settlement has been made by the Company for a matter, the probability
of loss is assumed to be 100% and the amount of the offer is the minimum amount accrued.

For the amounts reported, the Legal department must designate the legal liability as current if
the liability is more than likely to be paid within the following 12 months, or non-current, if
longer than 12 months from the quarter being reviewed. If there are multiple risks or sub-
components, the Legal department must report the portion of the liability that is current and
the portion of the liability that is non-current for each Company. Any non-current liabilities
may need to be discounted by the FAA department. To determine if a liability should be
discounted, refer to the 960 — Discounting Policy.



Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 164 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 6/30/13
Page 5 of 9

455 - Contingencies

The Company has certain varying insurance deductibles. For any covered amounts (claims,
settlements, attorneys’ fees, etc.) that are paid in excess of such amounts, a receivable may need
to be set up for reimbursement of this excess amount from the insurer. A receivable is not set up
unless a formal written confirmation for reimbursement is received from the Legal Department
that a claim has been approved by the insurer.

Previously recorded contingencies must be reviewed at least quarterly.

Quiarterly, required disclosure information, as outlined above, must be submitted to the
Financial Reporting department in accordance with its reporting timeline.

|oo

Environmental Contingencies

The requirements and criteria for recording liabilities as stated in ASC 450 also apply to
environmental obligations. There are a few clarifications within ASC 410-30 — Asset
Retirement and Environmental Obligations: Environmental Obligations related to the
recognition criteria and the disclosure requirements specific to environmental contingencies
(see 652 — Capital — Asset Retirement Obligations Policy).

1. Financial Disclosure

The SEC regulations and FASB accounting standards require disclosure of:

e any material estimated capital expenditures for environmental control facilities;
any administrative or judicial proceeding arising out of environmental laws, if the
results of such a proceeding are material,

e any potential environmental loss contingency for which the Company cannot
determine that a material effect on future financial condition or results of
operations is not reasonably likely to occur;

e and an environmental loss contingency accrued by a charge to income when it has
been determined it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of
the loss is reasonably estimable.

2. Milestone Events

The time line for recording an environmental liability begins when contamination is
released into the environment and ends when clean-up is completed. This process can
span several decades. Additionally, surveillance and monitoring of sites declared as
"clean™ may continue in perpetuity. A liability should be recorded on the Company's
books as soon as it is determined that environmental damage has occurred and costs can
be reasonably estimated. This usually is at the Discovery stage.
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Contamination Release:
Generally, hazardous waste is disposed of in a timely manner and charged to current
operations. Unfortunately, past disposal practices, which were legal at the time, have
caused contamination that regulatory agencies now require to be cleaned up.

Discovery:
Operating managers and Environmental Management personnel continually monitor
the Company's environmental requirements in concert with the Kentucky Department
of Environmental Protection (DEP), the United States Environmental Protection
Agency (EPA) and local environmental control agencies. When waste disposal
methods used by the Company differ from changing regulatory requirements, and
revised disposal methods or remediation costs can be reasonably estimated, the
associated liability is recorded. Also, when any environmental monitoring or testing
identifies the need for remediation and the costs can be reasonably estimated, this
additional liability is recorded.

Notification By Regulatory Authorities:

Official notification of an environmental liability by the Kentucky DEP or EPA
normally follows the Company's reporting a possible environmental exposure to these
agencies. Exceptions include unknown liabilities associated with property purchased
from others or Superfund sites where the Company has been identified as a
Potentially Responsible Party (PRP) through contracted services.

Consent Decree:
Regulatory agencies typically require PRPs to sign consent decrees to undertake
studies to determine appropriate clean-up methods and associated costs. Often times
cost estimates for clean-up are not available at this stage.

Investigation:

The first step in understanding the liabilities associated with a contaminated site is to
investigate the nature and extent of the contamination, then evaluate remedial
alternatives. Under Superfund, this is called the Remedial Investigation and
Feasibility Study (RI/FS). The investigation is often conducted under a consent
decree with the Kentucky DEP or EPA.

Settlement:
Following the investigation, the Company may decide to undertake the remedy itself,
enter an allocation agreement with other potentially responsible parties sharing the
costs, or cash-out of the process entirely.

Clean-up:

Site clean-up may be performed by the Company, Kentucky DEP, EPA and/or other
parties. These activities may occur over several years, followed by continuing
surveillance and monitoring.
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3. Estimated Costs

ASC 410-30-25, ”"Recognition”, requires that environmental losses be recorded at
estimated cost. If the Company can only estimate a range of environmental costs and no
amount within the range is a better estimate, the minimum amount in the range should be
accrued.

In practice, several remediation methods, with variable costs, may be available (e.g.
capping, bio-remediation, waste removal or on-site incineration). For example, assume
that each clean-up option - capping to on-site incineration - are progressively more
expensive and therefore establish a range of potential costs. If bio-remediation is likely to
be selected by the regulator, that cost should be accrued. If there is no precedent as to
which remediation method will be selected, the cost of capping should be accrued (i.e.,
the minimum estimated cost).

Accruable costs included in the estimate generally include:

Remedial Investigation and Feasibility Study (RI/FS) costs incurred by regulators and
“consultants.
-Regulatory agency costs for clean-up and oversight.
-Outside contractor fees for remediation.
-Ongoing surveillance and monitoring

Internal payroll costs for those employees who devote a significant amount of time
“directly to a remediation effort.

Costs excluded from environmental costs accruals are:
- Operating costs of waste reduction program.
- Capital projects to reduce emissions or generation of hazardous waste.

Liabilities for environmental losses should be recorded gross on the balance sheet.
Possible insurance recoveries or recovery through rates should not be netted against the
liability.

C. Workers’ Compensation Accruals

The detailed procedures regarding the recognition of contingencies related to workers’
compensation claims vary from those described above, however the general accounting
standards related to loss contingencies and uncertainties also apply to workers’ compensation
losses.

As workers’ compensation expenses are tied to labor costs, the Company accrues for
estimated workers’ compensation claims through the burden process that allocates labor costs
to appropriate departments and entities. The Company has outsourced the claims processing
to USC. (See 750 — Oracle Burdening Policy)
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On a monthly basis, USC provides a “Loss Experience Report” to the Treasury department
by the third workday that details claims made and claims paid. A designated Treasury
Analyst incorporates information from this report into an internally developed workers’
compensation loss model, which estimates the Company’s liability for current and future
claims. On a quarterly basis, adjustments to estimates can be made, if needed, via journal
entry.

The Treasurer reviews the Loss Experience Report and the loss model, as evidenced by
reconciliation sign-off. The liability is properly classified as current or non-current on the
balance sheet.

The Legal Department also reviews the Loss Experience Report to determine coordination
with the Material Loss Contingency Assessment chart. The Loss Experience Report matters
are not reportable on the Immaterial Loss Contingency -- Summary memo.

Reports Generated and Recipients:
e The Auto and General Liability Open/Reserved Claims report is provided monthly by
USC to the Legal Department, FAA and others
e The Workers” Compensation Loss Experience Report is provided monthly by USC to the
Treasury department, which provides the report to FAA
e Immaterial Loss Contingencies -- Summary memo from Legal Department provided to
FAA and others

e Material Loss Contingency Assessment chart from Legal Department provided to FAA
and others

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
250 — Balance Sheet Account Reconciliation Policy

354 — Materiality Policy

750 — Oracle Burdening Policy

1057 — Guarantees Policy

Regulatory Requirements:
N/A

Reference:
e ASC 210 - 20, Balance Sheet — Offsetting
ASC 275, Risks and Uncertainties
ASC 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations
ASC 450, Contingencies
ASC 460, Guarantees
EITF Issue 01-10, Accounting for the Impact of the Terrorist Attacks of September 11,
2001
e SEC Regulation S-K, Items 101, 103 and 303.
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e SEC SAB No. 92, “Accounting and Disclosures Relating to Loss Contingencies”

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
405 — Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Contingencies
406 — Accounting and Disclosure Requirements of Environmental Costs

Key Contact:
Manager, Financial Accounting and Analysis

Administrative Responsibility:
Controller
Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Date created: 5/23/2011
Dates revised: 8/18/2011
1/26/2012
2/21/2012
4/01/2012
6/30/2013
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Policy: Accounting and disclosures for pension and other postretirement plans will be in
conformity with FASB ASC 715, Compensation — Retirement Benefits.

Procedure: Plan assets and obligations must be measured at a specific and consistently applied
point in time. LKE uses a December 31 measurement date for its pension and other
postretirement benefit plans.

Using valuations provided by its actuaries, LKE and its subsidiaries will record/adjust
liabilities and assets associated with its pension and other postretirement plans at least
annually and whenever changes to the plans or significant events occur resulting in a material
change in valuation. Monthly expense will be recorded associated with these plans consistent
with the allocation of labor to the various subsidiary entities. Expense will be recorded on a
regulatory basis with the difference between the regulatory and financial reporting basis due
to purchase accounting adjustments recorded to LKC.

Scope: LKE employees benefit from both funded and unfunded retirement benefit plans. Its
defined benefit pension plans cover employees hired by December 31, 2005. Employees hired
after this date participate in the Retirement Income Account (“RIA”), a defined contribution
plan. The postretirement plan includes health care benefits that are contributory, with
participants’ contributions adjusted annually. This policy applies to all of LKE’s qualified and
non-qualified defined benefit pension and other postretirement plans, including plans that
provide health and life insurance and other welfare benefits to retirees.

Objective of Procedure: The accounting for pensions, ASC 715-10-30 and other postretirement
benefits, ASC 715-10-60 are premised on the delayed recognition of actual results versus
expected or estimated results. This concept recognizes and allows for the smoothing of short-
term volatility in the capital markets in which plans are invested and from which assumptions are
used to measure results. However, certain events such as settlements and curtailments could
require immediate recognition of a liability and offsetting cost.

The basis for the determination of pension and other postretirement benefit obligations and
cost are the plan provisions coupled with economic assumptions and demographic and
mortality assumptions applied to actual employees and retirees. An obligation for each
employee and retiree is calculated and projected to an assumed date of death using IRS
mortality tables, then discounted to present values.

The discounted pension and other postretirement benefit obligations are netted with plan
assets to determine the amount of liability, or prepayment if assets exceed discounted
obligations, to be recorded on the Company’s balance sheet.
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General Requirements:

LKE’s qualified pension plans meet specific IRS guidelines and are required to be funded in a
trust, which is legally separated from corporate assets for the sole purpose of providing for
present and future pension obligations.

Non-qualified pension plans, most commonly referred to as Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plans (SERP’s) are plans that provide for additional pension benefits to highly compensated
employees above IRS limits for qualified plans. Non-qualified pension plans are not required to
segregate assets for benefit payments into a separate trust. LKE provides benefits under non-
qualified plans, which are paid from corporate assets, as it does not currently maintain separate
trusts for these plans.

Definitions:

Accumulated postretirement benefit obligation — The measure of benefit obligations under a
postretirement benefit plan, such as a retiree health care plan.

Discount rate — The interest rate used to adjust for the time value of money.

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets — An assumption as to the rate of return on
plan assets stated as a percentage reflecting the average rate of earnings expected on the funds
invested or to be invested to provide for the benefits included in the projected benefit
obligation.

Expected return on plan assets — A dollar amount calculated as a basis for determining the
extent of delayed recognition of the effects of changes in the fair value of assets. The
expected return on plan assets is determined based on the expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets and the market-related value of plan assets.

Fair value — As stated in FASB Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820-10-20, Fair
Value Measurements and Disclosures, “fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.” ASC 820 introduces and requires documentation of new fair value
measurement concepts including: a) exit price (entry, transaction or settlement price does not
necessarily equate to fair value), b) highest and best use, ¢) principal or most advantageous
market and d) non-performance risk (e.g. credit risk) for an entity’s own liabilities. In
addition, ASC 820 expands the fair value disclosure requirements of other accounting
pronouncements. When measuring fair value, these new concepts as well as the disclosures
should be considered and documented.
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Gain or loss — A change in the value of either the projected benefit obligation or the plan
assets resulting from experience different from that assumed or from a change in an actuarial
assumption.

Health care cost trend rates — An assumption about the annual rate(s) of change in the cost of
health care benefits currently provided by the postretirement benefit plan, due to factors other
than changes in the composition of the plan population by age and dependency status, for
each year from the measurement date until the end of the period in which benefits are
expected to be paid. The health care cost trend rates implicitly consider estimates of health
care inflation, changes in health care utilization or delivery patterns, technological advances,
and changes in the health status of the plan participants. Differing types of services, such as
hospital care and dental care, may have different trend rates.

Market-related value of plan assets — A balance used to calculate the expected return on plan
assets. Market-related value can be either fair market value or a calculated value that
recognizes changes in fair value in a systematic and rational manner over not more than five
years. LKE applies the expected rate of return to all assets and then smoothes all asset
gains/losses that differ from that expected rate of return.

Measurement date — The date as of which plan assets and obligations are measured.

Plan assets — The assets of the plans are legally separated from LKE and invested in external
trusts for the exclusive purpose of providing for present and future benefit payments under the
plans for which they are invested.

Plan curtailment — An event that significantly reduces the expected years of future service of
present employees or eliminates, for a significant number of employees, the accrual of
defined benefits for some or all of their future services.

Prior service cost — The cost of retroactive benefits granted in a plan amendment.

Projected benefit obligation (PBO) — The actuarial present value as of a date of all benefits
attributed by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered prior to that date. The
projected benefit obligation is measured using assumptions as to future compensation levels if
the pension benefit formula is based on those future compensation levels (pay-related, final-
pay, final-average-pay, or career-average-pay plans).

Rate of compensation increase — Management’s projection of employees' annual pay
increases, which are used to project employees’ pension benefits at retirement. This rate is
based on a review of historical salary increases including annual merit increases and increases
due to promotions.
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Settlement — An irrevocable action that relieves the employer (or the plan) of primary
responsibility for a pension benefit obligation and eliminates significant risks related to the
obligation and the assets used to effect the settlement. Examples of transactions that
constitute a settlement include (a) making lump-sum cash payments to plan participants in
exchange for their rights to receive specified pension benefits and (b) purchasing
nonparticipating annuity contracts to cover vested benefits. ASC 715-30-35-82 states that a
recognition in earnings of gains or losses from settlements is required if the cost of all
settlements (lump sums) during a year is greater than the sum of the service cost and interest
cost components of net periodic pension cost for the pension plan for the year.

Detailed Procedures Performed:

Measurement date / Remeasurements:

ASC 715-30-35-62 through 68 provides the following guidance in regard to the measurement
date. The measurements of plan assets and benefit obligations required by this Statement shall
be as of the date of the employer’s fiscal year-end statement of financial position unless ()
the plan is sponsored by a subsidiary that is consolidated using a fiscal period that differs
from its parent’s, or (b) the plan is sponsored by an investee that is accounted for using the
equity method of accounting. Requiring that the pension measurements be as of a particular
date is not intended to require that all procedures be performed after that date.

PwC’s ARM section 4270, “Pension Costs”, paragraph .431 indicates that judgment is
required to determine what constitutes a significant portion of expected future service and a
significant number of employees in regard to settlements and curtailments, discuss below.
Paragraph .431 goes on to indicate that, absent other consideration a 10% or greater reduction
would be considered significant, a reduction of less than 5% would not be significant and a
reduction between 5 and 10% should be evaluated based upon the facts and circumstances.
This same guidance and quantitative assessment should be applied to all events to determine
if they are significant and require remeasurement.

In addition to this guidance, LKE will review the final annual actuarial valuation reports
against the annual disclosure amounts prescribed by ASC 715-20-50 to determine if the assets
or liabilities for each individual plan should be adjusted. Differences may result due to the
rollforward of data used to generate the annual disclosures and complete data collection and
reconciliation used to produce the final plan valuations. The review of any resulting
differences will encompass both quantitative and qualitative considerations to determine the
significance of the differences and if they should be recorded. Significant differences will be
assessed under ASC 250-10, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections.
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Asset Values:

Plan assets are measured at fair value at each measurement date, which are then offset against
the pension and other postretirement benefit obligations to determine the funded status to be
recorded on the balance sheet.

Plans are allowed to smooth the volatility of asset fluctuations by using a calculated or
“market related value” approach to determine the value of assets to be used to measure
pension costs and determine funding requirements. LKE uses a five year smoothing for the
determination of its market-related value of assets. Under this approach, asset gains or losses
are recognized in the asset base over a five year period.

ASC 715-30-55-101 through 107 provides guidance/illustrations in the use of a market related
value approach.

Assumption Setting:

Management makes key decisions regarding the primary assumptions used in the calculations
of obligations and assets which include the discount rate, expected rate of return on assets,
salary increase rate and health care cost trend rate. Twice a year, Plan assumptions are
evaluated by financial and human resources management and the independent actuary. These
assumptions are approved on an annual basis, barring any events requiring an interim
measurement. The basis for determining the assumptions are as follows:

Discount rate: An independent actuary determines the expected duration adjusted discount
rate based on a universe of investment grade debt instruments. Additionally, the Moody’s Aa
rate and other similar indices are reviewed with consideration given to all appropriate
economic factors. At a meeting of financial and human resources management, an
appropriate rate is adopted based on all relevant information.

Expected rate of return on plan assets: LKE’s Treasury department, in conjunction with the
PPL Employee Benefit & Pension Board (EBPB), monitors and reports on the returns
achieved by LKE’s pension and other postretirement benefit plans and provides guidance for
expectations of future performance. Consideration is also given as to whether the assets are
actively managed.

Health care cost trend rate: LKE’s Director, Human Resources — Corporate reviews the
health care cost trend rates for each plan with LKE’s independent actuary. This review is
conducted with regard to plan provisions, experience and macro-economic expectations.
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Salary increase rate: LKE’s Director, Human Resources — Corporate provides guidance
regarding recent and expected future salary increases. The independent actuary provides a
report showing LKE’s historical trend.

Amortization of Gains and Losses:

Net periodic pension costs include the aggregate recognition of:

1. the costs associated with providing benefits (service cost and interest cost);

2. an offset to those costs related to the expected return on the assets held in trust; and

3. amortizations of deferred items (including the transition amount from the adoption of ASC
715, if applicable, prior service cost resulting from plan amendments, and difference between
assumed and actual demographic and asset performance results).

ASC 715-30-35-24 requires, at a minimum, the amortization of unrecognized net gain or loss
in excess of 10 percent of the greater of the projected benefit obligation or the market-related
value of plan assets over the average remaining service period of active employees expected
to receive benefits under the plan. If all or almost all of a plan's participants are inactive, the
average remaining life expectancy of the inactive participants shall be used instead of average
remaining service.

ASC 715-30-35-25, states “Any systematic method of amortizing gains or losses may be used
in lieu of the minimum specified in the previous paragraph provided that all of the following
conditions are met: (a) the minimum is used in any period in which the minimum
amortization is greater (reduces the net balance included in accumulated other comprehensive
income by more), (b) the method is applied consistently, (c) the method is applied similarly to
both gains and losses.”

In 2010, LKE changed its method of calculating the amount of unrecognized gains or losses
recognized in the annual pension expense/income determined under ASC 715, for consistency
with PPL. Under its former method, the net unrecognized gains or losses in excess of 10% of
the greater of the plan's projected benefit obligation or market-related value of plan assets
were amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated average future service period of
plan participants or average remaining life expectancy for plans with no or few active
participants. Periods prior to PPL’s acquisition of LKE are reported under predecessor
accounting in the quarterly and annual financial statements.

Under the current method, a second corridor is utilized for the net unrecognized gains or
losses in excess of 30% of the plan’'s projected benefit obligation. The net unrecognized gains
or losses outside the second corridor are now amortized on a straight-line method over a
period equal to one-half of the average future service period of the plan participants. The
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current method is preferable under ASC 715 because it provides more current recognition of
gains and losses, thereby lessening the accumulation of unrecognized gains and losses.

Settlements and Curtailments:

The accounting for pension plan settlements and curtailments, which can require immediate
versus delayed recognition, is covered under ASC 715-30-15-6. ASC 715-20-20 defines a
settlement as “a transaction that (a) is an irrevocable action, (b) relieves the employer (or the
plan) of primary responsibility for a pension benefit obligation, and (c) eliminates significant
risks related to the obligation and the assets used to effect the settlement.” Examples of
transactions that constitute a settlement include (a) making lump-sum cash payments to plan
participants in exchange for their rights to receive specified pension benefits and (b)
purchasing nonparticipating annuity contracts to cover vested benefits. A curtailment is an
event that significantly reduces the expected years of future service of present employees or
eliminates for a significant number of employees the accrual of defined benefits for some or
all of their future services. Curtailments include:

a. Termination of employees' services earlier than expected, which may or may not involve
closing a facility or discontinuing a component of an entity

b. Termination or suspension of a plan so that employees do not earn additional defined
benefits for future services.

In the latter situation, future service may be counted toward vesting of benefits accumulated
based on past service.

Responsibilities:

Treasury — Manages and/or coordinates all trust and investment manager relationships,
ultimately responsible for all plan investments. Responsible for recommending and coordinating
the year-end assumptions to be used for plan measurement with senior management and the
actuary. Coordinates all plan funding decisions with senior management.

Human Resources — Communicates plan provisions and any changes to plan provisions to the
plan actuary and pension accounting. Provides annual employee census data, input on the health
care cost trend and the rate of compensation increase assumptions to the plan actuary.

Accounting — Responsible for all general ledger journal entries and account analysis associated
with all LKE pension and postretirement plan activity. Coordinates and/or prepares quarterly
and annual 10Q/10K disclosures as required by ASC 715-20-50 in consultation with PPL
Services Benefits Accounting group. Provides and coordinates information and accounting
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assessment related to plan changes with PPL’s Benefit Accounting group for potential re-
measurement and/or settlement / curtailment accounting.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

¢ Annual financial statement disclosures under regulatory and financial reporting scenarios
prepared by actuary and distributed to various Treasury and Accounting personnel

e Annual actuarial valuation reports to various Treasury and Accounting personnel

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

None

Regulatory Requirements:

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA)

Pension Protection Act of 2006

Internal Revenue Code Section 401(k)

Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010

Reference:

e ASC 715 Compensation Retirement Benefits
e ASC 820 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

401 - Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans
Key Contact:

Treasurer

Administrative Responsibility:

Treasurer

Controller

Date Created: 3/28/11
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Policy: Requests for any changes to the General Ledger (“GL”) chart of accounts requires
approval from all of the Accounting Managers.

Procedure: See "Detailed Procedures Performed" section.

Scope: Applies to the creation and update of all chargeable (non-parent) accounting segment
values for each segment of the General Ledger Accounting Flexfield (“GLAFF”) in Oracle for
all companies. Excluded are additions and changes to the Oracle Project Accounting version of
location segment values, as these are non-chargeable in the General Ledger.

Objective: To maintain a formalized and controlled mechanism for adding new segments,
disabling segments, and updating existing segments of the GLAFF.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:
The procedures to update the GL chart of accounts are as follows:

1. The “GLAFF Change Request Form” may be found on the Intranet in the Controller
Group section.

2. The person requesting changes to any segment of the GLAFF completes the appropriate
workbook version of the “GLAFF Change Request Form”. The form contains drop down
lists and instructions to minimize errors when completing the form.

3. The “GLAFF Change Request Form” is then forwarded to the initiator’s direct supervisor
for approval. The supervisor emails approved form to the email address
“GLAFF.Changes@Ige-ku.com” (GLAFF Changes mailbox). The email is also received
automatically by the “GLAFF.Changes-Audit@Ilge-ku.com” email address, which is
accessible by Auditing Services only.

4. The Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee forwards the completed form in
an email with approval buttons to accounting and finance employees responsible for
internal or external financial reporting. These employees review/correct/approve the
submitted form. Approvals and rejections are communicated to the Sr. Accounting
Systems Support Analyst or designee via the GLAFF Changes mailbox. The Company /
Intercompany, Product, Account, Expenditure Type, and (GL) Location segment value
changes must be approved by the entire list of approvers. Changes to the Organization /
Exp Organization segment values must only be approved by the Sr. Financial Analyst
from Finance & Budgeting — Corporate.

5. If rejections are received, the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee
communicates these to the initiator, who must make the requested changes to the form
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and have his or her director supervisor resubmit it to the GLAFF Changes mailbox for
redistribution to the accounting and finance employees responsible for approving
changes. As approvals are received they are added to the “Pending Approval” email
folder.

6. After all approvals are received, the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee
makes the requested changes in Oracle.

7. The Senior Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee forwards the GLAFF
Change Request Form from the GLAFF Changes mailbox to the manager/delegate of the
requesting department seeking positive confirmation of agreement with the changes made
by use of the segment values listing on the chart of accounts Intranet web page. The other
accounting managers, those responsible for updating the Oracle Financial Statement
Generator reports with new segments and other individuals who have expressed a need to
be informed about this information are copied on the request. The email is moved to the
“Pending Confirmation” folder. After confirmation is received, the email is moved to the
“Completed” folder. For changes affecting HFM, the Senior Accounting Systems Support
Analyst verifies that the changes were made in HFM and notifies the support group from
PPL via e-mail, a copy of which is retained in the “Verifications Sent” folder.

8. Before the books are closed for each quarter-end, the Senior Accounting Systems Support
Analyst or designee requests positive confirmation from the manager/delegate of the
requesting department that any open items may still remain open.

9. The Senior Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee will follow up to make sure
a response is received for each request, whether completed or open, before the books are
closed for each quarter-end.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

GLAFF Change Request Form for changes to the Company/Intercompany, Account,
Expenditure Type, and Location (GL version only) segments — The Sr. Accounting Systems
Support Analyst or designee, the managers of the Corporate Accounting, Regulatory
Accounting & Reporting, Financial Reporting, and Financial Planning departments and
other designated accounting and finance personnel.

GLAFF Change Request Form for changes to the Organization/Expenditure Organization
segment — the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee and the Sr. Financial
Analyst from Finance & Budgeting — Corporate. Approval or rejection of requested GLAFF
changes — The Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee.

Notification of GLAFF changes - The list of approvers, all accounting managers and various
other accounting and finance personnel.

Confirmation of GLAFF changes by the manager of the requesting department — the
Accounting Systems Support Analyst or designee.

Email to PPL HFM support group verifying changes were updated in HFM.
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Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
None

Regulatory Requirements:

None

Reference:

None

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

500 — BMI chartfield setup guidelines — new accounts

501 — BMI chartfield setup guidelines — new business units

503 — New business unit setup

Key Contact:

Manager, Corporate Accounting

Administrative Responsibility:

Controller
Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Date Created: 1/10/05
Date Revised: 3/15/11, 8/10/11, 5/17/12, 5/31/13
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Policy: Oracle system interfaces which impact financial and management reporting are
monitored regularly, and transactions causing processing errors are corrected on a timely basis.

Procedure: Each interface is reviewed at the same frequency that the interface processes are
run in Oracle using available reporting tools, such as EiS and concurrent request output reports.
Transactions that cannot be successfully interfaced are identified and corrected by the Corporate
Accounting Department or by contacting the transaction initiator or other appropriate
Accounting Department. All corrections to transactions should be made in the source system
whenever possible.

Scope: All Oracle interfaces that impact financial and management reporting, including
interfaces between the Oracle G/L and Projects modules, interfaces from external systems to
Oracle, and interfaces from Oracle to data warehouses.

Objective of Procedure: Sufficient controls are in place to ensure that complete and accurate
transactions are transferred via Oracle system interfaces.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:

Customized/Semi-Customized Interfaces:

Labor —On a nightly basis, the labor file is imported from VOLTS into the Oracle Projects
interface table by a scheduled custom process. The VOLTS process sends an email alert
containing the file control totals to the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst who balances to
an EiS report before and after the data is interfaced to G/L and who corrects any errors.

Burdens — The custom burden interface from Oracle Projects to G/L is run by the Sr.
Accounting Systems Support Analyst during the close cycle and on a daily basis after the 11"
work day. Two EiS reports are run by the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst to compare
the control totals from Oracle Projects and Oracle G/L. Differences other than rounding are
investigated by the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst.

TRMS Costs — The Transportation Management System (TRMS) allocation process is a custom
program that allocates transportation costs accumulated in the prior G/L period by labor in
departments that own vehicles. The Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst runs an EiS report
to compare control totals of the costs to be allocated in Oracle Projects to control totals of the
unposted G/L batch and corrects any discrepancies.
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CCS - The batches from the Customer Care System (CCS) are automatically imported and
posted into Oracle G/L without any manual intervention. Control totals are run by the Sr.
Accounting Systems Support Analyst after the fact to make sure that the totals in G/L match the
totals per the CCS email alert. If the totals do not match or if the files did not make it to Oracle
G/L during the nightly process, members of the CCS team and Revenue Accounting are
contacted to provide a resolution.

Aligne (formerly Fuelworx) — This interface has two components:

l. Aligne to A/P: Aligne produces invoices related to shipments at plants. The Fuels
Accounting Analysts work with the suppliers to make sure they are in agreement about
the details of the invoices. The invoices are then approved for payment in Aligne. On a
daily basis, Aligne produces a file of invoices that is interfaced to the A/P module for
automatic import and processing. No fuels invoices are entered manually. This interface
to A/P produces a control report that shows what has been approved in Aligne. Copies
are given to the Director of Corporate Fuels & By-Products and the Chief Financial
Officer for review in accordance with the statement of trading and the Authority Limits
Matrix.

Il. Aligne to G/L: Data extracted from Aligne is put into a spreadsheet and checked
monthly by the Fuels Accounting Analysts to ensure that the correct amounts are
reflected in the interface file prior to importing the file into Oracle. If an error is detected
in the data, it can be corrected by the Manager, Fuels Accounting prior to the archive of
the file and its import into Oracle. Errors that may occur during the journal import into
Oracle are detected by standard import controls and custom controls applied by a
database trigger on the G/L interface table. Any errors in GLAFFs and/or project-task
combinations are referred to the Manager, Fuels Accounting for research who then
provides any changes that must be made to the file to the Sr. Accounting Systems
Support Analyst who makes the changes. Upon successful import into Oracle G/L, the
Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst ensures that the file debits and credits match as
a final check prior to posting to the G/L. The posted G/L batch is then interfaced to the
Oracle Projects system, and various personnel who have expressed a need to know are
notified that this portion of the monthly close process has been completed.

Oracle G/L to Oracle Projects — A custom process is scheduled to run each night to interface
project-related items posted to the G/L to Oracle Projects. Included in this interface are project-
related accounting journal entries imported into G/L through the Automatic Data Interface. This
process is also run by request to interface items to Projects such as the A/P accrual entries on the
second work day. The Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst runs a series of maintenance
queries several times a day during the close cycle that will detect if any errors occurred that
prevented transactions from being successfully interfaced from G/L. Any error conditions
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preventing the data from being interfaced are corrected by the Sr. Accounting Systems Support
Analyst, and the process is re-run.

PowerPlant — The PowerPlant interface consists of three main components: Interface from
Oracle to PowerPlant to populate the Cost Repository (CR) with detail information from Oracle
G/L balances and journal lines items; depreciation and other related transactions; and tax-related
transactions from PowerTax:

l. PowerPlant Charge Repository — A system job runs daily to verify the CR balances
to the Oracle G/L. If it does not balance, an alert is sent to a Property Accounting
Analyst, who investigates the differences and makes appropriate corrections to G/L,
CR or both.

Il. PowerPlant transactions to Oracle G/L — A Property Accounting Analyst ensures
that the depreciation and other transactions interfaced from PowerPlant to G/L are
correct and that any errors are identified. Monthly unitization and retirement control
sheets are verified against PowerPlant reports. Balance sheet account reconciliations
are used by Property Accounting Analysts to ensure account balances in PowerPlant
agree to account balances in Oracle G/L. Coding errors on journal entries from
PowerPlant are detected during the validation process in PowerPlant before importing
into Oracle G/L.

1. PowerTax - Data (i.e. pretax and other tax items) pulled from Oracle into PowerTax
are checked on a monthly basis by a Tax Analyst to ensure that the right amounts are
reflected in the PowerTax system. Debits and credits from tax journal entries
interfaced into Oracle from PowerTax are verified by a monthly account
reconciliation process that checks the tax amounts booked in Oracle vs. PowerTax. If
interface errors occur they are corrected by the Tax department.

File from Oracle to HFM - This file is the process by which LG&E and KU Energy LLC
(LKE)’s unconsolidated data is provided to PPL for consolidation in HFM with its other entities.
Various reports are produced from the HFM system to be used in consolidated financial
reporting.

WallStreet Suites — WallStreet Suites is a treasury management system that allows for a single
repository for debt, derivative, and banking transactions along with an accounting sub-ledger for
these transactions. The monthly activity is interfaced each month during the close cycle to Oracle
GL posting and interface to Oracle Projects. The sub-ledger detail is maintained and reviewed
and reconciled by Corporate Finance.
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Standard Interfaces from Other Oracle Modules:

Accounts Receivable (A/R) - Each month, before the Accounts Receivable accounting period is
closed, the Senior Accounting Analyst in the Cash Management department reviews the journal
entries report for any unposted items to ensure they are coded to the proper General Ledger
Accounting Flex Fields. The incomplete invoices report is also run to ensure there are no
transactions in process that need to be completed. Corrections are made, as needed.
Additionally, the Senior Accounting Analyst in the Cash Management department runs an EiS
report against the A/R customer transaction distributions table to ensure there are no errors. All
errors must be corrected and all outstanding transactions must be processed before the A/R
period can be closed.

Accounts Payable/Purchasing — Transactions process automatically from the A/P module to
G/L nightly and reviewed by the Accounting Associates on the following business day.
Inventory receipts and payments generate accrual journal entries from the Purchasing module to
the G/L automatically and these are checked the following month as part of the account
reconciliation process.

Inventory — A Materials Services & Logistics (MSL) Analyst ensures that any pending
inventory transactions are resolved before the inventory period can be closed in Oracle for each
location. After closing the inventory period, the G/L is automatically updated and inventory
balances are confirmed with an Accounting Analyst in Regulatory Accounting & Reporting. Any
discrepancies are reconciled, with any adjustments needed to G/L or Inventory requested by the
Manager, MSL.

Oracle Patch Regression Testing

All of the above interfaces undergo regression testing by the Financial Systems and IT Shared
Services Applications departments when new Oracle application or security patches are
applied.Reports Generated and Recipients:

Oracle Processing Status Reports for each interface job are reviewed by the owner of each
process, and for Oracle G/L and Projects processes, the Sr. Accounting Systems Support Analyst
or designee.

The results of the Oracle G/L and Projects EIiS reports are also reviewed by the Sr. Accounting
Systems Support Analyst or designee.
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Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

The monthly balance sheet reconciliation process is used to assist in detecting any interface
problems that may cause out-of-balance conditions between the Oracle subledgers and the
General Ledger.

Regulatory Requirements:

N/A

Reference:

250 — Balance Sheet Account Reconciliation policy

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:

504 — G/L (BMI) Interface

Key Contact:

Manager, Corporate Accounting

Administrative Responsibility:

Controller

Date Created: 12/31/04
Dates Revised: 10/23/07; 10/19/09; 3/31/11; 9/20/11; 6/17/13; 9/16/13; 4/22/14; 6/24/14
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Policy: EiS Reporting Tool (EiS) provides real time reporting from the Oracle E-Business Suite
(Oracle). EiS reports are utilized for many business reporting needs and must comply with this
governance for using the tool and for IT report development.

Procedure: EiS Report users (users) will contact their respective EiS Reporting Administrator
for any EiS reporting need that is not met within the system and follow the IT governance for
report development.

Scope: Applies to all users who have access to EiS.

Objective of Procedure: EiS governance establishes how business specific reports will be
effectively and efficiently generated and maintained.

General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:
EiS Reporting Administrators and Developers:

For the purposes of establishing and maintaining consistent reporting governance, functional EiS
Reporting Administrators will be identified within the respective Business areas. The role of the
Reporting Administrator will be as follows:

e Serve as the Business specific contact person for EiS reporting issues

e Ensure that the tenets of the governance process are maintained within that Business area

e Work with the other Administrators to share best practices in order to improve the overall
use and capability of the reporting tool

e Serve as the point of contact with the vendor to resolve outstanding system problems

The EiS Reporting Administrators are:

Karen Tipton —Finance (Accounting, Tax, Budget Analysts and others)
Sherry Townsend — Supply Chain

Eboni Edwards — Commercial Operations

Janiene Boatman — Supply Chain

EiS Reporting Developer functional positions will be established to support the Reporting
Administrators. The Reporting Developers will be responsible for:
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e Supporting the development of technical reports that cannot be performed by the
Reporting Administrators
e Serving as the point-of-contact with the vendor to resolve technical system issues

The EiS Reporting Developers are:

Tom Bush
Toni Sheets
Brenda Fogerty
David Young
Joe Hayes
Jenny Skaggs

Modules and Categories:

EiS uses Modules and Categories to provide an organizational listing of the report inventory.
Modules are aligned with the Oracle Modules and Categories represent how the reports should
be categorized based on the purpose of the report.

When users copy a report they must keep the same module, but can choose a category that is
appropriate for the purpose of the report. The Reporting Administrator will monitor the use of
modules and categories used for copying a report. If the user has any questions about modules
and categories the Reporting Administrator will provide assistance.

See Modules and Categories listing in EiS.

LKE Reports

LKE reports were developed based on known and anticipated reporting needs.

LKE reports consist of standard reporting needs that are most commonly used for recurring data
requirements and reports that are more complex in nature that can contain specific views,
complex calculation formulas and conditions that meet a specific reporting requirement.

See LKE Report list in EiS of all available LKE reports.

Financial Statement Generator (FSG) Reports

FSG reports were developed using Oracle in the General Ledger (GL) module and the output can
be run using Oracle or EiS. The maintenance of updating the row sets and the column sets must
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be done within the GL module. A report in EiS is available to run (LKE FSG Line Item
Definitions) that will report any updates made to the row set definitions and the user that made
those updates. The FSG reports are primarily used by the Accounting and Tax departments since
the reports strictly retrieve GL account balance data for dollars and stats. These reports are
updated by the respective departments that use those reports. The reports are automatically
shared after being developed with the users that have access to the Oracle GL module and EiS.
There is generally no IT development needed since the user can define all report criteria through
the GL module. When a new FSG is created the Finance Reporting Administrator should be
contacted to review and approve the final report. Evidence of the review and approval will be
maintained by the Finance Reporting Administrator.

See the FSG report listing in EiS of all available FSG reports.
Creating Reports:

EiS Report Users (users) will have the ability to create new reports by using an existing report
and copying that report to make modifications to meet unique or specific business reporting
needs. Examples of modifications to copied reports are column selection, column order,
parameters, conditions/filters, sort, format, calculations, and adding pivot tables.

New reports will not be created “from scratch” by a user due to the technical experience needed
for selecting the proper object views which involves having the understanding of the Oracle
database tables. If an existing report does not meet the need of the user, the appropriate
Reporting Administrator needs to be consulted.

Report development performed by the Reporting Administrator, Developer, or Analyst must
occur in a development environment and not production. Once reports have been developed, it is
necessary to move reports from the development environment to the test environment before
moving them to production. The move to the test environment is required to test the scripts that
are created by the EiS export process. The EiS export process is a manual process that creates
scripts which can be run against the target environments (test and production). Moving the
reports into the test environment will uncover any issues with the scripts, reports, joins (link
between two tables in a relational database), parameters, or conditions. Finally, testing of the
EiS scripts and EiS reports created by those scripts is required for the change controls necessary
to move EiS reports into the production environment.

Saving Reports:
Users have the ability to save copied reports. EiS will automatically assign a copied report to the

user as the report owner. There must be a valid business purpose for copying a report to be
saved for an individual user. A valid business purpose would represent a reporting need to
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provide a specific data request from Oracle for the business that cannot be met by reports already
available in EiS.

The EiS Reporting Administrator will monitor on a quarterly basis all new reports created to
confirm each report is needed on an ongoing basis. The monitoring of new reports is to ensure
the EiS report inventory stays at a manageable level.

Standardized Naming Convention of Reports:

Custom Reports created by users will begin with “LKE”, a space, (no underscore, no dash), and
name of the report. The name must reflect the purpose of the report. The report name must not
contain a user’s name, employee ID, or employee’s initials.

An example base report name is provided below:

e LKE Project Expenditures

If a user decided to copy this report for a specific business purpose that the existing base report
did not meet, the user could rename the report below as:

e LKE Project Expenditures for Storm Restoration
Examples of unacceptable names for a report would be:

KT LKE Project Expenditures
Copy of LKE Project Expenditures
E10896 LKE Project Expenditures
LKE Project Expenditures for Larry

Departmental initials will be allowed in report names when used after “LKE” for example:
e LKE RAR Fuel Accounts
RAR is the departmental abbreviation for Regulatory Accounting and Reporting

For any reports that do not follow the standardized naming convention, the Reporting
Administrator will be contacting that user to correct the name of the report.
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Sharing Reports:

When reports are copied by a user to create their own report, the report will only be shared with
that user. The copied report is considered a “private” report. If a user needs the report to be
shared it must be shared with a responsibility. Reports will only be shared with a responsibility
e.g. Mult Reporting and not single users.

For a report to be shared with a responsibility e.g. Mult_Reporting, the report must be reviewed
by the Reporting Administrator. The reports shared with Mult_Reporting are considered
“public” reports. The Reporting Administrator must approve sharing a report to ensure the
report would meet the needs of multiple users, not be a duplicate of another public report, and
ensure the data is accurate. These reports may require additional maintenance due to GLAFF
changes or other Oracle updates. The Reporting Administrator will be responsible for sharing
approved reports with a reporting responsibility.

New private and public reports will be monitored on a quarterly basis by the Reporting
Administrator to ensure the reports are needed on an ongoing basis.

Deleting Reports:

Users will have the ability to delete reports where they are the report owner. If the report has
been shared with a responsibility, the user must contact the Reporting Administrator to confirm
the report can be deleted. If the report has not been shared, the user can delete the report if no
longer needed.

Report Development (creating reports from scratch using new objects or SQL code):

For any new reports that are created by a Reporting Developer or Reporting Administrator that
involves using new objects (views) or new SQL code, the report must first be created in the EiS
development environment and tested by the Reporting Administrator and/or report user to ensure
the data is accurate and meets the needs of the user. Once this report is tested and signed off by
the user, the report will be migrated to the test environment before moving to the EiS production
instance. The IT EiS Technical Support Analyst will migrate the report from the development
environment to the test environment and then production environment, once the report is
sufficiently tested. The Reporting Administrator will coordinate the developing, testing, and
migrating of the report to production with the user.

Monitoring Reports:

As stated previously, the Reporting Administrators will be responsible for monitoring the EiS
report inventory (including FSG reports) for their respective business areas. Evidence of this
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review must be performed quarterly and include an EiS report listing that has been reviewed and
any maintenance provided to ensure the EiS report inventory is in compliance. The report listing
must include the name of the report (that must meet the EiS standardized naming convention),
the date the report was last run, report owner, module and category. This report listing must be
provided to the Director of Accounting and Regulatory Reporting to provide approval for the
evidence of review. Additionally, report statistics for the total reports included in the EiS report
inventory must be provided. The report statistics show the number of reports for each module
within EiS and are used to ensure an excessive number of reports are not created and the reports
remain manageable and maintainable.

Reports Generated and Recipients:

Quarterly EiS Report Inventory reviewed by the Reporting Administrators and results provided
to the Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting.

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:

N/A

Regulatory Requirements:

N/A

Reference:

N/A

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
N/A

Key Contact:

Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting
Administrative Responsibility:

Controller
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Date Created: 3/31/2014
Dates Revised:
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Policy: Capital assets will be recorded based on the acquisition or construction of property,
plant and equipment (“PP&E”) with useful lives greater than one year, and assets will be
removed based on retirements and disposals of PP&E to ensure the accounting records are
accurate.

Procedure: The procedures for adding and removing capital assets are described in the detailed
instructions below.

Scope: All asset additions and retirements of LG&E and KU Energy LLC (“LKE” or the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries.

Objective of Procedure: Ensure that all capital assets and retirements are properly added or
removed from the accounting records.

General Requirements:

Detailed Procedures Performed:

Various costs are considered appropriate to be accounted for as capital. The following are some
generic definitions of these costs:

Capitalizable Costs - costs that are directly identifiable with specific PP&E. This includes
incremental costs related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of capital assets. These
costs singly or in combination with other assets will provide a future economic benefit that will
contribute directly or indirectly to future net cash inflows.

Direct Costs - costs which can be identified and directly attributed to a specific capital project for
the acquisition or construction of PP&E. These costs can be readily identified and are itemized
by name and amount. Examples are direct labor, direct material, and direct equipment costs.

Direct Labor Cost - labor cost which can be identified and directly attributed to a specific capital
project for the acquisition or construction of PP&E. The cost components are basic wage/salary
rate, shift premiums, fringe benefits and overtime premiums.

Direct Material Cost - material cost which can be identified and directly attributed to a specific
capital project for the acquisition or construction of PP&E. These costs include inventory loading
cost, freight, transportation, and applicable taxes associated with the material.

Probable — the future event or events are likely to occur. A capital project for the acquisition or
construction of PP&E is probable when: 1) proper management approval as specified by the
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authority limits matrix is obtained in writing, 2) financial resources are available to fund the
project, and 3) any regulatory requirements can likely be met.

Indirect/Overhead Costs - costs which generally are not directly attributable to a specific capital
project for the acquisition or construction of PP&E.

Capital projects generally follow a timeline and progress through the following stages of
acquiring or constructing an asset:

e Preliminary Stage - the period during which the acquisition or construction of specific
PP&E is being evaluated. Feasibility studies often occur during this stage. At this stage
the project is not yet approved by Management and all costs are expensed as incurred.
The only capitalizable costs are payments to obtain an option to purchase PP&E.

e Preacquisition Stage - the acquisition or construction of specific PP&E is deemed
probable at this time, so appropriate costs can be capitalized. Only those costs that are
directly identifiable to the asset are capitalized. Activities often include zoning,
surveying, and engineering studies.

Directly identifiable costs include:

e incremental direct costs incurred in transactions with a third party often include an
element of the third party’s administrative overhead. That element is considered to be
an incremental direct cost and should be capitalized.

e labor and burden costs related to time spent on specified activities performed by the
entity during this stage.

e depreciation of machinery and equipment used directly in the construction or
installation of PP&E and incremental costs directly associated with the utilization of
that machinery and equipment during this stage.

e inventory (including spare parts) used directly in the construction or installation of
PP&E.

e payment to obtain an option to acquire PP&E.

NOTE: Costs that are capitalized during the preliminary and preacquisition stages will be
added to the basis of the asset acquired or constructed. If the likelihood no longer exists
that the asset will be acquired or constructed, capitalized costs should be reduced to the
lower of cost or fair value less cost to sell.
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Acquisition or Construction Stage - the acquisition or construction activities occur that
are necessary to get the PP&E ready for its intended use. This is the stage when the
business entity acquires ownership of the assets or rights to the assets. It continues until
the asset is acquired or until completion of all major construction and installation
activities. If the asset is constructed in phases, it can be divided into multiple projects as
long as the phases can be operated independently from the projects that are incomplete.
Capitalized interest, if applicable, begins during this stage (see AFUDC Policy and
Procedures). Costs directly identifiable related to the asset during this stage can be
capitalized. Examples are listed below:

e labor and burden costs related to time spent on specified activities performed by the
entity during this stage.

e depreciation of machinery and equipment used directly in the construction or
installation of PP&E and incremental costs directly associated with the utilization of
that machinery and equipment during this stage.

e inventory (including spare parts) used directly in the construction or installation of
PP&E.

e payment to obtain an option to acquire PP&E.

e incremental direct costs incurred in transactions with a third party often include an
element of the third party’s administrative overhead. That element is considered to be
an incremental direct cost and should be capitalized.

o for real estate, costs incurred for property taxes, insurance and ground rentals are
capitalizable during the time that activities are necessary to get the asset ready for its
intended use are in progress. The cost of demolition that occurs with the acquisition
of real estate is capitalized during a reasonable period of time thereafter.

In-Service Stage - PP&E is substantially complete and ready for its intended use.
Capitalized interest, if any, ceases (see AFUDC Policy and Procedures) and depreciation
commences at this stage. Costs that are incurred during this stage can be as follows:

e repair and maintenance - expensed as incurred.

e replacement of existing components of PP&E - capitalized under the guidelines of the
FERC Uniform System of accounts.

e additional components to PP&E- follow the capitalization criteria set forth in the first
three stages within this policy.

NOTE: Major maintenance activities may include costs related to replacements of PP&E
and should be capitalized (when incurred and not accrued) according to the FERC
Uniform System of Accounts. Additions to PP&E should follow the capitalization criteria
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set forth in first three stages within this policy. All other maintenance costs should be
expensed as incurred.

Refer to Appendix A — Summary of Accounting, for more details on accounting for
specific types of costs.

LKE and its subsidiaries have historically applied the standards of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”) and other regulators in their accounting practices when
making capital versus expense determinations. It has been LKE’s practice is to capitalize the
following:

> Direct costs related to asset construction — costs directly charged such as labor,
purchased material, contractors and inventory.

> Burden Cost Component — cost that can NOT be directly charged. Examples of
burdens include pensions, insurance, payroll taxes and other labor related costs.

> A portion of indirect overheads directly attributable to capital activities —including
Administrative and General Expense-Transferred (“A&G”) and Engineering,
Warehouse and Transportation Overheads. A&G is an allocation from Operation
and Maintenance to Capital which allocates labor and expenses of employees that
support the capital process but do not work directly on a particular capital project.
These costs can be capitalized per the Code of Federal Regulations and have been
deemed recoverable in rates by the various regulating entities.

According to the Corporate Capital Policy guidelines, projects with a total cost of $2,000 or less
will be expensed, and any Authorization for Investment Proposal (“AlIP”) that is received for $2,000
or less is returned to the Project Manager with an explanation. All other capital expenditures are
subject to mandatory capitalization. All fixed assets are recorded at cost as mandated by the
FERC. When the requestor completes preparation of the AIP for capital expenditures in
PowerPlant, appropriate authority must be achieved based on the Authority Limits Matrix. The
preparer sends the electronic AIP for approval via PowerPlant. At the point the AIP is received
by Property Accounting for approval, the Accounting Analyst reviews the AIP for appropriate
budget funding, approvals, and whether the described expenditure is indeed a capital
expenditure. If the AIP passes review, the Accounting Analyst approves the project in
PowerPlant. Should the AIP not pass review, the Accounting Analyst has the option to request
additional information or reject the AIP. If the AIP is rejected the approval process starts all
over.

To ensure timely capitalization and retirement of projects, a report, referred to as the 90-Day
Report, is generated on a quarterly basis identifying capital and cost of removal projects which
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are in “open” status but having no activity for 90 days or more. This report is sent to every line
of business Budget Coordinator with a request to update the project with either in-service or
completion dates or verify that the project is still active. If the project is complete, the Property
Accounting Department will capitalize it or process a retirement in a timely matter.

Monthly, a report called the “Job Log” is generated identifying all capital projects, which are in
“completed” or “closed” status with no activity for 90 days or more. The purpose of this report
is to identify projects eligible for capitalization/retirement. The report is saved on the Property
Accounting  Department shared drive (propacct on ‘fs2’:\ POWER PLANT
CLASSIFICATION\Mob Logs\Current Year Job Logs\Current Month Year Company Job Log).

During the accounting period, Accounting Analysts select projects from the Job Log for
capitalization/retirement. The Accounting Analyst uses the Work Order Analysis Checklist
posted on the Property Accounting Department’s shared drive (propacct on ‘fs2”:\POWER
PLANT CLASSIFICATION\Work Order Analysis Checklist) to aid in the capitalization and
retirement process. This checklist ensures that fixed asset records are processed consistently by
all Accounting Analysts, reducing the risk of misstatement of fixed assets in the financial
statements. The capitalization process includes the following:

e Review Authorization for Investment Proposal (“AlIP”).

e Reconcile capital and cost of removal expenditure charges to the AIP to ensure that all
expenditures have been properly authorized. If the variance compared to the original AIP
is 10% or $100,000 over; (whichever is less, subject to a minimum of $25,000), a revised
AIP must be completed as soon as possible.

e Review all project charges to ensure that all charges should be properly capitalized or
classified as cost of removal.

e Reconcile units of property listed on the AIP to what has been charged to the project.

Transaction processing is accomplished in PowerPlant with a combination of manual and
automated processes as documented in the PowerPlant User Guides maintained in PowerPlant.
The Accounting Analyst creates manual as-builts in PowerPlant for all non-mass property. Mass
property such as utility poles, crossarms etc., is unitized through an automated as-built process.
In both processes, costs charged to capital projects are distributed automatically by the system
based on units of property established by the analyst in the case of manual as-builts, and those
established from inventory transactions in the case of automated as-builts. The Accounting
Analyst again verifies the segmentation is correct and assigns the asset to a segmented plant
account pursuant to FERC regulations.
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The retirement process includes the following:

e Review AIP and the associated retirement/salvage information to determine if a
retirement is listed or should be listed based on a description of the project (i.e., if a
project addition is to replace an asset a retirement should be listed). The Accounting
Analyst will question the responsible Budget Analyst if retirements are not listed where it
appears they should be.

e Review all project removal charges in the Cost Repository Report — Actual Cost
(“RWIP”).

Manual retirements are those related to a one time retirement event. Assets are selected for
retirement through the “CPR Retire” function. Costs charged to retirement projects are
distributed automatically by the system based on units of property, established by the analyst in
the case of manual as-builts and those established from inventory transactions in the case of
automated as-builts.

Blanket retirements are those related to ongoing projects which are processed periodically. The
requests for PowerPlant retirements are created automatically based upon data supplied from the
STORMS Work Management system.

In order to insure that potential large dollar retirements are properly recorded in the financial
records, it may be necessary to record a “preliminary retirement.” A preliminary retirement is
defined as an “estimated asset cost retired at the time the replacement asset is put into service.”
A preliminary retirement is entered into PowerPlant when an asset has been placed into service
but is not yet eligible for final unitization due to timing issues, etc. The following guidelines
are used to determine whether a preliminary retirement is necessary:

e The project is in In-Service Status /or Completed Status — but not yet unitized; and
e The new asset replacement cost must be equal to or greater than $250,000

Preliminary retirements will be processed during the *‘mid” month (February, April, August and
November) of each quarter.

In order to minimize record keeping requirements, equipment in certain General Plant accounts
are amortized (office furniture and equipment, stores equipment, tools, shop equipment, garage
equipment and laboratory equipment). These assets are retired when the assets become fully
depreciated based on their in-service date and depreciable lives. For equipment in these
accounts, AIP reporting for retirements is not necessary.
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For both additions and retirements, PowerPlant validation rules prevent the Analyst from
choosing invalid units of property, plant accounts and business segment combinations in order to
prevent incorrect data from being entered. An error message is generated in the event of an
invalid combination and the Analyst must correct the error before proceeding. In addition,
mandatory input fields are required including in service dates, tax districts, locations, units of
property, etc. PowerPlant does not allow the posting of assets with incomplete data fields.

After the Accounting Analyst creates the as-builts in PowerPlant and performs the process “Send
to CPR”, the work is reviewed as a final check to ensure additions and retirements are compliant
with the various accounting rules (FERC, Company guidelines, etc.) by the Accounting Analyst
or other designee. After the review and approval process is completed, relevant data including
project number, amount added or retired, cost of removal, salvage amount, and the analyst’s
initials are entered into the PowerPlant Classification Spreadsheet maintained on the Property
Accounting shared drive (propacct on ‘fs2:\POWER PLANT CLASSIFICATION\Current Year
Class\ASBUILTS-INPUT-MONTH YEAR). The spreadsheet calculates a control total of all
additions, retirements, removal and salvage costs entered by Accounting Analysts during the
month. The as-built folder is then passed to the analyst responsible for the monthly system
closing process for posting.

The Accounting Analyst responsible for the closing process begins the process by sending an
email to all Property Accounting personnel toward the end of the accounting period informing
them of the last day to unitize assets for the current period. The Accounting Analyst then runs
the PowerPlant processes to post all acquisitions for assets and retirements. To verify the
accuracy and completeness of the data, monthly the Accounting Analyst reconciles all addition
and retirement postings in the general ledger to control totals in the PowerPlant Classification
Spreadsheet (I\POWER PLANT CLASSIFICATION\Current Year Class\ASBUILTS-INPUT-
MONTH YEAR). Discrepancies are investigated and cleared as discovered. Once all totals are
reconciled, the Accounting Analyst runs the depreciation calculations. PowerPlant automatically
generates entries for gains and losses on non-mass property which are then checked for
correctness by the Accounting Analyst. The monthly reconciliation and closing process is then
completed.  Procedures are documented in the “Property Accounting Monthly Closing
Procedures”. These procedures are maintained by the Accounting Analyst to ensure accurate
monthly financial closing. The Accounting Analyst maintains all supporting documentation in
binders stored in the Property Accounting Department. During the closing process, the
Accounting Analyst uses a closing checklist saved on the Property Accounting Shared Drive
(propacct on “fs2’:\Closing\Closing Reports\PP Closing Checklist) to ensure that all steps are
completed.
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Reports Generated and Recipients:
e 90-Day Report sent to the Budget Coordinators
e Job Log report accessible to Property Accounting on the fs2:\\propacct shared drive
e Plant Additions and Retirement Report — PowerPlant Classification Spreadsheet
accessible to Property Accounting on the fs2:\\propacct shared drive
e Cost Repository Report — Actual Cost (RWIP) accessible to Property Accounting in
PowerPlant

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
e General ledger debits and credits for Account 101 Plant in Service should tie to the
additions and retirements.

e Budget Coordinators, Financial Planning personnel and Accounting Analysts review
AIPs to confirm assets are to be capitalized.

Regulatory Requirements:
e FERC Accounting Guidelines

Reference:
e Code of Federal Regulations 18 Part 101 Electric Plant Instructions
e Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) Topic 360 — Property, Plant and Equipment
e FASB ASC Topic 720 — Other Expenses
e FASB ASC Topic 970 — Real Estate
e FASB ASC Topic 980 — Regulated Operations

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
e 602 — Accounting Guidelines for Capitalizing Costs for the Acquisition or Construction
of Property, Plant and Equipment
e 612 — Accounting for Capital Office Furniture, Tool, and Equipment
e 616 — Accounting for Leaseholds and Improvements

Key Contact:
Manager, Property Accounting

Administrative Responsibility:

Director, Accounting and Regulatory Reporting

Date Created: 11/24/04
Dates Revised: 10/1/2008, 6/15/10; 12/01/10; 3/31/11, 10/07/11
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Appendix A- Summary of Accounting

Deferred |Comments

Type of Work Capital|Expense Charges

Preliminary Stage (pre-probable)

Internal/external costs of developers working to
facilitate project negotiation and start up

Internal/external legal fees to draft letters of intent and
[purchase agreements

Travel expenses of internal/external developers and
other company personnel to conduct negotiations with X
other parties and review project

Salaries/consultant fees to review or develop models

of projected cash flows/operations X

Payment to obtain an option to acquire PP&E X

Preacquisition Stage (Project is deemed probable)

& Construction Stage

Payment to acquire a site permit and license when X A
directly identifiable to the property

Internal/external legal fees for X B
Operational/Commercial contracts

Internal/external legal fees for litigation proceedings X B
related to PP&E

Internal/external legal fees for condemnations

|proceedings, including court and counsel costs for X

land and land rights

Internal/external legal fees for environmental X c

activities directly related to PP&E

Internal/external fees for incorporation related to a

regulated entity X
Salaries of developers, legal counsel and other
Company personnel working to facilitate obtaining a X

site permit and license when directly identifiable to D
the activity
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Internal salaries to negotiate and secure specific
|project financing

Payment to obtain an option to acquire PP&E X

External fees to negotiate and secure project financing X

Incremental direct costs with independent third parties

for specific PP&E X

External consulting fees such as architectural and X

engineering studies

Real estate legal and title fees X

Real estate s_urveying fees, appraisal, negotiation fees, X E
site preparation, and damage payments (e.g. crops)

Directly related employee salary and benefit costs X

E_nvironmental compliance and due diligence in areas X =
directly related to PP&E

Building demolition costs X G
Internal direct costs of constructing the asset, X

including labor

Depreciation and incremental costs of directly related X

equipment

Internal costs to develop software at site

(subject to Policy 655 — Hardware and Software X

Capitalization Policy)

Costs of materials to build the plant, including X

acquisition of inventory and contract labor

Costs reduced for liquidating damages X H

Inventory (including spare parts) used directly
in acquisition or construction of PP&E

Incremental costs associated with field office
maintained during construction

Costs to identify and hire operating and administrative
|personnel on-site

Internal/external costs to conduct training, including
training on internally developed or acquired software

Interest expense incurred on debt incurred to finance
acquisition (subject to limitations)

Property taxes and insurance X I
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Post Construction/Pre-operation

Costs to test plant X J

Synchronization of plant to grid X K

O&M contractor costs X

Administrative costs such as rent, utilities, etc. X

Comments:

A. Capitalize only if all conditions are met: costs are directly identifiable to the specific
property, costs would be capitalized if the property were acquired, and acquisition of
the property is probable.

B. Capitalize only if directly identifiable to a capital project.

C. Examples of activities include licensing, air and water permitting, site acquisitions,
and all other studies required by regulatory and environmental agencies as a pre-
condition to permit issuance.

D. Limited to time spent on a specific permit/license. Not time exploring several
possible sites; costs should not be significant.

E. Costs include professional fees of engineers, attorneys, appraisers, and financial
advisors, etc.

F. Areas include hazardous material and waste management, pollution prevention,
environmental permitting & impact analysis, and regulated licensing/renewals

G. Capitalize if the demolition is probable upon purchase and occurs within
approximately one year after and classify as land.

H. Liquidating damages an entity receives because a third party did not deliver or
complete construction by a contractual specified date.

I.  Costs incurred for property taxes associated with real estate and insurance shall be
capitalized as property cost only during periods in which activities necessary to get
the property ready for its intended use are in progress.

J. Credit test power revenues against capital cost. Need to distinguish true testing from
start up activities. Start up losses should be expensed.

K. Extensive connection delays or rework expenses must be expensed. Need to
distinguish from start up activities. Start up losses should be expensed.

NOTE: Examples above are not an exhaustive list of all expenditures that may be capitalized.
Contact Property Accounting with any questions.
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Policy: AFUDC is a calculated allowance for Kentucky Utilities Company (“KU”) representing
the opportunity cost of having funds tied up in major construction projects.

Procedure: The procedures for calculating AFUDC are described below.

Scope: AFUDC is calculated for KU projects only. By order of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission (“FERC”), KU calculates and applies AFUDC to generation and transmission assets
used to serve the municipal utilities in KU’s territory. Because the Company earns a return on
Construction Work in Progress (“CWIP”) in Kentucky and Virginia, AFUDC does not apply to
those jurisdictions.

A project must meet three criteria to be eligible for AFUDC accrual:

1. Must be a non-environmental production or transmission project. Per FERC instructions,
production environmental controls and pollution abatement construction projects are
included in rate base and therefore excluded from AFUDC. Distribution and general plant
projects are also not allowed.

2. Estimated investment costs must be greater than $100,000. Note: This limit is based on the
gross investment amount, regardless of the amount of cash contribution to be received by a
project.

3. Actual construction time must be at least three consecutive months in duration. Construction
time is measured in actual labor construction time and should not include engineering/design
time. (Construction time may be measured by contract or Company labor, or outside services
if those labor dollars represent actual construction).

The forgoing process has been the past practice of KU for many years and has been accepted by
the FERC as an appropriate methodology.

Objective of Procedure: To calculate the AFUDC capitalized.
General Requirements:
Detailed Procedures Performed:

Annually:

In January, the estimated AFUDC rate is calculated using previous year-end financial
information and forecasted CWIP and borrowings. All financial information used must be on a
regulatory basis, no purchase accounting amounts are included. Per Docket No. FA11-7-000,
Audit of PNM Resources, Inc. and Public Service Company of New Mexico, the common equity
balance used for the rate calculation must not include Account 219, Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income. No other accounts are excluded. The FERC jurisdictional rate is
provided annually to Property Accounting by a Rate Analyst from the State Regulation and Rates
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Department. The FERC jurisdictional rate is based on the most current KU annual jurisdictional
study.

The annual rate is calculated using the formula in the table below. The rates are then updated in
PowerPlant by an Accounting Analyst in the Property Accounting Department. Beginning in
May 2009, the FERC ordered separate common equity cost rates for production and transmission
assets. As a result, there are separate annual rate calculations for production and transmission
assets. The annual rate stays in effect until December, when adjustments to the annual rate are
possible. See the “Rates Calculation Updates” section below for details. A sample calculation is
shown below.
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For purposes of illustration the following calculation for the annual rate used in 2011 is
presented: (In the table below we need to show how the FERC jurisdictional rate of 9.67% is
calculated.)

As of 12/31/2010

S - Avg. Short Term Debt 3,552,961.08
s - Short Term Debt Interest rate 1.497%
D - Long Term Debt 1,806,362,578.48
d- Long Term debt Interest Rate 3.872%
P - Preferred Stock 0.00
p - Preferred Stock Cost Rate 0.00%
C - Common Equity 2,075,467,084.02
¢ - Common Equity Cost Rate 10.88%
W - Avg CWIP Balance 437,694,000.00

Ai = Gross allowance for borrowed funds used during construction rate.

Ai = s(Sw)  + d (--mmmmmeees ) (1-S/w)

Ai = 0.017993144 (Use 1.80%)

Ae = Allowance for other funds used during construction rate.

P C
Ae = [1- sw] e ) T )
D+P+C D+P+C
Ae = 0.057699031 (Use 5.77%)
Total Rate
FERC Jurisdictional Rate: AFUDC Rate:
Ai = 1.80% 9.67% 0.174132%
Ae = 5.77% 9.67% 0.588190%

7.57% 9.67% 0.732322%




Attachment to Response to PSC-1 Question No. 8
Page 207 of 457
LG&E and KU Energy LLC Accounting Policy and Procedures Scott

Date 8/27/12
Page 4 of 5

651 — Capital - Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (“AFUDC”) Policy and
Procedures

Rates Calculation Updates:

During the December financial close, the annual rate calculation must be compared to a rate
calculation which has been updated with actual monthly CWIP and short-term debt balances for
the entire year. (CWIP balances used in the calculation of the production AFUDC rate must also
be adjusted by the CWIP balance included in the municipal customer rate. This CWIP exclusion
amount is provided to the Property Accounting Department by the Rates Department when the
new municipal rates go into effect on July 1.) If there is at least a 0.25% variance between the
rate calculated with actuals and the annual rate calculated at the beginning of the year then
adjustments must be calculated and entered into PowerPlant by an Accounting Analyst in the
Property Accounting Department. This comparison between the rate calculated with actuals and
annual rate must be completed in order to be in compliance with Federal Power Commission
Order No. 561, Order Adopting Amendment to Uniform System of Accounts for Public Utilities
and Licensees and for Natural Gas Companies. The Order states (on page 3): “We shall
require, however, that public utilities and natural gas companies monitor their actual experience
and adjust to actual at year-end if a significant deviation from the estimate should occur. For this
purpose we shall consider a significant deviation to exist if the gross AFUDC rate exceeds by
more than one-quarter of a percentage point (25 basis points) the rate that is derived from the
formula by use of actual 13 monthly balances of construction work in progress and the actual
weighted average cost and balances for short-term debt outstanding during the year.” See
Appendix A for a copy of the Order.

An Excel file is kept on the Property Accounting department shared network drive
(fs2:\\propacct) with all AFUDC eligible projects. Eligibility is determined based on the criteria
listed above. These projects are identified during Authorization for Investment Proposal review
by Property Accounting Analysts. On a monthly basis, each project on the list is checked to see
if construction has begun, or if it has been placed into service. A listing of these projects is sent
monthly to the appropriate Budget Coordinator requesting this project specific info. If
construction has commenced then the Property Accounting Analyst will activate the project in
PowerPlant and AFUDC will be calculated. If a project has been classified as “in-service” then
the AFUDC calculation ceases.

The calculation is as follows:

AFUDC rate * (CWIP balance of prior month plus %2 of current month) = AFUDC charge
During the monthly close process, an AFUDC Calculation report is generated by PowerPlant
showing the AFUDC charges for the month, and is reviewed for reasonableness by the

Accounting Analyst responsible for AFUDC accounting. After this report is reviewed and
approved, the Accounting Analyst then posts the journal entry as part of the closing process.
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Reports Generated and Recipients:

e AFUDC Calculation Report as described in the previous paragraph, used by the Property
Accounting Analyst

Additional Controls or Responsibility Provided by Other Procedures:
e Monthly Closing Checklist for PowerPlant

Regulatory Requirements:

e FERC Accounting Guidelines 18 CFR, Chapter 1, Subchapter C, Part 101, Electric Plant
Instructions paragraph 4 A

e Federal Power Commission Order No. 561, Order Adopting Amendment to Uniform
System of Accounts for Public Utilities and Licensees and for Natural Gas Companies, 57
Federal Power Commission 608 (1977); and Order 561-A, order Clarifying orders, 2
FERC {61,050, (1978) (See Appendix A for a copy of the Orders.)

e Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Codification
(“ASC”) 980 - Regulated Operations (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 71, Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation)

e Docket No. FA11-7-000, Audit of PNM Resources, Inc. and Public Service Company of
New Mexico,

Reference:

e Detailed journal entry preparation procedures are kept on the Property Accounting shared
network drive: fs2:\\propacct\AFUDC\Rates Estimate\Year\AFUDC-Year Estimate
Generation.xls and AFUDC\Rates Estimate\Year\AFUDC-Year Estimate Transmission
xls. The PowerPlant process is also documented under the AFUDC section of the
PowerPlant System Closing Process.

Corresponding PPL Policy No. and Name:
605 — Accounting for AFUDC

Key Contact:
Manager, Property Accounting

Administrative Responsibility:
Director, Accounting & Regulatory Reporting

Date Created: 11/30/04
Dates Revised: 7/06/09; 12/01/10; 3/31/11; 8/27/12
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57F.P.C. 608; 1977 FPC LEXIS 1165, *

AMENDMENTS TO UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES
AND LICENSEES AND FOR NATURAL GAS COMPANIES (CLASSES A, B, C AND
D) TO PROVIDE FOR THE DETERMINATION OF RATE FOR COMPUTING THE
ALLOWANCE FOR FUNDS USED DURING CONSTRUCTION AND REVISIONS
OF CERTAIN SCHEDULE PAGES OF FPC REPORTS, DOCKET NO. RM75-27

ORDER NO. 561
FEDERAL POWER COMMISSION
57F.P.C. 608; 1977 FPC LEXIS 1165

February 2, 1977 *

* Published in the Federal Register on February 15, 1977 (42 F.R. 9161).
Order issued April 1, 1977 granting application for rehearing for purpose of fur-
ther consideration, unreported. Order No. 561-A issued August 1, 1977 denying
application for rehearing and clarifying prior order, 59 FPC 1340 [Editor's note:
Petition for review filed on September 28, 1977 sub nom. Jersey Central Power
& Light Co., etal. v. F.P.C., in CADC No. 77-1883.] Order issued January 20,
1978 clarifying Order Nos. 561 and 561-A, 2 FERC P

[*1]

ORDER ADOPTING AMENDMENT TO UNIFORM SYSTEM OF ACCOUNTS
FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AND LICENSEES AND FOR NATURAL GAS COMPA-
NIES

Before Commissioners: Richard L. Dunham, Chairman; Don S. Smith, John H. Holloman III and James G. Watt,

OPINION:

On May 20, 1975, the Commission issued a notice of proposed rulemaking in Docket No, RM75-27 (40 F.R.
23322, May 29, 1975). This rulemaking proposed to establish a uniform formulary method for determining the maxi-
mum rates to be used in computing the Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) and to provide ac-
counting and reporting requirements for AFUDC which accord with the elements entering into the determination of
AFUDC rates. The stated objective of the proposed rule was to establish a method which would give recognition to the
interrelationship between capital utilized for rate case purposes and the capital components of AFUDC in a manner that
would permit a utility to achieve a rate of return on its total utility operations, including its construction program, at
approximately the rate which would be allowed in a rate case.

Comments were invited from interested parties on or before July 7, 1975. Due to requests, this date was extended
to[*2] September 5, 1975. Inresponse to the proposed rulemaking, the Commission received comments from 79
respondents (Attachment A). In general, the reaction to the proposed rulemaking was favorable as to its overall objec-
tive, but many respondents questioned the ability of the proposal to meet such objective and made suggestions for im-

provement,

Many respondents objected to the weight given short-term debt in the proposed rule and suggested a number of al-
temnatives. These respondents argued that short-term debt is not necessarily the first source of construction funds, as
would be indicated by application of he proposed formula, and should be ignored or given less weight.  We are not
convinced, however, that we should modify the proposed formula with respect to short-term debt. It is generally im-
possible to specifically trace the source of funds used for various corporate purposes and it was not the purpose of our
proposed rule to do so. Instead, we proposed a rule that would give a utility an opportunity to be compensated for the
total cost of capital devoted to utility operations, including its construction program. In order to accomplish this, it is
necessary to look